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March 2, 2017

The Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Seguin, Texas

We are pleased to present the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Bexasn(the

City), for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the
completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City. To the best of
our knowledge and befiethe presented data is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner
designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various funds of the City.

All disclosures necessary to enable the readertogainral er st andi ng of the Cityés
been included.

The City of Seguinbés financi al statements have be
firm of licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent awdibwaovide reasonable
assurance that the financial statements of the City of Seguin for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016,
are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amous and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
The independent auditor hapirnisceruean atnha nQiutay d g i feid}
the year ended September 30, 2016. The independer
section of this report.

Management 6s discussion and anal yesnidse n(t M&uA)i tiomniesd i
provides a narrative introduction, overview and analysis of the basic financial statements. MD&A
complements this transmittal letter and should be read in conjunction with it.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is pregkin three sections: introductory, financial, and

statistical. The introductory section includes t
of princiopal of ficials. The f i nancdandlysisletterttheon i n
governmenwide financial statements, the fund financial statements, notes to the financial statements, as

wel | as the auditords report on the financi al st

selected financialrad demographic information, generally presented on a-ye#ii basis.

This report includes all funds of the City. The City provides a full range of services including: police and

fire protection, health services, maintenance of streets, planning aridgzgarks and recreation,
convention and visitorsé bureau and gener al admi ni
and wastewater services; therefore, these activities are included in the reporting entity.

City of Sequin profile. The City of Seguin is located in South Central Texas and is the county seat and
principal commercial center of Guadalupe County. The City is located on Interstate Highway 10, about 35
miles east of San Antonio, 160 miles west of Houston, and 50 milesafoitistin, the State capital.
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Incorporated in 1853, the City operates under a Home Rule Charter, which was adopted on
December 7, 1971. The City has a counwnager type of government composed of the manager, mayor
and eight councilpersons elected four-year terms. The City Manager is the chief administrator and
executive officer for the City and has full responsibility for carrying out Council policies and administering
City operations, including hiring department Directors and all other Citylogmps. City service
departments provide a full range of services including police and fire protection, EMS services, building
inspections, animal control services, parks and recreation services, golf, library services, public works
services and generall@inistrative services. In addition, the City of Seguin also provides electric, water and
wastewater services.

Local economy The SeguirGuadalupe County economy is an important contribution to the San Antonio
metropolitan area. Manufacturing, agricuét and agribusiness, minerals, education, and recreation are
major contributors. The City of Seguin has been economically stable for many years because of the
industries located here. Major industries with headquarters or operations located withity thfeS&guin
include, Continental, Inc., Commercial Metals Corporation (CMC), Tyson Foods, Inc., Caterpillar, Inc.,
Minigrip, Wal-Mart, Alamo Industrial, HEB and Hexcel. Several other businesses have recently established
a presence in Seguin or will beidg so in the near future. Tractor Supply Company opened a regional
distribution center in late 2015, Niagara Bottling opened its Seguin Bottling Center in the Spring of 2016,
and Siro Group USA has future plans to construct a food manufacturing facility.

In addition, to the Seguin Independent School District, Seguin is the home of Texas Lutheran University
(TLU). It is a fully accredited fouyear ceeducational senior liberal arts institution of higher education.
TLUGs 1, 40 0-52sntala/ferelw) tosne ftomh 3 states and eight foreign countries. The 14:1
studentteacher ratio allows for small classes. TLU has repeatedly been listed as one of the top ten small
colleges in the southern United States byutfe. News and World Repauirvey of ciege presidents.

In discussions with major employers in Seguin, it is apparent that a continued focus on developing an
available, skilled workforce is essential to remaining competitive. In an effort to address regional workforce
development needs in 3ég, the Central Texas Technology Center (CTTC) has partnered with the Alamo
Academies.to offer the Advanced Technology and Manufacturing Academy that trains junior and senior
high school students in a manufacturing trade. Seguin and New Braunfels roghsadents earn up to a

total of thirty (30) college credit hours, graduate with a diploma and enroll in a two or four year college to
earn a degree. Given the fact that the availability of a trained workforce is one of the most important site
selectionvariables for companies, this workforce training system has the potential of providing a steady
flow of new trained workers to put Seguin and New Braunfels at a distinct advantage. During this reporting
cycle, an overwhelming interest in the dual placeim@ogram drove the need for additional funding for
Accuplacer exams to be administered. In addition the CTTC recently underwent an expansion that doubled
the size of its campus to accommodate current and future growth.

Guadalupe Regional Medical Cent@RMC), located in Seguin, is an awamthning, technologically
advanced regional healthcare provider that transforms lives by providing compassionatgalitgh
healthcare. With an active medical staff of 152 local physicians and 742 employees, GB\WU@pr
comprehensive healthcare services to the residents of eight counties throughout Central Texas. In 2014,
GRMC surgeons were trained in and began performing da Vinci robotic surgery.

Each year the hospital admits approximately 5,000 patients, 824180 Emergency Department visits,
delivers 700 babies, and performs 3,200 surgeries. GRMC contributes nearly $40 million per year to the
local economy in salaries and benefits and is one of the largest employers in Guadalupe County. Jointly
owned by he City of Seguin and Guadalupe County, GRMC is afargprofit community hospital
committed to its values of compassion, teamwork, excellence, enthusiasm, and dedication.

GRMC has expanded its existing facilities into an ultramodern health care codgsighned to serve an
eight county region. The thrgear project, completed in 2010, encompasses 141,000 square feet of new
construction, major remodeling of 65,000 square feet, and technological upgrau&ecember 2015,
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GRMC sold revenue bonds tefinance its 2007 bond debt and to finance construction, renovation, and
equipping of certain health facilities at the Hospitahe 2015 bonds do not constitute a debt, liability, or
obligation of the State of Texas, Guadalupe County, the City of Seguamy other political subdivision or
agency of the State of Texas other than the Medical Center.

Workforce Solutions Alamo information provided indicates that the City of Seguin unemployment rate
increased slightly to 3.6 percent in December, up fronp8tdent in November. These low rates continue to
keep the City in what economists consider to be full employment.

The City of Seguin unemployment rate registered lower than the overall jobless rate of 3.7 percent for the 8
county San AntonidNew Braunfels Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA), which includes Atascosa,
Bandera, Bexar, Comal, Guadalupe, Kendall, Medina and Wilson coufties.City of New Braunfels
registered a 3.0 percent unemployment rate in December, while the City of San Antonio te@stere
percent and the City of Schertz registered a 3.4 perce#t &dtat full employment.

Comparing the San Antoridew Braunfels MSA to the state and nation, the Texas unadjusted (actual)
unemployment rate remained unchanged for the months of Novemtdebecember at 4.6 percerthe
nationds unadjusted (actual) unempl oyment rate i nc
4.4 percent in November. Comparatively, the state and nation release seasonally adjusted unemployment
rates with Te as at 4. 6 percent and the nationbs unempl
December.

Caterpillar Expansion: in April 2016, Caterpillar announced it would be closing an electric generator
packaging facility in Newberry, South Carolina, and a gaioe assembly plant in Ridgeway, South
Carolina. As a part of these consolidation efforts, Caterpillar shifted the operations of these facilities to three
other plants, one of which was the Seguin, Texas facility. The transfer of operations to Cdtespill&8 e g u i n
Pl ant speaks volumes about our regionds workforce
2016 Caterpillar also relocated its Americas Sales and Marketing team to the Seguin, Texas facility. The
relocation involved employees thighout the United States and Europe.

In April 2013, Walmart announced plans to build a second Walmart Supercenter in Seguin at the Southeast
corner of Interstate 10 and State Highway 46. Construction was originally estimated to begin in early 2017,
howewer, a Texas Department of Transportation (TXDOT) frontage road and intersection reconfiguration
project has prompted Walmart to delay the start of construction. Walmart is expected to begin construction
on the new store once TXDOT begins wrapping withrtpebject. The new store will employ around 200
individuals and bring a much needed grocery store

On October 28, 2014, the Seguin Economic Development Corporation (SEDC) and the City of Seguin
announced that Siro Group USA will ldeatheir first North American food manufacturing facility in
Seguin, Texas. An incentive package was approved by the SEDC and given final approval by the Seguin
City Council to recruit the project, which will create over $58.5 million in new capital imesgtand 212

new jobs over six years. In addition, Siro Group USA will incorporate an R&D Center and Special
Employment Center into the Seguin factory. Siro Group is hopeful that they can begin construction on their
Seguin facility sometime in 2018.

In the spring of 2016 Niagara Bottling opened its new 557,000 square foot bottling facility located on 30.77
acres of land off Interstate 10 at the intersection of Rio Nogales Drive and Eighth Street. On June 30, 2015
the City of Seguin announced that Niagattihg would be locating their new bottling facility in Seguin,
Texas. The project will create over $85 million in new capital investment and 75 new jobs with a minimum.
Niagara is currently working on adding a third production line to their facility.atiuétion of the new line

will create about 20 new jobs. The addition of the third line is expected to be completed by the Spring of
2017.

Vii



Long-term financial planning. The City issued $4,500,000 in utility revenue bonds in February 2016,
which funded mpr water and wastewater improvements. In addition, the City issued $12,850,000 in
certificates of obligation bonds in February 2016 which funded a new Animal Services Facility along with a
new fire truck, improvements to the Seguin Events Complex amat istaget and drainage improvements.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Internal control. Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal
control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the City are protected fromfiaganibase and to

ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles for local governments as prescribed by the
Governmental Accounting Standia Board (GASB), the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)

and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA). The internal control structure is
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance that these objectivés d@temencept of
reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived
and the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

The City utilizes a computerized finaial accounting system, which includes a system of internal
accounting controls. Such controls have been designed and are continually being reevaluated to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurances.

Budgeting Controls. The City also maintains bgdtary controls. The objective of these budgetary
controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved
by the City Council. Activities of all funds are included in the annual appropriated budgetevEhef

budgetary control (that is, the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) is
established at the fund leveHowever, budgetary accounting is maintained on aitére basis. The City

also maintains an encumbra@naccounting system as one technique of accomplishing budgetary control.
Encumbered amounts lapse at year end, however, encumbrances generally are reappropriated as part of the
foll owing yearods budget.

As demonstrated by the statements and schedulasdéttlin the financial section of this report, the City
continues to meet is responsibility for sound financial management.

Financial rating. The Ci tydés bond rating for Fitch Ratings a

Fitch Ratings Standard & Poor 6s
General Obligation Bonds AA/stable outlook AA-/positive outlook
Utility Revenue Bonds A+/stable outlook A+/stable outlook

Retirement Plan. The City provides pension benefits for all of its fuithe employees through the state
wide Texas Municipal Btirement System (TMRS), an agent multiplaployer public employee retirement
system.

Deferred Compensation Plan. The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in
accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, &vadahll City employees, permits

them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Participation in the plan is optional. The deferred
compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable
emergency.

Health Benefits Trust Fund. During fiscal year 2009, the City established a Health Benefits Trust Fund
and Retiree Insurance Trust Fund. These funds were established for the receipt of health insurance
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premiums from the benefits paid by the City, prems paid by retirees and dependent premiums paid by
employees and retirees. The disbursements of these premiums are also paid out of these funds.

OTHER INFORMATION

Independent Audit. The City Charter requires an annual audit of the books, accourdscifh records,

and transactions of all administrative departments of the City by independent certified public accountants
selected by the City Council. This requirement he
by Armstrong, Vaughan & #sociates, P.C., Certified Public Accountants, has been included in this report.

Acknowledgements. The preparation of this report on a timely basis could not be accomplished without the
efficient and dedicated services of the entire staff of the Fin@emartment. Each member of the
department has our sincere appreciation for the contributions made in the preparation of this report. We
would also like to thank the members of the City Council and the citizens of the City of Seguin for their
interest andsupport in planning and conducting the financial operations of the City in a responsible and
progressive manner.

Respectfully submitted,

Llpidle N Dot

Douglas G. Faseler
City Manager

Luaaw Gaaul

Susan Caddell
Director of Finance
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| NDEPENDENT ARHPDRTORO

The Honorable Mayor and
Members of the Citgouncil
City of Seguin, Texas

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the-typginess
activities, the discretely presented component uadch major fund, and the aggaég remaining fund
information ofthe City of Seguin, Texasas of and for the year end8dptember 30, 201@ndthe related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comghe€ i t hagicsfinancial statements as listed
in the table of contents.

Management 6s Responsibilsty for the Financi al St at

The City of Seguin, Texasmanagement is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with accountingciples generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatbetéat,

due to fraud or error.

Audi torédés Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United StateiodAand the
standards applicable to financial audits containedGovernment Auditing Standardsssued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance aboutthdrethe financial statements are free from material misstatement.
The financial statements of the Seguin Economic Development Corporation (component unit) were not
audited in accordance withovernment Auditing Standards

An audit involves performing pedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financi al statement s. The procedures selected de
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, widkiketo fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers int
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumsta c e s but not for the purpose of expressing al
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonabtenésignificant accounting estimates made by management,

as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinians.

941 West Byrd Blvd., Suite 101 ¢ Universal City, Texas 78148
Phone: 210-658-6229 ® Fax: 210-659-7611 ® Email: vaughan@avacpa.com ® www.avacpa.com
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the busipessactivities,the discretely
presented component unizch major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund informatiothefCity of

Seguin, Texasas of September 30, 2@] and the respective changes in financial position and, where
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Infoation

Accounting principles generally accepted in the
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison informathedules of changes and city contributions
defined benefit planand other postemployme benefit as listed in the table of contents, be presented to
supplement the basic financial statemeng&uch information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who congidegsait essential

part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic,
or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures teduéed supplementary information

in accordance ith auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted
of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information
for consistency with mana g ¢mbasit financial sasements,sapdsothér o 0 U
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on ma buadgetargneompadsen informateands s i o n
schedles of funding progress because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statelna¢rntslliectively
comprisethe City of Seguin, Texasbasic financial statements a whole The comparative statements,
combining and individual nonmajor furfthancial statements, introductory section, and statistical section
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required paliasi¢Hinancial statements.

The comparative financial statements arwmbining and individual nonmajdund financial statementre

the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing pocedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statemertstbe basic financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statearentsrly stated

in all material respects, in relation to the basiarcial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements, and atiogly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on it.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance witksovernment Auditing Standardse have also issued our report defethruary 10, 2017

on our consideration dhe City of Seguin, Texasinternal control over financial reporting and on our tests

of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of thatnigsand not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on complianceThat report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance witltGovernment Auditing Standards consideringhe City of Seguin, Texasinternal control

over financial reporting and compliance.

Gy, Ve { it e

Armstrong, Vaughan & AssociateB.C.

February 10, 207
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MANAGEMENTG6 S [DNANDWEAYSIS

As management of the City of Segui n, we offer reec
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities for the City of Seguin ddiisital year ended
September 30, 2015. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with
additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found in the
introductory sectionofthiseport, and the Cityos financi al staten

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

1 The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City of Seguin exceeded its liabilities at the close
of the fiscal year ending September 30, €04y $101,603,537(net position). Of this amount,
$23,129594 unrestricted net position) may be used tc
citizens and creditors.

T The Cityo6s timcreasdd byid49,480003F4% tommred to the priofiscal year.

1 As of September 30,26t he City of Seguinds government al fu
balances of $4,797,775adecrease of $,930,871 This islargely attributableto thespending down
of bond proceeds which inded $4.4m sperfrom the 2016Certificates of Obligation Fund and
$11mspent from the 2014 General Obligation Bonds.

1 At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balantkeef@@eneral Fund was $13,025,486
or 64.3% of total General Fund expenses.

1 The Ctotal Weébtsincreased byl%,401,133during the current fiscal year.While the City
refunded some General Obligation and Revenue Bonds, the CitissisaUtility RevenueBonds
for $4,430,000 and Certificates of Obligation for $12,445,000

1 Duringtheye ar, t he Ci t y 608,240 xmpreharstieess2PD6E160genetaed in taxes
and other revenues for governmental activities before transfers and special items.

T The tot al cost of the Citybs gd¢ld600fmm ladtgear, act i \
and no new programs were added this year. Salaries and benefits increased from fiscabydar 201
addition, depreciation increased due to several projects being completed in fiscal yéaen@01
2016.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT S

The discussion and analysis serves as an introduct
City of Seguinds basic financi al statemepnds ar e
financial statements, 2) fund financial tet@ents, and 3) notes to the financial statements. The
comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) also contains other supplementary information in addition to

the basic statements themselves.

Governmentwide financial statements. The governmentvide financial statementsare designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the City
sector business

The statement of net positignr e sent s i nf ormati on on al Ibiltesfwith he Ci
the difference between the two reportednas position Over time, increases or decreases in net position

may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City of Seguin is improving or
deteriorating.
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The statemenof activitiespr esent s i nformation showing how the C
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise

to the change occurs, regardless of the timing ofteél@ash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g.,
uncollected taxes and earned but not used vacation leave).

In the statement of net positicand the statement of activites, he Ci tyds operations a
kinds of activities:

1 Governmental Activite$ Most of the Cityds basic services al
public works and general administration. Property taxes\cfrise fees and charges for services
finance most of these activities.

2 BusinessType Activitiesi The City charges a fee to customers to help cover all or most of the cost
of certain services it provi des. , wWhter andi t y o s
wastewater services, are reported here.

In addition, thegovernmentvide financial statemeniaclude not only the City of Seguin itself, but also the
Seguin Economic Development Corporation, a legally separate component unit for whichythie Cit
financially accountable. Financial information for this component unit is reported separately from the
primary government and busingype activities.

Thegovernmentide financial statementsan be found on pages 1&9 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fundis a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Seguin, like other state
and local governments, uses fund accountm@risure and demonstrate compliance with finaazed

legal requirements. The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant
fundsi not the City as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by state lay kol
covenants. However, the City establishes many other funds to help it control and manage money for
particular purposes or to show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants and
other money. All of the funds of theit€ can be divided into three categories: governmental funds,
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported
as governmental activities in the governmerde financial statements. However, unlike the government

wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus etemeanflows and outflows

of spendable resources, as well as balances of spendable resources available at the ésdabfytiee.
Governmental funds statements are reported using current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the govewidesfinancial staments,

it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented
for governmental activities in the governmavitle financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the loagrm impact ot h e g o v e r rAeme finandirgy detigams. The relationships or
differences between governmental activities (reported irstiement of net positicend thestatement of
activitieg and governmental funds are detailed in a reconciliation follotiedund financial statements.

Information is presented separately in the governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, 2010 Certificates
of Obligation Fund, 2014 General Obligation Bond Fund and Debt Service Fund, all of which are considered

to be major funds. Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated nonmajor
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fund presentation. Individual fund data for each @sthnonmajor governmental funds is provided in the
form of combining statements elsewhere in the CAFR.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pagés 20

Proprietary funds. The City charges customers for certain servicpsoitides. These services are generally
reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported
in thestatement of net positi@nd thestatement of activities.

The City maintains two different typeof proprietary funds. The Ultility Fund is a businbg®e activity and

consists of revenues from charges for electric, water and wastewater sales. The Internal Service Funds
account for revenues and expenditures for the employee health insuranee, hetith insurance and
workersb6 compensation insurance. The fund financ
the governmentvide financial statements, only in more detail.

The proprietary funds financial statements can be found on gage3® of this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside of

the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the governmeatfinancial statements because the
resourcesof hose funds are not available to support the
accounting utilized for these funds is similar in nature to that of the proprietary funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on page&23ff this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements.The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the governmaa¢ and fund financial statement$he notes to the
financial statemets can be found on pages 3%6 of this report.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also
presents certain required supplementary infer mati c
The City of Seguin adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison
schedule has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this Retgeted
supplementary infanation can be found on pages- 76 of this report.

In addition, this report also contains certain required supplementary information concerning the City of
Seguinds progress in funding its obligation to pr
Cityos f i iorefune,nad svell psefanging progress for other postemployment benefits (health
insurance) provided to retirees.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with honmajor governmental and enterprise
funds and individual internal service filmare presented immediately following the required supplementary
information described in the preceding paragraglombining and individual fund f&aments can be found

on pages 77 118of this report.



GOVERNMENT -WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Asnotededri er |, net position may serve over timenas a L
As of September 30, 2016 t he City of Seguinds assets and def
liabilities by $101,603,537 Table Al isacondensedwri on of the Cityds sd& at eme
years ended September 30, 2016 and 2@&Kpectively.

The | argest portion oT71.7%)Isdsnéinvegtroest intcapitahassets (e.g., lapdy s i t
buildings, machinery, and equipntg less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still
outstanding. The City of Seguin uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these
assets are nowailable for future spendingAl t hough t h eent@iits capited assets is eepotted

net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from
other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. The next
lagest portion of t h2R34isitsyroestrictedretgpobsitionet posi ti on (

Table A-1
City of Seguin's Net Position

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Assets
Current assets $ 27,960,258 $ 30,061,566 $ 34,338,715 $ 52,711,903 $ 62,298,973 $ 82,773,469
Capital assets 83,096,731 66,060,869 77,555,421 59,932,191 160,652,152 125,993,060
Other non current assets 13,057,073 18,717,519 17,054,811 5,790,472 30,111,884 24,507,991

Total assets 124,114,062 114,839,954 128,948,947 118,434,566 253,063,009 233,274,520
Deferred Outflows of Resources 5,688,983 2,797,774 1,933,690 771,166 7,622,673 3,568,940
Liabilities
Current liabilities 3,821,156 4,185,862 6,396,858 4,954,492 10,218,014 9,140,354
Noncurrent liabilities 96,313,724 81,605,055 52,550,407 47,843,994 148,864,131 129,449,049

Total liabilities 100,134,880 85,790,917 58,947,265 52,798,486 159,082,145 138,589,403
Net Position
Invested in Capital Assets 28,065,213 25,657,965 44,783,121 39,946,492 72,848,334 65,604,457
Restricted 2,912,376 3,306,292 2,713,233 3,651,700 5,625,609 6,957,992
Unrestricted (1,309,424) 2,882,554 24,439,018 22,809,054 23,129,594 25,691,608

Total Net Position $ 29,668,165 _$ 31,846,811 $ 71,935,372 _$ 66,407,246 $ 101,603,537 _$ 98,254,057

An additional porti on o f5.5Whsesubj@dt to gxtermdl reskietigns,iinolddiseg n et
bond covenants, on how they must be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net gbsitio
$23,129,594may be used to meet the governmentés ongoing

Changes in Net positon.The Ci tyds t-wideaevenugoinceasedrbg $98,5660r 4.7%.

This was largely due to increase ireatic, waterand sewer revenue The Cityodswideot al (
expenses increased bg,$32,834o0r 5.1%. The majority of this increase is attributable to the increase in the

net pension liability



Table A-2
Changes in City of Seguin's Net Position

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services $ 9,797,695 $10,028,029 $ 46,502,423 $ 42,645,590 $ 56,300,118 $ 52,673,619
Operating Grants and
Contributions 546,156 801,179 - - 546,156 801,179
Capital Grants and
Contributions 656,203 2,014,336 975,222 749,579 1,631,425 2,763,915
General Revenues
Property Taxes 7,922,023 7,516,954 - - 7,922,023 7,516,954
Franchise Taxes 1,252,005 986,176 - - 1,252,005 986,176
Sales Tax 6,232,146 6,089,793 - - 6,232,146 6,089,793
Occupancy Tax 830,356 825,433 - - 830,356 825,433
Industrial District Agreement 546,645 520,000 - - 546,645 520,000
Investment Earnings 183,931 40,371 191,925 34,353 375,856 74,724
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Assets - - 14,112 483 14,112 483
Total Revenues: 27,967,160 28,822,271 47,683,682 43,430,005 75,650,842 72,252,276
Expenses:
General Government 3,147,664 2,164,023 - - 3,147,664 2,164,023
Public Safety 14,279,914 13,399,458 - - 14,279,914 13,399,458
Public Service 10,077,096 8,043,970 - - 10,077,096 8,043,970
Interest on Long-Term Debt 2,560,726 2,343,340 - - 2,560,726 2,343,340
Utility - - 42,235,962 42,817,737 42,235,962 42,817,737
Total Expenses 30,065,400 25,950,791 42,235,962 42,817,737 72,301,362 68,768,528
Excess (Deficiency) Before (2,098,240) 2,871,480 5,447,720 612,268 3,349,480 3,483,748
Transfers In (Out) (80,406) (100,149) 80,406 100,149 - -
Increase (Decrease) in
Net Position $ (2,178,646) $ 2,771,331 $ 5,528,126 $ 712,417 $ 3,349,480 $ 3,483,748

Governmental activites. The Ci tyds t ot al depreased byn$8od,hiit 2040 belomaste nu e s
ot al AA IS0 1B & abavé laseyrap.e n s e s

year . The Cityods t

ncr

1 Capital Grants and Contributions decreased by $1,358,133. Last fiscal year, the City received a large

grant in the amount of $1,642,172 for the Walnut Spridgek Project. This project has now been

closed out.

=a =4

from the TASP program than we did the prior year.

1 The most significant governmental expense for the City was in providing for public safety, which

Property Taxes increased by $405,069 or 5.4%. Taxable values increased by $83,076,125 or 5.6%.
Emergency Medical Services revenue increased by $187,999 or 17.2%. We received a larger payment

incurred expenses of $14,279,914. These expenses increased by $880,456. These expenses are offset

by revenuegollected from a variety of sources, with the largest being from fines and penalties in the

amount of $1,441,609. Additional funding also included EMS revenue in the amount of $1,283,976

and Fire and EMS interlocal agreements with Guadalupe County iantbant of $568,946. The
major components of public safety are police and fire. Police accounted for $6.7 million in public

safety expense while Fire accounted for $5.2 million in public safety expense.

1 An increase of $1,027,718 in the net pension ligb{lnet of increased in deferred outflows) was a

large part of the increase in expenditures.



Revenues - Governmental Activities
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Businesstype activities. Th e Ci t y 6 s -typeoxrdvenuemdraased by $4s253,60F 9.8%. The
Cityo6s esstypadxpernsessncreased B8%,7750r 1.4%.

1 Electric revenues make up $28.1 million of the charges for services. This year electric revenues
increased by $1,181,764. Consumption increased by 11.5 million kwh or 4.3%.

1 Water revenues make up $9.8 lioih of the charges for services. This year water revenues
increased by $1,075,087 or 12.3%.

1 Sewer revenues make up $6.7 million of the charges for services. This year sewer revenues
increased by $1,109,911 or 19.8%.

1 This year, the City implementedater and sewer rate increases based upon a rate study completed
in FY15. The study recommends a gradual increase of rates over the next five years.
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ANALYSI'S OF THE GOVERNMENTO6S FUNDS

As naed earlier, the City of Seguin uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
financerelated legal requirements.

Governmental funds. T h e
inflows, outflows, ad balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City of

Seguinds
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of $34,797,776 This is a decrease of 30,871 This islargelyattributableto thespending down of bond
proceeds whichnicluded $1,995,09%pent from th014 GeneraDbligationBonds. Of this total amount,

$13,025486c onstitutes
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discretion. The remainder of fund balances is as follows: 1)pemasible fund balance in the amount of
$108,546which are prepaids and inventory, 2) restricted fund balance in the amour,574,210which

are restricted to tourism and economic development, public safety, public service, capital projects or debt
sewice, 3) committed fund balance in the amount of0$2,731 which is committed to stabilization
arrangementand aquatic fees, and 4) assigned fund balance in the amourk,0&7 %66 which is
predominantlyassigned to capital projects.

The General Fuhis the main operating fund of the City of Seguin. At the end of the current fiscal year,
unassigned fund balance of the General Fund wkz9%4,522 while total fund balance reached
$15,158,011 Of this amount $,307,574is attributable to the balancef a tax exemption settlement
agreement . As a measure of the Gener al Fundos | ic
balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. With3{B88&574taken out of the equation,
unassignedund balance represend®% of general fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents

58.9% of that same amount.

The General Fund Capital Projects Fund has a total fund balaneg78B8$§.92 an increase of&7,879
This increase can be attrilable to the fact that additional funds were applied to capital projects, but the
projects have yet to be complete.

At the end of FY16sevenbond funds had a total fund balance &fLl$16,181 This was a decrease of
$5,500,646due to spending down thend funds this year.

Other factors concerning the finances of governmental fund have already been addressed in the discussion of
the Cityds gover nment amde fanantial statetnénts.s i n t he gover nme

Proprietary funds. The Ci t y o priet&efgndsiare attizedota agcount for operations of the City
that are commercial in nature and accounted for in a manner more similar to private enterprise. The
statements for proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the rgeménide
financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net position of the Utility Fund at the end of the year amounted 439,018 The restricted
net position is 3,713,233 while net position invested in capital assets amounted4¥ 33121

GENERAL FUND BUDGETA RY HIGHLIGHTS

For FY 201516, actual revenues on a budgetary basis wede789,781compared to the final budget of
$21,318,546which is $71,235above budgetSales tax exceeded budget by $158,250, while property taxes
exceeéd budget by $139,355. Building permits exceeded budget by $99,684 due to increased construction
activity.

For FY 201516, actual expenditures on a budgetary basis were $20,254,183 compared to the final budget of
$22,117,525, which was $1,863,342 belimaf budget amounts. Some departments had employee turnover
resulting in their personnel services being under budget and savings on other operating expenditures.
Indirect cost allocation also exceeded budget by $252,992.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINIS TRATION

Capital Assets. At the end of 2016the City had invested1$0,652,152 net of depreciation, in a broad

range of capital assets, including land, equipment, buildings, and vehicles. (See Tapld s amount

represents a net increase (inclydedditions and deductions) 084659,092or 27.3%. The increase was

due in part to large bond projects being completed or urajetvegun during fiscal year 201®8ore
detailed information about NdteeG, f2agetd§46.s capi t al asse
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Table A-3
City of Seguin's Capital Assets

Total

Governmental Business-Type Percentage

Activities Activities Total Change

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2015 - 2016
Land $ 4,467,991 $ 4,467,991 $ 727,026 $ 727,026 $ 5,195,017 $ 5,195,017 0.0%
Buildings and Improvements 33,889,397 21,025,461 24,672,812 24,541,129 58,562,209 45,566,590 28.5%
Improvements Other than Buildings 56,208,315 52,363,884 69,105,147 62,324,032 125,313,462 114,687,916 9.3%
Transportation and Equipment 15,063,342 13,325,093 7,755,774 6,957,203 22,819,116 20,282,296 12.5%
Construction in Progess 19,981,296 18,510,452 34,102,978 21,024,586 54,084,274 39,535,038 36.8%
Totals at Historical Cost 129,610,341 109,692,881 136,363,737 115,573,976 265,974,078 225,266,857 18.1%
Total Accumulated Depreciation (46,513,610) (43,632,012) (58,808,316) (55,641,785) (105,321,926) (99,273,797) 6.1%
Net Capital Assets $ 83,096,731 $ 66,060,869 $ 77,555,421 $59,932,191 $ 160,652,152 $ 125,993,060 27.5%

Long-term debt. At yearend, the City hadl1,352,506n bonds, loans and capital leases outstanding as
shown in Table M. This was a increase of $2,401,132r 12.9%6 from 2015. This fiscal yearthe City

issued Utility Revenue Bonds in the amount @2 #845000. Mored et ai | ed i nf or mati on
debt is presented Notes H and |, pages 482.

The Ci suppbred debt xating by Fitch is AA with a stable outlook while Standard and Poor rating is
AA-wi th a positive outl oekenudhkorCds § 6isatuitdtaple by Biy
outlook while Standard and Poor rating is A+ with a stable outlook. The current ratio of-sappotted

debt to assessed value of all taxable property3%. The pledged revenue coverage for thétytilystem
revenue bonds i3.33

Table A-4
City of Seguin's Long-Term Debt

Total

Governmental Business-Type Percentage
Activities Activities Total Change
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2015-2016
Bonds Payable $ 41,464,030 $ 43,472,260 $ 42,755,970 $ 40,102,740 $ 84,220,000 $ 83,575,000 0.8%
Certificates of Obligation 26,970,000 15,085,000 - - 26,970,000 15,085,000 78.8%
Capital Leases 126,386 238,572 36,120 52,801 162,506 291,373 -44.2%
Total Bonds & Notes Payable $ 68,560,416 $ 58,795,832 $42,792,090 $ 40,155,541 $ 111,352,506 $ 98,951,373 35.3%
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ECONOMI C FACTORS AND NEXT YEARG6S BUDGETS AND RATES

During the budet process for fiscal year 2018, City staff and City Council considered many factors

when setting the budget. Staff reviewed all of the fees charged to citizens and caistbeme using City

services. Along with the fees, staff also considered the tax rate. They also reviewed expenditures and how
the increases may be held to a minimum. The City set a goal to maintain financial stability, a lean
organization, a competittey pai d st aff and investment in capital
services with the least affect possible on our citizens through taxes, fees, and utility rates. The projected
revenues and expenditures for the General Fund are budgetentease by $%33,3250r 59% above the

FY16 budget.

1 Property tax revenue is budgeted to increase by $1,220,432 based upon an increase in values and
increased debt service payments

Sales tax revenue is budgeted to increase by $375,000 based upoingrawerg economy.

Emergency Medical Service revenue is budgeted to increase by $260,000 based upon additional
revenue provided by the TASP Program.

The property tax rate increased by $.0156 to $.5412, which is also the effective tax rate.

Salaries and beifits are budgeted to increase by $655,772. This includes a 2% cost of living
effective January 1. It also includes some new positions and upgrades.

Indigent Health Care is budgeted to increase by $61,868, which represents a 4.2% increase.

Utilities, Opeating Supplies, and Professional Services in Animal Services are budgeted to increase
by $61,600 due to the addition of a new Animal Services Facility.

1
1

=a =4

=a =4

The projected revenues and expenditures for the Utility Fund are budgeted to incredsé8by0%$2or
3.9% above the FY&budget.

1 Water revenue is budgeted to increase by $736,900 due to an increase in rates as recommended by a
water rate study.

1 Sewer revenue is budgeted to increase by $529,836 due to an increase in rates as recommended by a

sewer ratetsidy.

Electric revenue is budgeted to increase by $379,360 due to an anticipated increase in consumption.

Salaries and benefits are budgeted to increase by $533,703. This includes a 2% cost of living

effective January 1. It also includes some new postand upgrades.

Indirect cost allocation is budgeted to increase by $300,000 based upon prior years.

Water Purchased is budgeted to increase by $250,000 due to an increase in wholesale water purchased

rates.

1 In fiscal year 2017, the City will establishRate Stabilization Fund. & prices over the past ten
years have experienced volatile periods which can greatly affect the rates we charge our
customers. This fund is being established in preparation for these times in the future so that we can
avoid pasing along these pricing peaks to our customers. In FY17, the City will contribute $200,000
towards a goal of $1,000,000 balance in this fund.

1 Transfers to Utility I1&S Fund is budgeted to increase by $161,210 due to the issuance of the 2016
Utility Reverue Bonds.

1 ROW User Fees are budgeted to increase by $114,573 due to an increase in revenues.

=a =4

=a =4

Personnel expenses are increasing due to a 2% cost of living and merit increases. Several new positions
have been added to the General Fund.

Narcotics Officer #ective January 1, 2017
Firefighter/Paramedic effective January 1, 2017

Code Compliance Officer effective January 1, 2017
Receptionist and Kennel Attendant effective December 1, 2016

13
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1 Senior Heavy Equipment Operat®ublic Works effective October 1, 2016
1 Equipment OperatePublic Works effective October 1, 2016

1 Maintenance TechniciaRacilities (Y2 position) effective January 1, 2017
1 IT Systems Administrator (¥ position) effective December 1, 2016

New positions in the Utility Fund have also been added.

1 Administrative Technician effective January 1, 2017

9 Lift Station TechniciakNastewater Maintenance effective January 1, 2017

1 Maintenance Operator (Wastewater Treatment Plant) effective January 1, 2017
1 Maintenance TechniciaRacilities (¥2 position) effectiveahuary 1, 2017

1 IT Systems Administrator (¥ position) effective December 1, 2016

CONTACTI NG T FSEINANCIAY MANAGEME NT
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors
with a general overvie o f the Citydos finances and to show t#h

receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the
Finance Department, at the City of Seguin, 205 North River StreetinG@guxas 78155.

14
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements include integrated sets of financial statements as required by the GASB. The
sets of statements include:

T Government wide financial statements
T Fund financial statements:

- Governmental funds

- Proprietary funds

- Fiduciary funds

In addition, the notes to the financial statements are included to provide information that is essential to a
userd6s understanding of the basic financi al staten

15



CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NETPOSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

Component
Primary Government Unit
Seguin
Economic
Governmental  Business-Type Development

ASSETS Activities Activities Total Corporation
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,232,108 $ 1,331,333 $ 2,563,441 $ 10,234
Investments 23,198,062 24,507,183 47,705,245 352,831
Receivables (net of allowances

for uncollectibles)

Taxes 2,074,042 - 2,074,042 -

Accounts 1,230,367 4,879,981 6,110,348 -

Grants 30,497 - 30,497 -

Miscellaneous 86,636 1,734,570 1,821,206 -
Due From Component Unit/

Primary Government - 19,769 19,769 197,686
Inventories 23,962 1,828,261 1,852,223 -
Prepaids 84,584 37,618 122,202 2,205
Restricted Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents 29,818 35,759 65,577 -
Investments 13,027,255 16,517,975 29,545,230 -
Notes Receivable - - - 280,260
Net Present Value of Lease Financing - 501,077 501,077 -

Capital Assets:

Land 4,467,991 727,026 5,195,017 2,190,912

Buildings & Improvements 33,889,397 24,672,812 58,562,209 89,547

Improvements Other than

Buildings/Infrastructure 56,208,315 69,105,147 125,313,462 -

Transportation & Equipment 15,063,342 7,755,774 22,819,116 -

Construction in Progress 19,981,296 34,102,978 54,084,274 -

Accumulated Depreciation (46,513,610) (58,808,316) (105,321,926) (9,474)

Total Assets 124,114,062 128,948,947 253,063,009 3,114,201
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Pension Related Outflows 4,992,685 1,768,775 6,761,460 -
Deferred Charge on Refunding 696,298 164,915 861,213 -
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 5,688,983 $ 1,933,690 $ 7,622,673 $ -

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITIONCONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable and
Other Current Liabilities
Unearned Revenue
Accrued Interest Payable
Due to Component Unit/
Primary Government
Customer Deposits
Payable from Restricted Assets:
Accrued Interest Payable
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due within One Year
Due in more than One Year
Total Liabilities

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for:
Tourism & Economic Development
Public Safety
Public Service
Debt Service
Impact Fees
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

Component
Primary Government Unit

Seguin

Economic
Governmental  Business-Type Development
Activities Activities Total Corporation
$ 3173535 $ 5456,066 $ 8,629,601 $ 32,658
243,809 95,530 339,339 -
206,126 - 206,126 -
197,686 - 197,686 19,769
- 618,315 618,315 600

- 226,947 226,947 -

- 1,471,259 1,471,259 -
3,269,367 217,741 3,487,108 48,084
93,044,357 50,861,407 143,905,764 803,260
100,134,880 58,947,265 159,082,145 904,371
28,065,213 44,783,121 72,848,334 1,467,725
1,164,538 - 1,164,538 -
517,996 - 517,996 -
265,459 - 265,459 -
964,383 559,676 1,524,059 -

- 2,153,557 2,153,557 -
(1,309,424) 24,439,018 23,129,594 742,105
$ 29,668,165 $ 71,935372 $101,603537 _$ 2,209,830

See accompanying notes tcsltafinancial statements.
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDEDSEPTBVIBER 30, 2016

Expenses Program Revenues
Operating Capital
Indirect Charges for Grants and Grants and
Functions and Programs Direct Allocation Services Contributions  Contributions
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:
General Government $ 7,500,656 $ (4,352,992) $ 3,209,656 $ 369,825 $ 23,656
Public Safety 14,279,914 - 3,515,320 129,378 -
Public Service 10,077,096 - 3,072,719 46,953 632,547
Interest on Long-term Debt 2,560,726 - - - -
Total Governmental Activities 34,418,392 (4,352,992) 9,797,695 546,156 656,203
Business-Type Activities
Utility 37,882,970 4,352,992 46,502,423 - 975,222
Total Business-Type Activities 37,882,970 4,352,992 46,502,423 - 975,222
Total Primary Government $ 72,301,362  $ - $ 56,300,118 $ 546,156 $ 1,631,425
Component Unit;
Seguin Economic Development
Corporation 2,065,930 $ - $ 10,524 4578 $ -
Total Component Unit $ 2,065930 _$ - $ 10,524 _$ 4578 % -

General Revenues:
Taxes
Property Taxes
Franchise Taxes
Sales Taxes
Occupancy Taxes
Industrial District Agreement Annual Payment
Gain on Sale of Capital Assets
Interest and Investment Earnings
Total General Revenues

Transfers
Change in Net Position

Net Position at Beginning of Year
Net Position at End of Year

See accompanying notes tcsltafinancial statements.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Component
Primary Government Unit
Seguin
Economic
Governmental  Business-Type Development
Activities Activities Total Corporation
$ 455,473  $ - $ 455,473  $ -
(10,635,216) - (10,635,216) -
(6,324,877) - (6,324,877) -
(2,560,726) - (2,560,726) -
(19,065,346) - (19,065,346) -
- 5,241,683 5,241,683 -
- 5,241,683 5,241,683 -
(19,065,346) 5,241,683 (13,823,663) -
- - - (2,050,828
- - - (2,050,828
7,922,023 - 7,922,023 -
1,252,005 - 1,252,005 -
6,232,146 - 6,232,146 1,231,650
830,356 - 830,356 -
546,645 - 546,645 -
- 14,112 14,112 -
183,931 191,925 375,856 23,377
16,967,106 206,037 17,173,143 1,255,027
(80,406) 80,406 - -
(2,178,646) 5,528,126 3,349,480 (795,801)
31,846,811 66,407,246 98,254,057 3,005,631
$ 29,668,165 _$ 71,935372 _$ 101603537 _$ 2,209,830
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

2016 2014
General Certificates of General
ASSETS Fund Obligation Obligation Bond
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 772,928 $ - $ -
Investments 14,484,023 - -
Receivables (net of allowances
for uncollectibles):
Taxes 1,679,282 - -
Accounts 1,111,981 - 6,700
Grants 30,497 - -
Miscellaneous 86,636 - -
Inventories 23,962 - -
Prepaid Items 83,421 - -
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents - 14,766 7,021
Investments - 9,414,691 995,445
Total Assets $ 18,272,730 $ 9,429,457 $ 1,009,166
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $ 811,123 $ 737,821 $ 342,666
Accrued Expenditures 539,334 - -
Due to Component Unit 197,686 - -
Unearned Revenues 227,942 - -
Due to Others 42,536 - -
Total Liabilities 1,818,621 737,821 342,666
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue 1,296,098 - -
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 1,296,098 - -
FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable:
Prepaids and Inventory 107,383 - -
Restricted:
Tourism & Economic Development - - -
Public Safety - - -
Public Service 5,300 - -
Capital Projects - 8,691,636 666,500
Debt Service - - -
Committed:
Stabilization Arrangement 2,018,494 - -
Aquatic Fees - - -
Assigned 52,312 - -
Unassigned 12,974,522 - -
Total Fund Balances 15,158,011 8,691,636 666,500
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS & FUND BALANCES $ 18,272,730 $ 9,429,457 $ 1,009,166

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Other

Debt Nonmajor Total

Service Governmental Governmental
Fund Funds Funds

$ 2,507 $ 208,146 $ 983,581

968,325 6,876,651 22,328,999

199,677 195,082 2,074,041

- 103,076 1,221,757

- - 30,497

- - 86,636

- - 23,962

- 1,163 84,584

- 8,031 29,818

- 2,617,119 13,027,255

$ 1,170,509 $ 10,009,268 $ 39,891,130

$ - $ 658,117 $ 2,549,727

- 4577 543,911

- - 197,686

- 15,867 243,809

- 31,450 73,986

- 710,011 3,609,119

188,138 - 1,484,236

188,138 - 1,484,236

- 1,163 108,546

- 1,164,538 1,164,538

- 517,996 517,996

- 260,159 265,459

- 2,285,710 11,643,846

982,371 - 982,371

- - 2,018,494

- 24,237 24,237

- 5,045,454 5,097,766

- - 12,974,522

982,371 9,299,257 34,797,775

$ 1,170,509 $ 10,009,268 $ 39,891,130
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NEPOSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

TOTAL FUND BALANCE - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS $ 34,797,775

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position
are different because:

Capital Assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds. 83,096,731

Internal service funds are used by management to charge costs related to employee
insurance. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in
governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position. 1,120,286

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures
and, therefore, are deferred in the funds. 1,484,239

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable and capital leases, are not due and
payable in the current period and, therefore, not reported in the funds:

General Bonded Debt 68,434,030
Unamortized Premiums and Deferred Charges 1,157,170
Capital Leases 126,386
Net Other Post Employment Benefit Obligation 241,583
Net Pension Liability (Net of Deferred Outflows) 19,510,846
Compensated Absences 1,154,725 (90,624,740

Accrued interest payable on long-term-bonds is not due and payable in the
period and, therefore, not reported in the funds. (206,126)

TOTAL NET POSITION - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ 29,668,165

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCESI GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDEDSEPTEMBER 30, 2016

REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeits
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Service
Nondepartmental
Indirect Cost Allocation (Recovery)
Capital Projects/Outlay
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Bond Issue Costs
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES (USES)

Transfers In

Transfers Out

Proceeds of Capital Lease Financing

Bonded Debt Issues

Premiums on Issuance of Bonds

Payments to Refunding Escrow Agent
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year
Fund Balances at End of Year

See accompanying notes to basic firiahstatements.

2016 2014

General Certificates of General
Fund Obligation Obligation Bond
$ 12,182,731 $ - $ -
723,820 - -
862,132 - 10,100
5,696,651 - -
1,497,809 - -
64,240 41,785 23,261
762,398 - -
21,789,781 41,785 33,361
2,807,542 - -
12,595,423 - -
7,075,027 - -
1,970,564 - -
(4,352,992) - -
158,620 4,200,149 11,177,936
- 220,814 -
20,254,184 4,420,963 11,177,936
1,535,597 (4,379,178) (11,144,575
95,801 - -
(4,463,666) - -
- 12,445,000 -
- 625,814 -
(4,367,865) 13,070,814 -
(2,832,268) 8,691,636 (11,144,575
17,990,279 - 11,811,075
$ 15,158,011 $ 8,691,636 $ 666,500
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Other

Debt Nonmajor Total
Service Governmental Governmental
Fund Funds Funds
3,218,707 $ 835,858 $ 16,237,296
- 16,256 740,076
342,925 676,774 1,891,931
- 351,242 6,047,893
- 197,244 1,695,053
9,189 43,414 181,889
- 195,936 958,334
3,570,821 2,316,724 27,752,472
- 1,222,449 4,029,991
- - 12,595,423
- - 7,075,027
- 280,628 2,251,192
- - (4,352,992
- 6,430,832 21,967,537
2,453,230 149,536 2,602,766
2,242,406 7,175 2,249,581
158,373 - 379,187
4,854,009 8,090,620 48,797,712
(1,283,188) (5,773,896) (21,045,240
640,000 3,932,503 4,668,304
- (356,807) (4,820,473
- 37,350 37,350
9,370,000 - 21,815,000
592,615 - 1,218,429
(9,804,242) - (9,804,242
798,373 3,613,046 13,114,368
(484,815) (2,160,850) (7,930,872
1,467,186 11,460,107 42,728,647
$ 982,371 $ 9,299,257 $ 34,797,775

24



SEGUIN

It’s real.



CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDIB SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are
different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense.

Current Year Additions 20,398,015
Current Period Depreciation (3,160,921)

In the Statement of Activities, only the gain or loss on the disposal of a capital asset is reported,

whereas in the governmental funds, the proceeds from the sale increase financial r

Thus, the change in net assets differs from the change in fund balance by the net book value

of disposed assets.

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources are
not reported as revenues in the funds.
Increase in Unavailable Revenues

The issuance of long-term-debt (e.g. bonds) provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes
the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however,
has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the net effect of issuance
costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these
amounts are deferred and amortized in the Statement of Activities:

Proceeds of New Debt (21,852,350)
Premiums on Debt Issues (1,218,429)
Payments to Refunding Bond Escrow Agent 9,804,242
Principal Payments 2,602,766

Amortization of Deferred Charges & Premiums

The governmental funds report pension and other postemployment benefit contributions
as expenditures when paid. However, in the statement of activities, differences between
pension plan and other postemployment benefit contributions and costs for the year
are reported as an asset or obligation.

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities (including compensated absences
and accrued interest expense ) do not require the use of current financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of employee
insurance to individual funds. The net revenue/(loss) is reported with governmental
activities.

CHANGE IN NET POSITION - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

Business-Type Governmental
Activities Activities
Utility Internal Service
Fund Funds
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Restricted Cash $ 35759 $ -
Unrestricted Cash 1,331,333 248,525
Investments:
Restricted Investments 16,517,975 -
Unrestricted Investments 24,507,183 869,062
Accounts Receivable (Net) 4,879,981 -
Miscellaneous Receivables 1,734,570 8,610
Due from Component Unit 19,769 -
Inventories 1,828,261 -
Prepaid Items 37,618 -
Total Current Assets 50,892,449 1,126,197
Noncurrent Assets
Net Present Value of Lease Financing 501,077 -
501,077 -
Capital Assets:
Land 727,026 -
Buildings and Improvements 24,672,812 -
Improvements Other than Buildings 69,105,147 -
Transportation & Equipment 7,755,774 -
Construction in Progress 34,102,978 -
Accumulated Depreciation (58,808,316) -
Capital Assets, net 77,555,421 -
Total Noncurrent Assets 78,056,498 -
Total Assets 128,948,947 1,126,197
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Pension Related Outflows 1,768,775 -
Deferred Charge on Refundings 164,915 -
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 1,933,690 $ -
Continued

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF NET PGITIONT PROPRIETARY FUNDS (CONTINUED)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses
Unearned Revenue
Customer Deposits
Current Liabilities

Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets:
Accrued Interest Payable
Current Portion of Long-term Bonds
Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Capital Lease Payable
Compensated Absences
Net Other Post Employment Benefit Obligation
Net Pension Liability
Revenue & Refunding Bonds Payable
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for:
Debt Service
Impact Fees
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Business-Type
Activities

Governmental
Activities

Utility
Fund

Internal Service
Funds

$ 5,271,790

402,017
95,530
618,315

$ 5911

6,387,652

226,947
1,471,259

1,698,206

8,085,858

36,120
182,200
89,354
8,213,594
42,340,139

50,861,407

58,947,265

44,783,121

559,676
2,153,557
24,439,018

1,120,286

71,935,372

$ 1,120,286
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NETPOSITION- PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDEDSEPTEMBER 30, 2016

Business-Type Governmental
Activities Activities
Utility Internal Service
OPERATING REVENUES Fund Funds
Charges for Utility Service $ 44,605,248 $ -
Charges for Premiums - 3,495,783
Miscellaneous Revenues 1,897,175 -
Total Operating Revenues 46,502,423 3,495,783
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administration 2,103,144 3,260,375
Operation and Maintenance:
Electric Distribution 19,798,287 -
Utility Services 1,089,640 -
Water Production 4,689,210 -
Water/Sewer Maintenance 3,999,349 -
Sewer 1,989,631 -
Economic Development 378,612 -
Facilities Maintenance 695,556 -
Information Technology 283,608 -
City Attorney 408,241 -
Nondepartmental 852,045 -
Indirect Cost Allocation 4,352,992 -
Total Operating Expenses 40,640,315 3,260,375
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 5,862,108 235,408
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest Income 191,925 2,037
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Assets 14,112 -
Interest and Fiscal Charges (1,322,631) -
Bond Issue Costs (273,016) -
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (1,389,610) 2,037
Net Income (Loss) Before Contributions and Transfers 4,472,498 237,445
Capital Contributions 975,222 -
Transfers In 103,838 71,762
Transfers Out (23,432) -
1,055,628 71,762
Change in Net Position 5,528,126 309,207
NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 66,407,246 811,079
NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR $ 71935372 3 1,120,286

See accompanying notes to basic finahstatements.
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS PROPRIETARY FUNCs
FOR THE YEAR ENDEDSEPTEMBER 30, 2016

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Cash Received From Customers
Cash Paid for Employee Wages & Benefits
Cash Paid to Suppliers for Goods & Services
Cash Paid General Fund for Indirect Costs
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities:

Transfers From Other Funds
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Noncapital Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Capital and

Related Financing Activities:

Purchase/Construction of Capital Assets

Proceeds from Revenue and Refunding Bonds

Premiums received on Bonds

Payments to Refunding Agent

Principal Payments on Long-term Bonds

Interest and Fiscal Charges Paid

Bond Issue Costs

Principal Payments on Capital Leases

Advances (To) From Component Unit

Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital
and Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Sale/(Purchase) of Investment Securities
Investment Interest Received
Lease Financing - Principal Payments Received

Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Investing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash
and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Equivalents at Beginning of Year:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year:

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

See accompanying notes to basic finahstatements.
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Business-Type Governmental
Activities Activities
Utility Internal Service
Fund Funds
$ 45935882 $ 3,493,903
(7,352,905) -
(23,249,228) (3,265,017
(4,352,992) -
10,980,757 228,886
80,406 71,762
80,406 71,762
(19,814,540) -
9,815,000 -
997,589 -
(6,039,573)
(1,326,771) -
(1,385,989) -
(273,016) -
(16,681) -
1,232 -
14,112 -
(18,028,637) -
6,826,667 (214,619)
191,925 2,037
37,490 -
7,056,082 (212,582
88,609 88,066
1,163,275 160,459
115,209 -
1,278,484 160,459
1,331,333 248,525
35,759 -
$ 1,367,092 _$ 248,525
Continual



CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS- PROPRIETARY FUNLC5 (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDEDSEPTEMBER 30, 2016

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Operating Income (Loss)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net

Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Depreciation:

(Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets:
Accounts Receivable
Inventory/Prepaid Items
Net Pension Asset/Deferred Pension Related Outflows

Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses
Net Other Postemployment Benefit Obligation
Net Pension Liability
Unearned Revenue
Customer Deposits

Transactions Not Affecting Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Noncapital Financing Activities:

Increase in Net Pension Liability (net of deferred outflows)
Capital and Related Financing Activities:

Contributions from Developers - Capital Assets

See accompanying notes to basic finahstatements.
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Business-Type Governmental
Activities Activities
Utility Internal Service
Fund Funds

$ 5,862,108 $ (3,517)
3,166,531 -

162,993 (932)
169,076 2,717
(1,066,184) -

2,083,123 (11,449)
(127,054) -
21,708 -
1,437,990 -
(610,300) -
(119,234) -

5,118,649 (9,664)

$ 10,980,757 _$ (13,181)
$ 371,806 $ -
$ 975,222  $ -




CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS

STATEMENT OFFIDUCIARY NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Inventory

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable/ Due to Others
Total Liabilities

NET POSITION
Held in Trust for Scholarship

Held in Trust for Riverside Cemetery

Held in Trust for Industrial Development
Total Net Position

See accompanying notes to basic finahstatements.
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Private
Purpose Agency
Trust Funds Fund
$ 174 50,132
285,050 -
359,431 -
644,655 50,132
- 50,132
- 50,132
4,473
14,655
625,527
$ 644,655




CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
STATEMENT OFCHANGES INFIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDEDSEPTEMBER 30, 2016

Private
Purpose
ADDITIONS Trust Funds
Interest $ 981
Miscellaneous 1,300
Total Additions 2,281
DEDUCTIONS
Distributions to Participants 30,758
Total Deductions 30,758
Change in Net Position (28,477)
Net Position, Beginning of Year 673,132
Net Position, End of Year $ 644,655

See accompanying notes to basic finahstatements.
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIALSTATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

NOTE A -- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

TheCity of Segui nwas ifMcerpomated in IBR3i t Thed City Charter was adopted on
December7, 1971, under the provisions dfet Home Rule Charter Act of the State of Texas. The City
operates under a Coundilanager form of government and provides the following services as authorized by
its charter: police and fire protection, health services, maintenance of streets, plawhizuniag, parks

and recreation, general administrative services, electric, water, and wastewater services.

The financial statements of the City have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) as applied to governmemtits. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial
reporting principlesThe mor e significant of the Cityds accoun

1. REPORTING ENTITY

Component Units

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the
government and its component units, entities for which the government is considered to be
financially accountable. Blendedomponent units, although legally separate entities, are, in
substance, part of the governmentds operations
combined with data of the primary government. Each discretely presented component umat, on t
other hand, is reported in a separate column ingbeernmeniwide financial statements to
emphasize it is legally separate from the government.

The Seguin Economic Development Corporation, a nonprofit corporation, was incorporated under
the Developmet Corporation Act of 1979, Texas Revised Civil Statutes Annotated, Article 5190.6,
Section 4A. The Corporation is organized exclusively for public purposes of the City of Seguin, and
the City Council appoints directors of the Corporation. It receivgg@teeds from the 0.25% sales

tax adopted in 1994 for economic development in Seguin. The corporation meets the criteria of a
discretely presented component unit, described above, and is preseiledgovernmentide
financial statemenis Complete ihancial statements for the Seguin Economic Development
Corporation may be obtained at City Hall.

Joint Ventures

A joint venture is a legally separate entity that results from a contractual arrangement and that is
owned, operated, or governed by two orrenparticipating governments. The following entities
meet the criteria as joint ventures:

The Guadalupe Regional Medical Centera joint venture between the City of Seguin and
Guadalupe County. Each participating government appointhahef the bard of directors and
approves annual budgets. In addition, the participating governments are financially responsible for
indigent health care provided by the hospital, and are contingently liable for hospital debts.
Separatefinancial statements of the uadalupeRegional Medical Centemay be obtained by
contacting the hospital administrator.
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIALSTATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

NOTE A -- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
1. REPORTING ENTITY (Continued)

Joint Ventures (Continued)

The Schertz/Seguin Local Government Corporation is a public, nonprofit corporation organized to
aid, assist, and act on behalf of thigéies of Schertz and Seguin in acquiring, constructing,
maintaining, and operating a water utility system. The participating governments have an ongoing
financial responsibility to fund the operation of the corporation through either purchase of services
or by subsidizing the operations. Separate financial statements for the Schertz/Seguin Local
Government Corporation may be obtained at City Hall.

Summarized financial data for joint ventures has been provided inMNote
2. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The governmentwide financial statementsinclude the statement of net positiand the statement

of activities. Governmenwide statements report information on all of the activitiethe City and

its component uni{except for City fduciary activity) The effect of mterfund transfers has been
removed from the governmewide statements but continues to be reflected on the fund statements.
Governmental activities are supported mainly by taxes and intergovernmental revenues. sBusines
type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods and
services. The primary government is reported separately from the gentponit within the
governmenwide statements.

The statement of activities reflscthe degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segments offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicamsreiase,

use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function and 2) grants
and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular
function or segment. Taxes and othenis not properly included in program revenues are reported

as general revenues.

Separatdund financial statementsare provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds even though the latter are excluded from the govermmdatinancid statements.

The General Func016 Certificates of ObligatiofiCapital Projects) Fun®014 &neralObligation

Bonds (Capital Projects) Fundnd the Debt Service Fundeet criteria asnajor governmental

funds. Each major fund is reported in segi columns in the fund financial statements. Nonmajor

funds include other Special Revenue aalital Projects Funds. The combined amounts for these
funds are reflected in a single column in the fund Balance Sheet and Statement of Revenues,
Expenditurs, and Changes in Fund Balances. Detailed statements for nonmajor funds are presented
in the Combining Fund Statements and Schedul es
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

NOTE A -- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTINGAND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION

The governmentwide financial statenents are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. This measurement focus is also used for the
proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when adbility is incurred, regardless of the timing of related déshs. Property taxes

are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. feagoue types, which have

been accruedarerevenue from investments, intergovernmental revenagecharges for services.

Grants are recognized as revenue when all applicable eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider are met.

Revenues are classified asogram revenuesind general revenues.Program revenues include

1) charges to customers applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants
and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions. General revenues include ahtiaxes
grants not restricted to specific programs and investment earnings.

Governmental fund level financial statementsare reported using current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered awvagmblihey are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period
Measurable and available revenues include revenues expected to be received within 60 days after
the fiscal year ends. Receivables evthare measurable but not collectible within 60 days after the

end of the fiscal period areported as deferred revenue.

Expenditures generally are recorded when a fund liability is incurred; however, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditurdatesl to compensated absences and claims and judgments,
are recorded only when the liability has matured and payment is due.

The government reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fundis the general operating fund of the City andlisays classified as a major

fund. The General Fund is used to account for all financial resources except those required to
be accounted for in another fund. Major revenue sources include property taxes, charges for
services, intergovernmental revenuad &vestment of idle funds. Primary expenditures are for
general administration, public safety, public service and capital acquisiNondepartmental
expenses include insurance costs, professional services and miscellaneous costs that do not
benefit ay one department, as well as contributions to local charitable organizations and the
Guadalupe Regional Medical Center.

2016 Certificates of Obligation Fund is used to account for funds received from Bd.6
Certificates of Obligation to finance majonprovementsto he Ci tydés f ai rgr oun:
an animal services facility, as well as certain street and drainage improvements

2014 General Obligation Bond Funds used to account for funds received from the 2014 GO
Bonds to finance a new Libraryd park improvements.
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

NOTE A -- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION (Continued)

Debt Service Fundaacounts for ad valorem taand contributions from the component tuta
support city bonded debt.

Nonmajor funds include Special Revenue Funds (othan major projects and grantsihd
CapitalProjects Funds

Proprietary fund level financial statements are used to account for activities, which are

similar to those often found in the private sector. The measurement focus is upon determination

of neti nc o me, financi al position andisthabtlty f | ows
Fund (used to account for the provision of electric, water and sewer services to resigents)

the Internal Service Fusdi s ed t o account f ornsurahce prayramgnd s gr
workers compensation benefits.

Revenues are derived froamarges for services for utilitiesity contributions, employee and
retiree/cobra premiumsand investment of idle funds Expenses areharges incurred for
operating purchasse of electricity and waterpremiums and administrative expensies
insurance

TheProprietary Fund s areaccounted for using the accrual basis of accounting as follows:

Revenues are recognized when earned, and expenses are recognized when the hadilitie
incurred. Currentyear contributions, administrative expenses and benefit payments, which are
not received or paid until the subsequent year, are accrued.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses freape@iing. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering
goods i n connect i osprincipal dngomg oparations i et ary fund?o

Fiduciary fund level financial statementsinclude fiduciary funds which are classifi&to
private purpose trust and agency fundsiduciary fund reporting focuses on netets and
changes in net positionAgency funds do not involve a formal trust agreement. Agency funds
are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do notvievneasurement of results of
operations.

4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash deposits and investments with a maturity date within three
(3) months of the date acquired by the City.
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
NOTES TO BASIC INANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

NOTE A -- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

5.

INVESTMENTS

State statutes authorize the City to invest in (ajgabibns of the United States or its agencies and
instrumentalities; (b) direct obligations of the State of Texas or its agencies; (c) other obligations,
the principal and interest of which are unconditionally guaranteed or insured by the State of Texas
or the United States; (d) obligations of states, agencies, counties, cities, and other political
subdivisions of any state having been rated as to investment quality by a nationally recognized
investment rating firm and having received a rating of not leas tA or its equivalent; (e)
certificates of deposit by state and national banks domiciled in this state that are (i) guaranteed or
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or its successor; or, (i) secured by
obligations that are described l§a) - (d). Statutes also allow investing in local government
investment pools organized and rated in accordance with the Interlocal Cooperatiavhdsg,

assets consist exclusively of the obligations ofUh&ed States oits agencies and instrumelitigs

and repurchase assessments involving those same obligattaidic funds investment pools in

Texas (APool so) are established under the auth
of the Texas Government Code, and are subject to thasfons of the Public Funds Investment
Act (the AActo), Chapter 2256 of the Texas GovV:é

Act designed to promote liquidity and safety of principal, the Act requires Pools to: 1) have an
advisory board comgsed of participants in the pool and other persons who do not have a business
relationship with the pool and are qualified to advise the pool; 2) maintain a continuous rating of no
lower than AAA or AAAm (or equivalent) rating by at least one nationallyogaized rating
service; and 3) maintain the market value of its underlying investpwetfolio within onehalf of

one percent of the value of its shares.

Investments are stated at fair value (plus accrued interest) except for money market investinents an
participating interesearning investment contracts (U.S. Treasuries) that have a remaining maturity
at time of purchase of one year or less. Those investments are stated at amortized cost. Likewise,
certificates of deposit are stated at amortized (s&& Note B).

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Property taxes are levied based on taxable value at January 1 and become due (ziibbandl,

past due after January 32016. Accordingly, receivables and revenues for property taxes are
reflected on the govemmentwide statement based on the full accrual method of accounting.
Property tax receivables for prior yeamthse | evy
amount of 87,616

Accounts receivable from other governments include amounts almegfiantors for approved grants

for specific programs and reimbursements for services performed by the City. Program grants are
recorded as receivables and revenues at the time all eligibility requirements established by the
provider have been met.

Reimlursements for services performed are recorded as receivables and revenues when they are
earned in the governmewide statements. Included are fines and costs assessed by the court action
and billable services for certain contracts. Revenues receiatvamce of the costs being incurred

are recorded as deferred revenue in the fund statements. Receivables are shown net of an allowance
for uncollectibles.
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

NOTE A -- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

7.

10.

SHORT-TERM INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between indivitislfér goods
provided or services rendered. These receivaktk
fundso or Adue to other fundso on the fund sta
the governmental activities and businggse activities are reported in the governmende
financial statements as Ainternal balanceso.

INVENTORIES & PREPAID ITEMS

Inventories of consumable supplies are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first
inffirst out (FIFO) method. Theosts of governmental fund type inventories are recorded as
expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

Inventories of repair and replacement parts for the utility system are valued at cost, which
approximates market, using the moving aveagg method.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded
as prepaid items in both governmevitie and fund financial statements and in the fund financial
statements are offset by a reservation of flmadance which indicates they do not represent
Afavail able spendabl e resources. 0

RESTRICTED ASSETS

Certain proceeds dbeneral Obligation Bond€nterprise Fund revenue bonds, as well as certain
resources set aside for their repayment, are classifiedestricted assets on the balance sheet
because their use is limited by applicable bond covenants. Funds are segregated to report those
proceeds of revenue bond issuances that are restricted for use in construction. Funds are also
segregted to providdor debt servicas provided under bond indenture agreements.

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets, which include land, buildings and improvements, equipment, and infrastructure
assets, are reported in the applicable governmental or bugjpessctivites column in the
governmenwide financial statements. Capital assets, such as equipment, are defined as assets with
a cost of $5,000 or more. Infrastructure assets includeo@ityed streets, sidewalks, curbs and
bridges.

Capital assets are recordechitorical costs if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are
recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The Costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially

extend assetdvies are not capitalized. Interest has not been capitalized during the construction
period on property, plant and equipment.
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIALSTATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

NOTE A -- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

10.

11

12.

13.

CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Capital assets are depreciated using the strightmethod over the following estimated useful
lives:

ASSETS YEARS

Buildings and improvements 20 to 40 years
Improvements other than buildings 20 to 40 years
Utility system in service 20 to 67 years
Machinery and equipment 5to 15 years

DEFERRED OUTFLOWSNFLOWS OF RESOURCES

In additionto assetsthe statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement elelefamted outflows of
resourcesrepresents a consumption of net position that appliasfture period(s) and so will not

be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expex)duntil then. The Cityhas the
following items that qualifyfor reporting in this categoryleferred pension related costs which will

be included in the subgeent actuarial valuation, amigferred charge on refundsgeported in the
governmenwide statement of net position, as well as the Proprietary Fund statement of position. A
deferred charge on refunding results from the difference in the carryingofaleginded debt and

its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the
refunded or refunding debt.

Deferred inflows of resourcespresents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period
and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resource (revenue) until that time. Unavailable
revenue is reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet under a modified accrual basis of
accounting. Unavailable revenues from property tax and EMSivediles are deferred and
recognized as an inflow of resource in the period the amounts become available.

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The City permits employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation pay benefits up to the amount
earned in two years. WJp resignation, an employee may receive pay for any unused accrued
vacation provided the employee gives two weeks written notice of the resignation and is not subject
to discharge for misconduct. Unused sick leave may be accumulated to certain lirtlits.ewent

of termination, no reimbursement is made for accumulated sick leave. No liability is reported for
unpaid accumulated sick leave. Liabilities for compensated absences are recognized in the fund
statements to the extent the liabilities have meatu(i.e. are due for payment). Compensated
absences are accrued in the governmédé statements.

UNEARNED REVENUE

Unearned revenues arise when assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria have been
satisfied. Grant and reimbursemaevenues received in advance of expenses/expenditures are
reflected as unearned revenue.
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

NOTE A -- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
14. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

In the governmenwide financial statements, longrm debt and other lorgrm obligations are
reported as liabilities under governmental activities or propriétany type statement of net assets.

On new bond issues, bond premiums andadists areamortized over the life of the bonds. Bonds
payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are
expensed as incurred

In thefund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts,
as well as bond issuance costs during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported
as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuareeeported as other financing
sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs,
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.

15. PENSIONS

The net pension liability, deferred outflows related to pensions, and pension expense, information
about the fiduciary net position of the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS), and additions

to and deductions from TMRS eéterrhined andhe saamg basisesas p o0 s
they are reported by TMRS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value.

16. FUND EQUITY

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report aggregate amounts for five
classifications of fund balances based on the constraints imposed on the use of these resources. The
nonspendable fund balance classification inclugl®®unts that cannot be spent because they are
either (a) not in spendable foriprepaid items or inventories; or (b) legally or contractually
required to be maintained intact.

The spendable portion of the fund balance comprises the remaining foufiazliess: restricted,
committed, assigned, and unassigned.

Restricted fund balanceThis classification reflects the constraints imposed on resources either
(a) externally by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other govesnmen
or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed fund balance These amounts can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to
constraints imposed by formal resolutions or ordinances of the city couthédl gover nment
highest level of decision making authority. The City Council is the highest level of decision
making authority for the city that can, by adoption of an ordinance prior to the end of the fiscal

year, commit fund balance. Once adopted, itnidtion imposed by the ordinance remains in

place until a similar action is taken (by adoption of another ordinance) to remove or revise the
limitation.
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

NOTE A -- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
16. FUND EQUITY (Continued)

The City Council adopted an ordinance in March 2012 establishingnargency fund
stabilization arangement The Ordinance requires additions to the fund in the event the fund
balance falls below $2,000,000. Additions are to come from interest earnings, direct transfers
from the General Fund and/or Utility Fund, or reimbursements from insuranceards gor
expenditures incurred by the fund. The stabilization fund may be expended on recovery efforts
for public infrastructure damage that occurs as a result of a disaster declared by the City or the
State.

Assigned fund balance This classificationr e f | ect s t he amounts cons
Aintento to be used for specific puhepCitys es, b
Council has designated the City Manager as the responsible agent for assigning fund.balances
Assigned fund balares include all remaining amounts (except negative balances) that are
reported in governmental funds, other than the General Fund, that are not classified as
nonspendable and are neither restricted nor committed.

As of September 30, 201@e City Manager had assigned fund balances for the following:

1 Excess recycling fees over expenditures were assigned for future expenditures associated
wi t h Agreeno (%1843 also davoshle obsidgdt variances for street
maintenance were assigned for future street projects ($50,964).

1 Funds set aside in nonmajor capital project funds that are not otherwise restricted by bond
covenants are assigned for specific capital projects.

Total assigné funds in the General Fund werB2$312 Total assigned balances in nonmajor
capital project funds weres45,454

Unassigned fund balanceThis fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund.
It is also used to report negative fumalances in other governmental funds.

When both restricted and wunrestricted resource
externally restricted resources first, then unrestricted resourcesmmitted, assigned, and
unassigned in orde as needed.

The City Council has set a General Fund minimum fund balance target at three months of
expenditures and recurring transfers. No other fund balance policies exist.

17. NET POSITION

Net position represents the difference between assets aritidisbiNet investment in capital assets
consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of
any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction or improvements of those assets, and adding
back unspent prezds. Net positions are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed
on their use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the City or through external
restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of othennguents.
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

NOTE A -- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

18.

19.

20.

21.

INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Legally authorized transfers are treated as interfund transfers and are included in the results of
operations of both Governmental and Proprietary Funds.

The City allocates to the Ultility (Proprietary) Fund an indirect cost percentage of general
government administration expenses that are paid through the General Fund. Beigegrtended
September 30, 2016he City allocated 4352,992as a transfer for such services. Thariet cost
allocation is reflected as an operating expense in the Utility Fund, and a reduction of current
expenditures in the General Fymehd in a separate column in the Statement of Activities

OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES

Operating revenues arhadse revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity of the
enterprise. For the City, those revenues are charges for electric, water, and sewer services and
premiums for employee insurances. Operating expenses are the necessary costistinpuovide

the service that is the primary activity. Revenues and expenses not meeting these definitions are
reported as nonoperating.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting @sincipl
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and explenisg the reporting period. Actual

results could differ from those estimates.

COMPARATIVE DATA/RECLASSIFICATIONS

Comparative data for the prior year has been provided for the General Fund and Utility Fund in the
fund financial statements in omdéo provide an understanding of the changes in the financial
position and operation of these fund<ertain reclassifications have been made to the 201
financial gatements to conform to the 20fifancial statement presentation. The reclassifications
had no effect on the changes in financial position.
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NOTE B -- DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

As o September 30, 201éhe City of Seguin had the following investments:

Weighted Average
Investment Type Fair Value Maturity (Years)

Primary Government
Local Government Investment Pools:
TexPool $ 10,891,966 0.03
LOGIC 60,162,731 0.12
Certificates of Deposit 6,480,829 0.08

$ 77,535,526
Portfolio Weighted Average Maturity 0.23
Component Unit
Local Government Investment Pools:
TexPool $ 262,032 0.16
LOGIC 90,799 0.04

$ 352,831
Portfolio Weighted Average Maturity 0.20

Investment Rate Riskl'he City and component unit manage exposure to declines in fair values by limiting
the weighted average maturity of its investitngortfolio to less than one year.

CreditRisk. The Cityés investment pol.
of total invested funds) or its agencies and instrumentalities (maximum 80% of funds); direct obligations of
the State of Texas; obligations of states, agencies, contracts, cities, and other political subdivisions rated as
to investment quality of not less than AAA by a nationally recognized investment firm. The U.S.
Government Securities are not considered te ltaedit risk and do not require disclosure of credit quality.

cy limits i

nvest me

The City may also invest funds in government investment pools provided the pool maintains a AAA rating,
the pool maintains a stable asset value, and the average dollar weighted maturnityt doeged 90 days.

As of September 30,2016 t he i nvestments in
The City may invest in Money Market Mutual funds that are ragdldy the SEC and have a dollar
weighted average stated maturity of 90 days or less and maintain a net asset value of $1.00 per share.

The

Citydbs and Component

value persharefo t he pool 6s

wi t h

a manner consistent with Rule 2a7.

t he SECO6s Rul e

Uni t so

TexPool and

i nvest ment

LOGI C

s in po

under | yi n ¢gikeprowhithfcasé they are reported s s
at share value. A 2dike pool is one which is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission
as an investment company, but nevertheless hascy fwdt it will, and does, operate in a manner consistent

2a’

of t he

l nvest ment

Company

Therefore, the investments are reported at $1 pewhstiare,

approximates fair value. There was no change in fair value of the investment pools for the year ended
September 30, 2016
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CITY OF SEGUIN,TEXAS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

NOTE B -- DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Custodial Credit Risk Deposits In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of lafadure,

the government 6s deposi t sSepmember 30,2216 It eh er egtowremr endnetnd 01
were fully collateralized or insured by FDICT h e Ci t y 6ssof demosittaie brokeradt theough the
Citydés depository and are fully insured through FLC

The Component Unit had deposits that were fully insured by FDIC.

Custodial Credit Risk InvestmentsFor an investment, this is the risk that, in the evenhefailure of the
counterparty, the government will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities
that are in the possession of an outside party. Aegémber 30, 201,&he City and Component Unit were

not exposed to custodial credit risk.

NOTE C -- PROPERTY TAX CALENDAR

The Cityds property tax is |l evied and becomes col l
as of the prior January, which is the date a lien attaches to all taxable property in the City. Assessed
values are established by the Guadalupe County Appraisal District at 100% of estimated market value.
Assessed values are reduced by lawful exemptions to arrive at tashids. A revaluation of all property

is required to be completed every four (4) years. The total taxable value as of Jar20d#y, Lipon which

the fiscal 20168evy was based, was $b54,809,696(i.e., market value less exemptions). The estimated

market value was $841,065,659 making the taxable valuédf the estimated market value.

The City is permitted by the Constitution of the State of Texas to levy taxes up to $2.50 per $100 of taxable
assessed valuation for all governmental purposes. RPursu@a decision of the Attorney General of the
State of Texas, up to $1.50 per $100 of assessed valuation may be used for the paymeiterof ideigt.

The combined tax rate to finance general governmental services, including the payment of pridcipal an
interest on longerm debt, for the year end&ptember 30, 2016vas $0.256 per $100 of assessed value,
which means that the City has a tax margin of $149@r each $100 value arwbuld increase its annual tax

levy by approximately $0,698,163ased upon the present assessed valuation ©54809,696efore the

limit is reached. However, the City may not adopt a tax rate that exceeds the tax rate calculated in
accordance with #h Texas Property Tax Code without holding a public hearing. The Property Tax Code
subjects an increase in the effective tax rate to a referendum election, if petitioned by registered voters,
when the effective tax rate increase is more than eight pdrcé) of t he previ ous year

Property taxes are recorded as receivables and unearned revenues at the time the taxes are assessed. In
governmental funds, revenues are recognized as the related ad valorem taxes are collected. Additional
amounts estimated to be collectible in time to be a resource for payment of obligations incurred during the
fiscal year and therefore susceptible to accrual in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
have been recognized as revenue.hétngovernmeniwvide financial statements, the entire levy is recognized

as revenue, net of estimated uncollectible amounts (if any), at the levy date.
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

NOTE D -- INTERFUND RECEIVABLE/PAYABLE

During the course of its operations, the City has numerous transactions between funds to finance operations,
provide services, construct assets, and service dBb the extent that certain transactions between funds

had not been paid or received asSseptember 30, 2016alances of interfund amounts receivable or payable
have been recorded &llows:

Due From Due To

Primary Government
General Fund $ - % 197,686
Enterprise Fund 19,769 -
19,769 197,686

Component Unit

General Fund 197,686 -
Enterprise Fund - 19,769
197,686 19,769
Totals $ 217,455 % 217,455

NOTE E -- NOTES RECEIVABL E (COMPONENT UNIT)

The SEDC (Component Unit) provides incentives in the form of grants and notes receivable to area
businesses in conjunction with its function of generating economic development. Various notes receivable
were outstanding as &eptember 30, 2016ith interest rates ranging from 3.0% to 5.5% and mature from
2023 through 2026. Future payments on the notes are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2017 $ 35,261 $ 14,154 $ 49,415
2018 37,214 12,204 49,418
2019 39,270 10,145 49,415
2020 41,443 7,972 49,415
2021 43,739 5,676 49,415

2022-2026 83,333 4,224 87,557

$ 280,260 $ 54,375 $ 334,635




CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

NOTE F -- NET PRESENT VALUE OF LEASE FINANCING

The City has leased property located at 2460 Crossroads Blvd., consisting of a 49,120 square foot building
and improvements, to Puasd Gentle Soap Products, Inc. under a dgf@s lease agreement. The lease is

for an original term of twenty (20) years and transfers property to the lessee for $1 at the end of the lease
term (2026), or earlier by paying the remaining base rental pagroader the lease, discounted at 5.75%.

The agreement calls for the lessee to operate a business within the premises in order to generate sales tax
revenue, property tax and utility revenue. Failure to continue the business would be considereda breach

the contract.

Future minimum lease payments under the lease are as follows:

September 30,

2017 $ 75,151

2018 75,151

2019 75,151

2020 75,151

2021 98,277

Thereafter 450,601

Total Payments 849,482
Less: Amount Representing Interest (348,405)
Net Present Value of Lease Financing $ 501,077

NOTE G -- CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year endgeptember 30, 201@as as follows:

Balance Transfers/ Balance

Governmental Activities 10/1/2015 Additions Disposals Adjustments 9/30/2016
Land $ 4,467,991 $ - $ - $ - $ 4,467,991
Construction in Progress 18,510,452 8,312,057 - (6,841,213) 19,981,296
Total Assets Not Depreciated 22,978,443 8,312,057 - (6,841,213) 24,449,287
Buildings and Improvements 21,025,461 6,503,277 (480,554) 6,841,213 33,889,397
Improvements Other Than Buildings 52,363,884 3,844,432 - - 56,208,316
Transportation and Equipment 13,325,093 1,738,249 - - 15,063,342
Totals at Historical Cost 109,692,881 20,398,015 (480,554) - 129,610,342

Less Accumulated Depreciation:

Buildings and Improvements (7,242,618) (502,119) 279,322 - (7,465,415
Improvement Other Than Buildings (27,468,054) (1,593,827) - (29,061,881
Transportation and Equipment (8,921,339) (1,064,975) - (9,986,314
(43,632,011) (3,160,921) 279,322 - (46,513,609
Governmental Capital Assets, Net $ 66,060,870 $ 17,237,094 $ (201,232) $ - $ 83,096,733
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NOTE G -- CAPITAL ASSETS

CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIALSTATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

Balance Transfers/ Balance
Business-Type Activities 10/1/2015 Additions Disposals Adjustments 9/30/2016
Land $ 727,026 $ -3 - 3% - 8 727,026
Construction in Progress 21,024,586 18,060,331 - (4,981,939) 34,102,978
Total Assets Not Depreciated 21,751,612 18,060,331 - (4,981,939) 34,830,004
Buildings and Improvements 24,541,129 131,684 - - 24,672,813
Utility System 62,324,032 1,799,176 - 4,981,939 69,105,147
Transportation and Equipment 6,957,203 798,571 - - 7,755,774
Totals at Historical Cost 115,573,976 20,789,762 - - 136,363,738
Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings and Improvements (18,282,067) (299,365) - - (18,581,432
Improvement Other Than Buildings (32,470,519) (2,320,599) - - (34,791,118
Transportation and Equipment (4,889,199) (546,567) - - (5,435,766
(55,641,785) (3,166,531) - - (58,808,316
Business-Type Capital Assets, Net $ 59,932,191 _$ 17,623,230 _$ - $ - $ 77,555,422
Discretely Presented Component Unit
Land $ 425984 $ 1,213,128 $ - $ 551,800 $ 2,190,912
Buildings and Improvements 781,347 - (140,000) (551,800) 89,547
Accumulated Depreciation (37,560) (2,705) 30,791 - (9,474)
$ 1,169,771 _$ 1,210,423 _$  (109,209) _$ - $ 2,270,985
Primary Government
Depreciation Expensgas charged téunctions as follows:
Governmental Activities:
General Government $ 23,576
Public Safety 870,343
Public Service 1,866,627
Nondepartmental 400,375
Total Governmental Activities $ 3,160,921
Business-Type Activities:
Administration $ 6,820
Electric 756,176
Water Production 266,816
Water Distribution 1,457,436
Sewer Plant 360,714
Other 318,569
Total Business-Type Activities $ 3,166,531
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

NOTE H -- CAPITAL LEASES

The City has entered into a lease agreement to finance the acquisiistredt sweeper & tire loadeand

aerator The City has also financed the acquisition of the Springs Hill Wastewater Coll&sytebam

through its Utility Fund These lease agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes and,
therefore, have been recorded at the present value of their future minimum lease payments as of the
inception date.

The assets acquired thoucgpital leases are as follows:

Governmental Business-Type
Assets: Activities Activities
Sweeper & Tire Loader $ 304,075 $ -
Aerator 37,350
Wastewater Collection System - 425,000
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (77,754) (242,443)
Total $ 263,671 $ 182,557

Future minimum obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments as of
September 30, 2028ere as follows:

Governmental Business-Type
Year Ending September 30, Activities Activities

2017 $ 94,428 $ -

2018 34,100 35,000

2019 2,330 35,000
Total Payments 130,858 70,000
Less: Amount Representing Interest (4,472) (33,879)
Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments $ 126,386 $ 36,121
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016
NOTE | -- LONG-TERM DEBT

Bondeddebt and obligations payableZgptember 30, 2018omprise the following individual issues:

General Obligation Bonds:
$2,884,816 2011 General Obligation Refunding Bonds due in annual installments of

$265,000 to $550,000 through September 1, 2021; interest at 2.0% to 3.0% $ 1,479,030
$4,350,000 2013 General Obligation Refunding Bonds due in annual installments of
$65,000 to $460,000 through February 1, 2024; interest at 1.51% 3,500,000
$19,785,000 2014 General Obligation Bonds due in annual installments of
$200,000 to $4,130,000 through February 1, 2034; interest at 3.0 to 6.0% 19,365,000
$8,465,000 2014 General Obligation Refunding Bonds due in annual installments of
$100,000 to $1,170,000 through September 1, 2026; interest at 2.0% - 4.9% 7,850,000
$9,370,000 2015 General Obligation Refunding Bonds due in annual installments of
$100,000 to $1,945,000 through September 1, 2028; interest at 2.0% - 5.0% 9,270,000
Total General Obligation Bonds 41,464,030

Certificates of Obligation:
$10,760,000 2010 Certificates of Obligation due in annual installments

of $70,000 to $2,650,000 through September 1, 2031; interest at 2.0% to 4.25% 10,315,000
$3,400,000 2011 Certificates of Obligation due in annual installments of $100,000
to $290,000 through September 1, 2031; interest at 2.0% to 3.5% 2,205,000
$2,500,000 2013 Certificates of Obligation due in annual installments of $100,000
to $200,000 through September 1, 2028; interest at 2.7% 2,005,000
$12,445,000 2016 Certificates of Obligation due in annual installments of $100,000
to $4,290,000 through September 1, 2036; interest at 3.0% to 5.0% 12,445,000
Total Certificates of Obligation Bonds 26,970,000
Total Governmental Bonded Debt $ 68,434,030

Utility Fund Revenue Bonds:
$7,835,000 Utility System Revenue, Series 2010, due in annual installments of $65,000

to $1,065,000 through February 1, 2031; interest at 2.0% to 4.0% $ 7,475,000
$21,405,000 Utility System Revenue, Series 2014, due in annual installments of $190,000
to $2,335,000 through February 1, 2037; interest at 3.0% to 5.0%. 21,215,000
$4,430,000 Utility System Revenue, Series 2016, due in annual installments of $100,000
to $345,000 through February 1, 2037; interest at 3.0% to 5.0%. 4,430,000
Total Utility Revenue Bonds 33,120,000

General Obligation Bonds - Utility Portion
$1,490,184 2011 General Obligation Refunding Bonds due in annual installments

of $265,000 to $550,000 through September 1, 2021, Interest at 2.0% to 3.0% 470,970
$4,825,000 2013 General Obligation Refunding Bonds due in annual installments of
$330,000 to $650,000 through February 1, 2023; interest at 1.51% 3,805,000
$5,385,000 2015 General Obligation Refunding Bonds due in annual installments of
$25,000 to $1,025,000 through September 1, 2026; interest at 2.0% to 5.0% 5,360,000
Total GO Refunding Bonds 9,635,970
Total Business-Type Bonded Debt $ 42,755,970
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

NOTE | -- LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

The City is required by the revenue bond ordinances to establish certain accounts to maintain and operate
the Utility System and to provide for the paymeritbond principal and interest. Included in these
reqguirements i s maintenance of a AReserve Fundo fc
required accounts are insufficient for that purpose. The Reserve Fund is to contain, at a mammum,
amount equal tadhe average debt service requiremenalbfthe outstanding Utility System BondsThe

Reserve Fund requirement was met with the purchase of a surety ety is in compliance with other
significant requirements. The assets loése restricted accounts are classified in the balance sheet as
restricted assets.

The annual requirements to amortize all bonded debt and obligations outstandir@epteoaiber 30, 2@1
including interest payments, are as follows:

Year Ending Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities

September 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest
2017 $ 2553742 $ 2,423,754 $ 1,471,259 $ 1,477,443
2018 2,656,620 2,363,085 1,583,379 1,435,918
2019 2,601,752 2,287,418 1,688,248 1,399,423
2020 2,786,916 2,203,181 1,788,084 1,357,323
2021 2,685,000 2,119,028 1,905,000 1,303,637
2022-2026 15,120,000 9,110,188 9,340,000 5,393,498
2027-2031 18,515,000 8,921,356 10,200,000 3,461,641
2032-2036 21,515,000 2,400,000 12,100,000 1,531,978
2037 - - 2,680,000 67,269

$ 68,434,030 _$ 31,828,010 _$ 42,755,970 _$ 17,428,130
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIALSTATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

NOTE | -- LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Changes in LongTerm Liabilities

Balance Balance Due Within
Governmental Activities 10/1/2015 Additions Reductions 9/30/2016 One Year
General Obligation Bonds $ 43,472,260 $ 9,370,000 $ (11,378,230) $ 41,464,030 $1,873,742
Bond Premiums 957,379 1,218,429 (322,340) 1,853,468 -
Certificates of Obligation 15,085,000 12,445,000 (560,000) 26,970,000 680,000
Capital Leases 238,572 37,350 (149,536) 126,386 90,853
Compensated Absences 1,047,502 702,285 (595,062) 1,154,725 624,772
Net Other Post Employment
Benefit Obligations Payable 182,890 58,693 - 241,583 -
Net Pension Liability 20,621,452 3,882,079 - 24,503,531 -
Total Governmental Activities 81,605,055 27,713,836 (13,005,168) 96,313,723 3,269,367
Business-Type Activities
Revenue Bonds 35,270,000 4,430,000 (6,580,000) 33,120,000 420,000
General Obligation Refunding Bonds 4,832,740 5,385,000 (581,771) 9,635,970 1,051,259
Bond Premiums 225,578 997,589 (167,739) 1,055,428 -
Capital Leases 52,801 - (16,681) 36,120 -
Compensated Absences 388,814 226,839 (215,712) 399,941 217,741
Net Other Post Employment
Benefit Obligations Payable 67,646 21,708 - 89,354 -
Net Pension Liability 6,775,604 1,437,990 - 8,213,594 -
Total Business-Type Activities 47,613,183 12,499,126 (7,561,903) 52,550,406 1,689,000
Total Primary Government $ 129,218,238 $40,212,962 _$ (20,567,071) _$ 148,864,129 _$ 4,958,367

Compensated absencesid other postempyment benefit obligationfor governmental activities are
generally liquidated by the general fund.

General Obligaibn Refunding Bonds, Series 20%ere issuedctober2015in the amount of $4,755,000

to advance refund GerarObligation Bonds, Series @6 and 2008 Proceeds from the bonds were placed

with an escrow agent solely to repay the debt service related to the refunded obligations. The refunded
obligationsin the amount of $15,320,0@0e considered defeased and are not shown as outstandivesen
financial statements. The refunding resulted in gross debt service saving80&,$38 and a present value

gain of 1,422,278

Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 20¢ére issued inJanuary 2016n the amount of 4,430,000
Proceeds of the Indls ardor selected infrastructure improvements.

Certificates of Obligation, Series 201@ere issued February 2016 in the amount of $12,445,000 to fund

improvements to the fairground, construct an animal services facility, and selected street amg draina
improvements.
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIALSTATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

NOTE | -- LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
Component Unit

The component unit oceived funds from First Commercial Bank N.A. to partially finance the purchase of
land held for future economic incentive and development. The original principal amount of $863,128
carries interest at the rate of 2.54% for ay&@r fixed period, after wbh the interest rate will equal the
Prime Rate less 1.00% he loan calls for monthly payments of $5,786.78 (including principal and interest)
and is secured by the real estateng-term debt activity for the component unit is summarized as follows:

Balance Balance
Outstanding Outstanding
10/1/2015 Increases Decreases 9/30/2016
Notes Payable $ - $ 863,128 $ (11,784 $ 851,344

Annual requirements to amortize thetes payables as of September 30, 2016 are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2017 $ 48,084 % 21,357 % 69,441
2018 49,337 20,104 69,441
2019 50,623 18,819 69,442
2020 51,893 17,548 69,441
2021 53,294 16,147 69,441

Thereafter 598,113 78,890 677,003

$ 851,344 $ 172,865 $ 1,024,209

NOTEJ--EMPLOYEES® RETI REMENT SYSTEMS

Texas Municipal Retirement System

Plan Description

The City participates as one of 8fans in the nontraditional, joint contributory, hybrid defined benefit
pension plan administered bye Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS). TMRS is an agency created

by the state of Texas and administered in accordance with the TMRS Act, Subtitle G, Title 8, Texas
Government Code (the TMRS Act) as an agent mul@piployer retirement system fanunicipal
employees in the State of Texas. The TMRS Act places the general administration and management of the
system with a skmember Board of Trustees. Although the Governor, with the advice and consent of the
Senate, appoints the Board, TMRS is fistally dependent on the State of Texdibke TMRS defined

benefit pension plan is a taualified plan under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue ddIRS issues

a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) that can be obtamed .&irs.com

All eligible employees of the City are required to participate in TMRS retirement system
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016
NOTEJ--EMPLOYEESO RETI REME(ONTBNYED] EMS

Texas Municipal Retirement System (Continued)

Benefits Provided

TMRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are gadgpitee governing
body of theCity, within the options available in the state statutes governing TMRS.

At retirement, the benefit is calcul ated as if t h
City-financed monetary credits with imést were used to purchase an annuity. Members may choose to
receive their retirement benefit in one of seven payment options. Members may also choose to receive a
portion of their benefit as a Partial Lump Sum Distribution in an amount equal to 1@; 2@, monthly
payments, which cannot exceed 75% of the member s

At the December 312015valuation and measurement datine following employees were covered by the
benefit terms:

Plan Year 2014 Plan Year 2015
Inactive employees or beneficiaries
currently receiving benefits 205 213
Inactive employees entitled to but not
yet receiving benefits 122 137
Active employees 334 348
661 698

Contributions

The contribution ras for employees in TMRS are either 5%, 6%, or 7% of employee gross earnings, and
the City matching percentages are either 100%, 150%, or 200%, both as adopted by the governing body of
the City. Under the state law governing TMRS, the contribution ratedoh city is determined annually by

the actuary, using the Entry Age Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method. The actuarially determined rate is
the estimated amount necessary to finance the cost of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an
addiional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.

For the year endin@eptember 30, 201@mployees for th€ity were required to contribute 7% of their

annual gross earnings duogi the fiscal year. The contribution rates for @iy were11.086 and15.25% in

calendar year2015 and 2016 respectively. TheCitydbs contri buti ons ¢nded TMRS
September 30, 2028ere 8,451,731 and exceeded the required contributions 125231
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SEPTEMBER 30, 2016
NOTE J -- EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM (CONTINUED)

Texas Municipal Retirement System (Continued)

Net Pension Liability

TheCityd s Net Pension Liabil ity bdrRRP2I5 anddhe TomaeResionr ed a
Liability (TPL) used to calculate the Net Pension Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
that date.

Actuarial Assumptions

The Total Pension Liability in théecember 312015 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions:

Inflation 2.5% per year
Salary Increases 3.5% to 10.5%, including inflation
Investment Rate of Return* 6.75%

* Presented net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation

Salary increases were based on a semdtzed table. Mortality rates for active members, retirees, and
beneficiaries were based on the gerdistinct RP2000 Combined Health Mortality Table, with male rates
multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103%. The rates are projected on a fully generational
basis by scale BB to account for future mortality improvements. For disabled amsjuhtiargendedistinct

RP2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Tables with Blue Collar Adjustment are used with males rates
multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103% with-ye& sefforward for both males and
females In addition, a 3% minimum ortality rate is applied to reflect the impairment for younger members
who become disabled. The rates are projected on a fully generational basis by scale BB to account for
future mortality improvements subject to the 3% floor.

Actuarial assumptions used the December 312015 valuation were based on the results of actuarial
experience studies. The experience study in TMRS was for the dedoember 31, 2010 through
December 31, 2014Healthy postetirementmortality rates and annuity purchase rates were updated based

on a Mortality Experience Investigation Study covering 2009 through 2011, and dated December 31, 2013.
These assumptions were first used in the December 31, 2013 valuation, along with ateahbadentry

Age Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method. Assumptions are reviewed annually. No additional changes were
made for the 2014 valuatiorAfter the Asset Allocation Study analysis and experience investigation study,

the Board amended the lotgym expected rate of return on pension plan investments from 7% to 6.75%.
Plan assets are managed on a total return basis with an emphasis on both capital appreciation as well as the
production of income, in order to satisfy the skiertn and longerm furding needs of TMRS.
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SEPTEMBER 30, 2016
NOTE J -- EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM (CONTINUED)

Texas Municipal Retireent System (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)

The longterm expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a-blaigding

method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expectednettofrpension

plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined
to produce the lonterm expected rate of return by weighting the expected future rates of return by the
target asset allocatiorepcentage and by adding the expected inflation. In determining their best estimate of

a recommended investment return assumption under the various alternative asset allocation portfolios, GRS
focused on the area between (1) arithmetic mean (aggresstieutvén adjustment for time (conservative)

and (2) the geometric mean (conservative) with an adjustment for time (aggressive). At its meeting on
July 30, 2015, the TMRS Board approved a new portfolio target allocation. The target allocation and best
edimates of real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Long-term
Expected Real
Target Rate of Return
Asset Class Allocation (Arithmetic)
Domestic Equity 17.50% 4.55%
International Equity 17.50% 6.10%
CoreFixed Income 20.00% 1.00%
Non-Core Fixed Income 10.00% 3.65%
Real Return 10.00% 4.03%
Real Estate 10.00% 5.00%
Absolute Return 10.00% 4.00%
Private Equity 5.00% 8.00%

100.00%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liabilitg. ®&%. The projection of cash flows used

to determine the discount rate assumed that employee andyempdmtributions will be made at the rates
specified in statute. Based on that assumpti on,
be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees.
Therefore, the longerm expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of
projected benefit payments to determine the Total Pension Liability.
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NOTE J -- EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM (CONTINUED)

Texas Municipal Retirement System (Continued)

Changes in the Net Pension Liability

The below schedule presents the chamgése Net Pension Liability as of December 3015

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability
Balance at December 31, 2014: $ 88,562,426 $ 61,165,370 $ 27,397,056
Changes for the year:
Service Cost 3,015,806 - 3,015,806
Interest 6,178,108 - 6,178,108
Change of Benefit Terms - - -
Differences Between Expected and
Actual Experience (179,540) - (179,540)
Changes of Assumptions 289,698 - 289,698
Contributions - Employer - 2,722,654 (2,722,654
Contributions - Employee - 1,228,792 (1,228,792
Net Investment Income - 90,246 (90,246)
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds
of Employee Contributions (3,623,283) (3,623,283) -
Administrative Expense - (54,973) 54,973
Other Changes - (2,716) 2,716
Net Changes 5,680,789 360,720 5,320,069
Balance at December 31, 2015 $ 94,243,215 $ 61,526,090 $ 32,717,125

The following presents the net pension liability of @i¢y, calculated using the discount rate6of 3%, as

well as what theCityd s n e t

pensi on

Il i abi | i wusing avdiseoundratéthat is If

percentage point loweb(73%0) or Lpercentage point higher.73%) than the current rate:

Discount Rate

5.75% 6.75% 7.75%
Net Pension Liability (Asset) $ 46,747,336 $ 32,717,125 $ 21,296,334
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the pension -igsuanos

TMRS financial reprt. That report mape obtained on the Internet at www.tmrs.com.
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIALSTATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

NOTE J -- EMPLOYEE RETIRE MENT SYSTEM (CONTINUED)

Texas Municipal Retirement System (Continued)

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

For the year ende8eptember 30, 2®, the City recognized pension expense of $4,851,254. Also as of
September 30, 2016he City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to penens from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between Expected and Actual
Economic Experience $ 49,638 $ -
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions 225,463 -
Differences between Projected and
Actual Investment Earnings 3,800,747 -
Contributions subsequent to the
Measurement Date 2,685,612

$ 6,761,460 $ -

Deferred outflows of resources in the amount @ 685,612is related to pensions resulting from
cortributions subsequent to the measurement date, and will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension
liability for the plan year ending Decembet,32016. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and
inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

For the Plan Year ended December 31,

2016 $ 1,086,051
2017 1,086,051
2018 1,053,026
2019 850,720

$ 4,075,848

NOTE K -- POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THA N PENSIONS

Retiree Health Benefits

Plan Description

In addition to the pension bergsfidescribed in Note J, the City administers a steghployer defined

benefit healthcare plan for retirees (the Plan), established under legal authority of the City Charter. The City
is the only employer participating and contributing to the Plan. Tdreddes not issue a publicly available
financial report.
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016
NOTE K -- POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS O THER THEN PENSIONS (CONTINUED)

Retiree Health BenefitContinued)

Plan Description (Continued)

The Plan provides healthcare insurance for eligible retirees (employees hired prior to January 1, 2008, and
retire eligible for service retirement from Tex&Rinicipal Retirement System with a retirement date of
December 31, 2002 or later) and their dependents. This benefit is based on years of service with the City as
follows:

Minimum Years Minimum % Premium
Continuous Service Age Paid by City
15 57 0%
20 57 50%
25 57 100%

Eligible retirees will continue until the employee becomes Medicare eligible, at which time the employee

wi || have the option to obtain a Medicare suppl en
expense. Employees hired on or after January 1, 2008 will not receive a City contribution and will be
responsible for payment of the actuarially ekshled premium for retiree and dependent coverage.

Retiree premiums are the same as the premiums for active empl&a@esligible employees retiring after
December 31, 2@ the City will establish premium rates using actuarial methods to determine the
appropriate rates by attained age. The Citybds cor
standard contribution toward an active employeeds

Plan members caist d the following atSeptember 30, 2016

Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits 14
Active Plan Members 51
Total 65

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEBObligation (Asse)

The Cityds annual ot her postempl oyment beanmadl i t (O
required contribution of the employer (ARC)he City has elected to calculatee ARC and related
information using the unit credit method. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing
basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding
excess)overagpr i od not to exceed thirty years. The f ol |
annual OPEB cost for the year, t he amount actuall
OPEB asset of the Plan:
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
NOTES TO BASC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016
NOTE K -- POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THEN PENSIONS (CONTINUED)

Retiree Health BenefitContinued)

Annual OPEB Cost and NetOPEB Obligation (Asse) (Continued)

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) $ 98,877
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 8,769
Adjustment to Annual Required Contribution (11,388)
Annual OPEB Cost (Expense) 96,258
Contributions Made (15,856)
Increase in Net OPEB Obligation (Asset) 80,402
Net OPEB Obligation (Asset) - Beginning of Year 250,536
Net OPEB Obligation (Asset) - End of Year $ 330,938

The total net OPEBDbligation was $#41,583for governmental activities and3$,354 for businesgype

activities The Citydés annual OPEB <cost, contributions an
follows:
Annual
OPEB Contribution Net OPEB
Fiscal Year Cost Percentage Obligation
2016 $ 96,258 16.5% $ 330,938
2015 105,581 16.3% 250,536
2014 68,966 46.7% 162,163

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of Januay 1, 2016 the most recent actuarial valuation date, the actuarial accrued liability for benefits
was $.,493,356 The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the Plan) was about
$3,284,954 and the ratio of the unfunded actuariatraed liability (UAAL) to the covered payroll was
45.3%.

The projected benefit payments for an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Exampls assumptions

about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the
funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual
revision as actual results arengpared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.
The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to
the basic financial statements, will present information about whethexctharial value of plan assets is
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016
NOTE K -- POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

Retiree Health BenefitContinued)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the Plan
understood by the employer and the Plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of
each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members
to the point. The actuarial methoaisd assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the
effects of shorterm volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent
with the longterm perspective of the calculations.

In the January 1, @16 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit using full accrual at full eligibility age
actuarial method was used. The actuarial assumptions inclu8éfoainvestment rate of return (net of
administrative expenses) and an annual healthcare codtrate 0f8.5% initially, reduced by decrements to

an ultimate rate of 5. 0%. The Plands unXyearsied ac
utilizing the unit credit methad Demographic and other assumptions include mortality ratesgyéyand

gender, and termination rates by age and years of service.

Supplemental Death Benefits Plan

The City also participates in the cost sharing mul@igployer defined benefit grotprm life insurance

plan operated by TMRS known as the Supplemebé&dth Benefits Fund (SDBF). The City elected, by
ordinance, to provide groterm life insurance coverage to both current and retired employees. The city
may terminate coverage under and discontinue participation in the SDBF by adopting an ordinamece bef
November 1 of any year to be effective the following January 1.

The death benefit foactive employees provides a lurspm payment approximately equal to the

empl oyeebs annual salary (calcul ated brwmshepdriodon t he
preceding the month of deat h) ; retired empl-oyees
empl oyment benefit,d or OPEB.

The City contributes to the SDBF at a contractually required rate as determined by an anwial actu
valuation. The rate is equal to the cost of providing-gear term life insurance. The funding policy for the

SDBF program is to assure the adequate resources are available to meet all death benefit payments for the
upcoming year; the intentisnottogtendr et i ree term | i fe insurance duri

The Cityobés contri butritrerysars endled SdptemidEgRES ahd2B1E wefeo
$36,611 $32,552 and$30,298 respectively, which equaled the required contributions each year.
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016
NOTE L -- INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Interfund transfers during the year en@ptember 30, 2016vere as follows:

Receiving Fund/Activity Transferring Fund/Activity Amount
General Fund Nonmajor Governmental Fund $ 95,801 Reimbursement for Payroll Costs
Debt Service General Fund 640,000 Support Annual Debt Service
Nonmajor Capital Projects General Fund 3,775,336 Support Various Capital Projects
Nonmajor Capital Projects Nonmajor Special Revenue 157,167 Support Utility System Improvements
Utility Fund Nonmajor Capital Projects 103,838 Support Utility System Improvements
Internal Service Fund General Fund 48,330 Support Retiree Benefits
Internal Service Fund Utility Fund 23,432  Support Retiree Benefits

Total Transfers $ 4,843,904

NOTE M -- COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Litigation

The Cityterminated a conact with Salinas Construction Technologies, Lftat. delays and noncompliant

work. The City notified the contractor and its surety of the claims but ultimakelge to contract with
another contractor to complete the work. Salinas has filed clagabst the City for unpaid contract
balance. The City asserted a counterclaim against Salinas and its surety for sums required to complete the
project. Management is of the opinion that any outcome decided adversely to the City would not be material
to the financial statements.

Grants
Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by such agencies.
Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected may constitute a liability of the applicable

funds. Theamount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at
this time although the City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016
NOTE M -- COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

Construction Commitments

The City has entered into construction and engineering contracts for the improvement of verais st
utility systems, as well as park improvemeiiistimated future commitments associated with these contracts
as ofSeptember 30, 2018 e as follows:

Estimated
Primary Government Total Incurred Thru Future

General Government Commitments September 2014 Commitments
Bldgs, Streets & Drainage $ 31,072,726 % 27,701,823 $ 3,370,903
Professional Services 2,283,192 1,463,247 819,945

33,355,918 29,165,070 4,190,848
Utility System
Utility System Improvements 44,822,555 33,732,022 11,090,533
Professional Services (Engineering) 1,715,390 954,588 760,802

46,537,945 34,686,610 11,851,335

Total Primary Government Commitments _$ 79,893,863 _$ 63,851,680 _$ 16,042,183

Component Unit
Professional Services $ 17,873
$ 17,873

4777 % 13,096
4777 % 13,096

ad R

Economic Development Agreemsnt

WDW Development,P Agreement

The City entered into a Chapter 380 Agreement with WBW Land Investments, LP (WBW) which provides
that the City shall reimburse WBW for certain public infrastructure improvements out of 50% of the
increased tax received from home sales inrtdsdential development project known as the Meadows at
Nolte Farms over a period of ten yedneginning one year immediately after the date of initial completion,

at a cost not to exceed $500,000he City estimates the increase in assessed value @mdjeet over the

base year to be $15,000,000. Reimbursements to WBW are to begin March 2017 and are estimated to be
$24,000 annually.

Power Purchase Agreements

On December 17, 2015, the City entered into a fifteen (15) year agreement with the CéylarfdGo
purchase energy produced by a s@awer facility, along with associated Environmental Attributébe

terms of the agreement begms the Commercial Operation Date whish scheduled foMarch
17,2017and ends on the day preceding th& amniversary of the agreementn addition, the City entered

into a separate twenty (20) year agreement with the City of Garland to purchase energy produced by a wind
energy facility, along with associated Environmental Attribut€se terms of the agreemiebegan on the
Commercial Operation Datehich was November 13, 20Hhd ends on the day preceding the

20" anniversary of the agreemeroth agreements carry performance guarantees for all parties, as well as
mutual security provisions.
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CITY OF SEGUN, TEXAS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIALSTATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

NOTE M -- COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

Commitments under Noncapitalized Leases

Commitments uder noncapitalized (operatintgasesfor copiers provide for future rental payments as of
September 30, 2014 follows:

Year Ending September 30, Rentals
2017 $ 28,484
2018 27,981
2019 24,135
2020 19,137
2021 8,964
2022 168
Total $ 108,869

Encumbrances

Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contragiedsror services. Encumbrance
accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the expenditure of resources
are recorded to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is utilized in the governmental funds.
Encumbances lapse at yeand and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments
must be reappropriated and honored during the subsequent year. Therefore, there were no outstanding
encumbrances as 8eptember 30, 2016

Guadalupe Regional Medical Center

The City of Seguin is contingently liable for 50% of operating deficits produced by Guadalupe Regional
Medical Cente(GRMC), if any, with Guadalupe County contingentisponsible for the remaindeAs of
September 30, 26] longterm debt of GRMC consisted of Revenue Bonds in the amouritlaf, 00000

The bonds are secured by revenaéshe Medical Center, mortgage insurance issued by FHA and funds
held in trust.

63



CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

NOTE M -- COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

Guadalupe Regional Medical Cen{@ontinued)

Fol l

nanci

owing is a summary of fi
recent audited financial statements for the year ended September @0, 201
Assets:
Current Assets
Other Assets

Capital Assets (Net)
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Total Assets
Liabilities & Net Assets:
Current Liabilities
Other Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Net Position
Operating Revenues:
Net Revenues from Patient Services
Other Operating Revenues
Total Operating Revenues
Operating Expenses:
Total Net Operating Income
Nonoperating Revenues and (Expenses)
Increase (Decrease) in Net Position

Schertz/Sequin Local Government Corporation

The City of Seguin is jointly liable, together with the CitlySchertz, for operating deficits and |letegm

al

dat a

56,933,095
26,291,986
90,783,915
10,223,378

184,232,374

15,374,027
121,081,602

136,455,629

1,586,011

46,190,734

102,278,552
3,491,718

105,770,270
102,947,672

2,822,598

as

(8,674,891

$

(5,852,293

debt of the Schertz/Seguin Local Government Corporation (See Note Al).

fi

nanci al dat a as reported

September 30, 2015

Assets:

Current Assets

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Property, Plant & Equipment

Other Assets & Deferred Charges
Total Assets

Liabilities & Net Assets:

Current Liabilities

Revenue Bonds (Less Current Maturities and Unamortized Discounts)
Total Liabilities

Net Position:

Net Investment in Capital Assets

Restricted

Unrestricted
Total Net Position
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Following is a summary of
Ceamenpsodated i on 6 ¢

t he

$

16,110,100
7,690,087
93,153,345
2,875,820

119,829,352

6,047,766
103,363,928

109,411,694

(4,454,571
5,043,721
9,828,508

$

10,417,658




CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016
NOTE M -- COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Contin ued)

Schertz/Sequin Local Government Corporation (Continued)

The Corporation had revenue bonds outstanding in the amouh08f380,000 (as of September 30, 2015

to provide funds to build, i mprove, eysteng fudd,a enl a|
reserve, and pay the costs of bond issuance. The bond resolution pledges intergovernmental contract
revenues from the cities of Schertz and Seguin (the participating governments) to bond holders. Under the
intergovernmental water supply doect, the participating governments are unconditionally obligated to pay

their respective shares of annual contract revenue bond debt service from the operation of their respective
utility systems.

NOTE N PLEDGED REVENUE

The Seguin Economic DevelopnteBorporation (SEDC) entered into an interlocal cooperative agreement
with the City to transfer lawfully available surplus sales and use tax collected on behalf of SEDC to fund a
portion of the debt service requirements of the 2Cdimbination Tax and Lirted Pledge Revenue
Certificates SEDC has pledged to transfer, on an annual basis, debt service requirements up to a total
cumulative principal amount of $880,00®Remaining commitment on the agreement aSeyptember 30,

2016is $277,000 over a twgear period.

In addition, SEDC entered into an agreement, along with the City, to fund certain improvements tdGhe IH
frontage road in an amount n odfthacommitrmeatevid loe fuhdedby 5 0, 0 C
a pledge of future sales tax revenue to reimburse the City % of the debt service requirements of bonded debt
to fund the improvements The remaining commitment on the agreement aSeagtember 30, 2018

$822,200 over a fowyear period.

Total contributions tahe City in support of debt wei®842,925for the year ende@eptember @, 2016
Annual requirements to satisfy the commitment are estimated to be 15% to 28% of the underlying revenue
source (sales tax) and are as follows:

Pledged

Revenue
2017 $ 344,375
2018 344,175
2019 203,650
2020 207,000

Total Pledged $ 1,099,200

NOTE O -- RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
bushess interruption; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; employee health benefits; and other
claims of various natures. The City contracts with the Texas Municipal League (TML) to provide insurance
coverage for property and casualty, and workenmpemsation. TML is a mulemployer group that
provides for a combination of risk sharing among pool participants and stop loss coverage. Contributions
are set annually by the provider. Liability by the City is generally limited to the contributed &moun
Annual contributions for the year end8eéptember 30, 201%ere 833,036for property and casualty and
$219,597f or wor kersédé compensation coverage.
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SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

NOTE P17 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The City approved issuance Gertificates of Obligation, Series 201ivi the amount of $8.8m fotreet and
drainage improvements. In addition the City approved issuanthildyy System Revenue Bonds, Series
2017, in the amount of $8.5m to purchase GBRA Springs Hill Wastewater Treatment Plant and
improvementsas well as other utility system imprawents.

The City authorized the purchase of public works equipment with government capital lease financing in the
amount of $825,536, to be repaid over thsty months (including 2.1% annual interest), and thirteen police
vehicles with government capitidase financing in the amount of $312,583, to be repaid over four years
(including 2.85% annual interest).

The City approved the purchase of real property and building located at 108 East Mountain Street for the
expansion of city hall facilities.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTA RY INFORMATION

Required supplementary information includes financial information and disclosures that are required by the
GASB but are not considered a part of the basic financial statements. Such information includes:

Budgetary Comparison Scheduléseneral Fund

Schedule oChanges$ Defined Benefit Plar Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios
Schedule of City ContributiorisDefined Benefit Plan

Schedule of Funding Progreis©ther Postemployment Benefits

=A =8 =4 =9

67



CITY OF SE5UIN, TEXAS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULEOF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDEDSEPTEMBER 30, 2016

REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeits
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
GENERAL GOVERNMENT:
Administration:
Personnel Services
Contracted Services
Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Total Administration

Financial Administration:
Personnel Services
Contracted Services
Supplies
Other Services and Charges

Total Financial Administration

City Manager:
Personnel Services
Contracted Services
Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Total City Manager

Human Resources:
Personnel Services
Contracted Services
Supplies
Other Services and Charges

Total Human Resources

(With ComparativeActual Amounts for2015

Variance With

FUND BALANGE

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
2016 Positive 2015
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual
$ 11,679,157 $ 11,679,157 $ 12,182,731 $ 503,574 $ 11,377,976
579,000 579,000 723,820 144,820 1,104,009
747,330 787,717 862,132 74,415 954,686
5,762,460 5,762,460 5,696,651 (65,809) 5,635,600
1,731,700 1,731,700 1,497,809 (233,891) 1,728,156
9,500 9,500 64,240 54,740 10,728
754,012 769,012 762,398 (6,614) 740,455
21,263,159 21,318,546 21,789,781 471,235 21,551,610
56,751 57,085 56,900 185 56,375
600 623 623 - 672
800 800 347 453 612
22,000 21,643 8,414 13,229 11,386
80,151 80,151 66,284 13,867 69,045
297,248 311,780 307,862 3,918 299,097
148,173 146,173 139,057 7,116 131,723
12,450 15,950 13,148 2,802 9,527
9,585 11,585 7,729 3,856 3,089
467,456 485,488 467,796 17,692 443,436
258,127 263,320 263,102 218 239,263
1,600 1,957 1,757 200 1,902
3,800 3,800 2,389 1,411 2,757
16,650 11,100 10,469 631 12,475
280,177 280,177 277,717 2,460 256,397
253,979 257,017 256,880 137 231,759
45,450 44,717 42,889 1,828 55,635
5,075 6,025 5,417 608 4,122
60,425 57,170 29,547 27,623 44,662
$ 364,929 $ 364,929 $ 334,733 $ 30,196 $ 336,178
Continued
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANEE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDEDSEPTEMBER 30, 2016

General Government (Cont.):
Planning and Zoning Office:
Personnel Services
Contracted Services
Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Total Planning and
Zoning Office

City Secretary's Office:
Personnel Services
Contracted Services
Supplies
Other Services and Charges

Total City Secretary's Office

Information Technology
Personnel Services
Contracted Services
Supplies
Other Services and Charges

Total Information Technology

City Attorney:
Personal Services
Contracted Services
Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Total City Attorney:

Facilities and Grounds:
Personnel Services
Contracted Services
Supplies
Other Services and Charges

Total Facilities and Grounds

Total General Government

(With Comparative Actual Amounts f@015

Variance With

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
2016 Positive 2015
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual

$ 870,143 $ 870,143 $ 809,267 $ 60,876 $ 756,477
65,192 107,467 91,011 16,456 82,178
24,350 26,650 21,985 4,665 22,211
15,890 17,815 16,639 1,176 13,808
975,575 1,022,075 938,902 83,173 874,674
61,721 62,019 62,011 8 59,778
3,050 5,550 4,736 814 3,312
2,850 2,850 1,692 1,158 2,339
33,950 31,152 11,244 19,908 29,799
101,571 101,571 79,683 21,888 95,228
193,506 195,329 192,483 2,846 164,128
172,860 171,037 151,017 20,020 133,005
1,275 1,275 704 571 815
4,325 4,325 2,804 1,521 2,121
371,966 371,966 347,008 24,958 300,069
84,832 85,070 84,846 224 78,523
5,450 5,212 4,362 850 2,727
225 225 136 89 21
2,400 2,400 1,806 594 1,684
92,907 92,907 91,150 1,757 82,955
144,126 144,126 120,942 23,184 130,146
79,950 83,950 78,689 5,261 56,118
12,200 8,200 4,013 4,187 7,363
2,200 2,200 625 1,575 870
238,476 238,476 204,269 34,207 194,497
$ 2,973,208 $ 3,037,740 $ 2,807,542 $ 230,198 $ 2,652,479
Continued
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDEDSEPTEMBER 30, 2016
(With Comparative Actual Amounts f@015)

Variance With

7C

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
2016 Positive 2015
Public Safety: Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual
Police:
Personnel Services $ 6,589,853 $ 6,640,906 6,318,237 322,669 $ 5,813,583
Contracted Services 125,215 125,215 121,187 4,028 140,941
Supplies 96,400 96,400 92,531 3,869 79,420
Other Services and Charges 236,200 236,200 175,107 61,093 199,783
Total Police 7,047,668 7,098,721 6,707,062 391,659 6,233,727
Fire/EMS:
Personnel Services 4,931,023 4,969,266 4,732,953 236,313 4,335,922
Contracted Services 273,861 273,561 229,987 43,574 343,893
Supplies 178,500 179,068 155,760 23,308 167,865
Other Services and Charges 109,850 110,741 71,273 39,468 91,645
Total Fire/EMS 5,493,234 5,532,636 5,189,973 342,663 4,939,325
Municipal Court:
Personnel Services 269,005 269,005 268,372 633 251,237
Contracted Services 62,900 62,663 60,385 2,278 60,770
Supplies 10,200 10,437 10,437 - 10,044
Other Services and Charges 6,700 6,700 3,636 3,064 3,737
Total Municipal Court 348,805 348,805 342,830 5,975 325,788
Animal Control:
Personnel Services 313,526 313,526 293,724 19,802 278,624
Contracted Services 14,450 14,450 10,381 4,069 16,252
Supplies 35,000 47,965 45,014 2,951 47,075
Other Services and Charges 9,900 9,900 6,439 3,461 6,751
Total Animal Control 372,876 385,841 355,558 30,283 348,702
Total Public Safety 13,262,583 13,366,003 12,595,423 770,580 11,847,542
Public Service:
Public Works:
Personnel Services 1,651,301 1,664,165 1,592,071 72,094 1,399,122
Contracted Services 1,958,175 1,970,475 1,777,244 193,231 1,862,350
Supplies 44,650 54,650 49,851 4,799 45,995
Other Services and Charges 135,335 113,035 73,714 39,321 107,143
Total Public Works $ 3,789,461 $ 3,802,325 3,492,880 309,445 $ 3,414,610
Continued



CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDEDSEPTEMBER 30, 2016
(With Comparative Actual Amounts f@015

Variance With

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
2016 Positive 2015
Public Service: (Cont.) Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual
Vehicle Maintenance:
Personnel Services $ 218,727 $ 212,011 $ 209,671 $ 2,340 $ 194,090
Contracted Services 102,100 130,563 128,864 1,699 25,797
Supplies 13,400 14,553 13,376 1,177 13,772
Other Services and Charges 7,400 4,500 2,510 1,990 3,176
Total Vehicle Maintenance 341,627 361,627 354,421 7,206 236,835
Library:
Personnel Services 736,260 719,372 646,568 72,804 490,252
Contracted Services 76,990 93,878 90,930 2,948 52,075
Supplies 102,700 135,128 122,990 12,138 113,386
Other Services and Charges 9,250 9,250 6,053 3,197 7,950
Total Library 925,200 957,628 866,541 91,087 663,663
Parks and Recreation:
Personnel Services 1,265,154 1,274,806 1,194,463 80,343 1,078,306
Contracted Services 219,668 220,168 204,410 15,758 153,732
Supplies 106,900 108,900 91,448 17,452 93,542
Other Services and Charges 38,530 36,030 26,465 9,565 25,288
Total Parks and Recreation 1,630,252 1,639,904 1,516,786 123,118 1,350,868
Golf Course:
Personnel Services 542,368 542,368 523,074 19,294 493,731
Contracted Services 65,400 55,400 49,246 6,154 71,340
Supplies 46,650 56,650 46,904 9,746 42,243
Other Services and Charges 57,500 57,500 53,339 4,161 60,488
Total Golf Course 711,918 711,918 672,563 39,355 667,802
Downtown & Main St. Programs:
Personnel Services 154,047 154,047 142,806 11,241 144,451
Contracted Services 6,800 6,651 4,879 1,772 6,659
Supplies 1,200 8,000 1,186 6,814 7,646
Other Services and Charges 34,085 34,234 22,965 11,269 30,863
Total Downtown &
Main St. Programs 196,132 202,932 171,836 31,096 189,619
Total Public Service $ 7594590 $ 7,676,334 $ 7,075027 $ 601,307 $ 6,523,397
Continued
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016
(With Comparative Actual Amounts f@015

Nondepartmental:
Contracted Services
Building and Auto Insurance
Unemployment Insurance
Contributions - Civic
Organizations
Other Services and Charges

Total Nondepartmental
Capital Outlay

Indirect Cost
Recovery - Utility Fund

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In
Transfers (Out)
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year

Fund Balance at End of Year

Variance With

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
2016 Positive 2015
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual
$ 146,640 $ 144,203 143,146 $ 1,057 $ 129,367
125,000 140,880 140,880 - 78,060
10,000 17,341 17,341 - 6,453
1,602,708 1,602,708 1,602,703 5 1,421,058
53,100 67,316 66,494 822 56,202
1,937,448 1,972,448 1,970,564 1,884 1,691,140
165,000 165,000 158,620 6,380 -
(4,100,000) (4,100,000) (4,352,992) 252,992 (4,190,324
21,832,829 22,117,525 20,254,184 1,863,341 18,524,234
(569,670) (798,979) 1,535,597 2,334,576 3,027,376
95,000 95,000 95,801 801 82,252
(1,710,860) (4,463,666) (4,463,666) - (4,113,710
(1,615,860) (4,368,666) (4,367,865) 801 (4,031,458
(2,185,530) (5,167,645) (2,832,268) 2,335,377 (1,004,082
17,990,279 17,990,279 17,990,279 - 18,994,361

$ 15,804,749 $12,822,634 _$ 15158,011 $ 2,335377 _$ 17,990,279
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BAIGE-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Budgetary Information 7 The budget is prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. The City maintains strict budgetary controls. The objective of
these ontrols is to ensure compliance with legal provisiembodied in the annual appropriated budget
approved by the City Council and as such is a good management atevicd. The following aréunds

which have legally adopted annual budge@General FundDebt Service FundOccupancy Tax (Special

Revenue) Fund, Coliseum (Special Revenue) Fund, Aquatic Center (Special Revenu€oRvadiion &
Visitorés Bureau (Speci al Revenue FuyfRotick Pondiiand ast op
(Special Reveue) Fund PEG Capital Fees (Special Revenue) Funittrary Development (Special

Revenug Fund and Seguin Events Complex (Special Revenue) Fufrdjecti length financial plans are

adopted for the Capital Projects Funds.

Budgetary preparation and caoitis exercised at the department level. Actual expenditures may not legally
exceed appropriations at the fund level.

Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods or services. Encumbrance
accounting, under which purchaselers, contracts and other commitments for the expenditure of resources
are recorded to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is utilized in the governmental funds.
Encumbrances lapse at yeard and do not constitute expenditures drilites because the commitments

must be reappropriated and honored during the subsequent year.
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

LAST TWO PLAN YEARS

Total Pension Liability

2014 2015
Service Cost $ 2,513,154 3,015,806
Interest (on the Total Pension Liability) 5,806,091 6,178,108
Changes of Benefit Terms - -
Difference between Expencted and
Actual Experience 337,633 (179,540)
Change of Assumptions - 289,698
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of
Employee Contributions (3,564,077) (3,623,283
Net Change in Total Pension Liability 5,092,801 5,680,789
Total Pension Liability - Beginning 83,469,625 88,562,426
Total Pension Liability - Ending $ 88,562,426 94,243,215
Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - Employer $ 1,992,250 2,722,654
Contributions - Employee 1,132,877 1,228,792
Net Investment Income 3,335,330 90,246
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of
Employee Contributions (3,564,077) (3,623,283
Administrative Expense (34,824) (54,973)
Other (2,863) (2,716)
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 2,858,693 360,720
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning 58,306,677 61,165,370
Net Pension Liability - Ending $ 61,165,370 61,526,090
Net Pension Liability (Asset) - Ending $ 27,397,056 32,717,125
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a
Percentage of Total Pension Liability 69.06% 65.28%
Covered Employee Payroll $ 16,183,951 17,554,166
Net Pension Liability as a Percentage
of Covered Employee Payroll 169.29% 186.38%

GASB 68 Pension Information is being applied prospectively. 10-year historical trend information will be

developed beginning with 2015
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARYNFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CITY CONTRIBUTIONS

LAST TWO FISCAL YEARS

Schedule of Contributions: 2015 2016
Actuarially Determined Contribution $ 1,882,050 2,732,499
Contributions in Relation to the Actuarially

Determined Contribution 2,545,271 3,451,731
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ (663,221) (719,231)
Covered Employee Payroll $ 17,132,808 18,313,373
Contribution as a Percentage of Covered Employee Payroll 14.86% 18.85%

Valuation Date

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of December 31 and become effective in

January, thirteen (13) months later.

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed

Remaining Amortization Period 25 Years

Asset Valuation Method 10 Year Smoothed Market, 15% Soft Corridor

Inflation 2.50%

Salary Increases 3.50 to 10.5%

Investment Rate of Return 6.75%

Retirement Age Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the City's plan of

benefits. Last updated for the 2015 valuation pursuant to an experier

study of the period 2010-2014.

Mortality RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with blue Collar Adjustment; male

rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103% and
projected on a fully generational basis with scale BB.
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
RETIREE INSURANCE
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

LAST THREEACTUARIAL VALUATIONS

Unfunded
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Annual UAAL
Valuation Value of Accrued Accrued Funded Covered as % of
Date Assets Liability Liability Ratio Payroll Payroll
4/30/2012 $ - $ 1,405,548 $ 1,405,548 0% $ 7,036,484 20.0%
4/30/2014 - 1,027,966 1,027,966 0% 7,086,680 14.5%
1/1/2016 - 1,493,356 1,493,356 0% 3,284,954 45.5%
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMTION
Supplementary information includes financial statememi$ schedules not required by the GASB, nor a
part of the basic financial statements, but are presented for purposes of additional analysis.
Such statements and schedule include:
1 Comparative StatemeritsGeneral Fund

9 Statement of Revenues, ExpendituresC&anges in Fund Balande Budget and Actual Debt
Service Fund

1 Combining StatemenisNonmajor Governmental Funds
o0 Combining StatemenisNonmajor Special Revenue Funds
o Combining StatemenisNonmajor Capital Projects Funds
0 Budgetary Statements

1 Comparéive Statements Enterprise (Utility) Fund

1 Combining Statemenisinternal Service (Insurance) Funds

1 Combining StatemenisFiduciary (Private Purpose Trust) Funds

1 Statement of Changes in Assets & LiabilitieAgency Fund
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ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Receivables:

Taxes

Accounts

Grants

Miscellaneous
Inventory of Supplies
Prepaid Items

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenditures
Due to Component Unit
Unearned Revenue
Due to Others
Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable Revenue

CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018ND 2015

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Fund Balance:
Nonspendable
Restricted - Tree Mitigation Fees

Committed - Stabilization Arrangement

Assigned
Unassigned
Total Fund Balance

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS

AND FUND BALANCE

2016 2015
$ 772,928 % 1,096,909
14,484,023 17,316,881
1,679,282 1,642,438
1,111,981 921,557
30,497 63,033
86,636 79,840
23,962 22,292
83,421 76,406
$ 18,272,730 _$ 21,219,356
$ 811,123 % 669,107
539,334 976,627
197,686 211,399
227,942 240,808
42,536 37,185
1,818,621 2,135,126
1,296,098 1,093,951
1,296,098 1,093,951
107,383 98,698
5,300 25,300
2,018,494 2,167,774
52,312 126,887
12,974,522 15,571,620
15,158,011 17,990,279
$ 18,272,730 _$ 21,219,356
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REVENUES 2016 2015
Taxes $ 12,182,731 11,377,976
Licenses and Permits 723,820 1,104,009
Intergovernmental 862,132 954,686
Charges for Services 5,696,651 5,635,600
Fines and Forfeits 1,497,809 1,728,156
Interest 64,240 10,728
Miscellaneous 762,398 740,455
Total Revenues 21,789,781 21,551,610
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government 2,807,542 2,652,479
Public Safety 12,595,423 11,847,542
Public Service 7,075,027 6,523,397
Nondepartmental 1,970,564 1,691,140
Indirect Cost Allocation (Recovery) (4,352,992) (4,190,324
Capital Outlay 158,620 -
Total Expenditures 20,254,184 18,524,234
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 1,535,597 3,027,376
OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In 95,801 82,252
Transfers (Out) (4,463,666) (4,113,710
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) (4,367,865) (4,031,458
Net Change in Fund Balance (2,832,268) (1,004,082
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 17,990,279 18,994,361
Fund Balance at End of Year $ 15,158,011 17,990,279

CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, ERENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEARS ENDECSEPTEMBER 30, 2016AND 2015
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS

SCHEDULEOF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

REVENUES

Taxes
Intergovernmental
Interest

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Debt Service:
Principal
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Bond Issue Costs
Total Expenditures

FUND BALANCE i BUDGET AND ACTUAL
DEBT SERVICE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDEDSEPTEMBER 30, 2016
(with ComparativeActual Amounts for2015

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In
Refunding Bonds Issued

Premiums on Issuance of Bonds -
Payments to Refunding Agent -

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

FUND BALANCE, OCTOBE

FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $

Final Variance
Budgeted Favorable
Amounts 2016 (Unfavorable) 2015
$ 3,092600 $ 3,218,707 $ 126,107 $ 3,226,732
455,425 342,925 (112,500) 533,600
1,000 9,189 8,189 1,477
3,549,025 3,570,821 21,796 3,761,809
2,453,230 2,453,230 - 2,512,881
2,676,160 2,242,406 433,754 2,152,551
- 158,373 (158,373) 193,604
5,129,390 4,854,009 275,381 4,859,036
(1,580,365) (1,283,188) 297,177 (1,097,227
640,000 640,000 - 725,000
- 9,370,000 9,370,000 8,465,000
592,615 592,615 352,821
(9,804,242) (9,804,242) (8,624,217
640,000 798,373 158,373 918,604
(940,365) (484,815) 455,550 (178,623,
R1 1,467,186 1,467,186 - 1,645,809
526,821 $ 982,371 _$ 455550 $ 1,467,186
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL RUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue funds are useddoacaint for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditures for particular
purposes.

Occupancy Tax Fundi To account for the Occupancy Tax revenues paid thedditlyrestricted by State LawThe
revenues provide for contributions t@rious civic organizations. In addition, certain occupancy tax proceeds are
designated for specific uses and are reflected in separate special revenue funds.

Coliseum Fundi To account for occupancy tax angvenues earned by the coliseum that provide for fegadions
and maintenance of the coliseum.

Aquatic Center Fund i To account for the revenues earned by the Aquatic Ceatemittedfor the operations and
maintenance of the Aquatic Center.

Municipal Court Security T To account for revenues from courds restricted to improving municipadurtsecurity.
Municipal Court Technology i To account for revenues from court fines restricted to improving court technology.

Civil Forfeiture Seizure Fund - To account for revenues under local civil cases thatvatonfiscation of money and
property. Seizures are to be spent on law enforcement.

Federal Forfeiture Fund i To account for revenues under federal laws that allow confiscation of money and property
seized during enforcement of controlled substance. laRevenues are accounted for under federal laws and related
agreements.

State Forfeiture Fundi To account for revenues under state laws that allow confiscation of money and property seized
during enforcement of controlled substance laws. Revenuesarersed for under state laws and related agreements.

D.A.R.E. Fundi Established in fiscal 1995 to account for donations received for the D.A.R.E. program.

Juvenile Case Manager Fundi To account for fees assessaud restrictedo support a case managder juvenile
offenders.

Convention & Visitor s Bureaui To account foloccupancy tax revenues restricted for specific purposes by state law.

CVB Building Fund 1 Established to receive a portion of the Occupancy Tax Revenue to support a future hitélding s
for the Convention and Visitors Bureau.

Sebastopol Housei To account for occupancy tax revenues restricted for specific purposes by state law. The
Sebastopol House is a registered historic landmark.

Police Department Donations To account for comibutionsrestrictedto the City Police Department.

PEG Capital Fees To account for fees collected and remitted to the city with cable franchise fees to support
governmenfaccess cable broadcasting

Library DevelopmentFund i To account focontributins restricted to library enhancement.
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED)
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDScontinued)

Seguin Events Complex To account for occupancy tax and charges for use of the @amgstricted to supporting
the operations of the Complex

Seguin Arts Commissioni To track donations received specific to enhancement of downtown Seguin

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

The Capital Projects funds are used to account for proceeds from bond &sdieotherresources
specifically assiged for capital expenditures.
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

Combined Combined
Special Capital
Revenue Projects Total
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 170,180 $ 37,966 % 208,146
Investments 1,675,868 5,200,783 6,876,651
Receivables (net of allowances
for uncollectibles):
Taxes 195,082 - 195,082
Accounts 984 102,092 103,076
Prepaid Items 1,163 - 1,163
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents - 8,031 8,031
Investments - 2,617,119 2,617,119
Total Assets $ 2,043,277 $ 7,965,991 $ 10,009,268
LIABILITES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable $ 23,790 % 634,327 $ 658,117
Accrued Expenditures 4,577 - 4,577
Unearned Revenues 15,367 500 15,867
Due to Others 31,450 - 31,450
Total Liabilities 75,184 634,827 710,011
Fund Balance:
Nonspendable:
Prepaids 1,163 - 1,163
Restricted
Tourism & Economic Development 1,164,538 - 1,164,538
Public Safety 517,996 - 517,996
Public Service 260,159 - 260,159
Capital Projects - 2,285,710 2,285,710
Committed 24,237 - 24,237
Assigned - 5,045,454 5,045,454
Total Fund Balance 1,968,093 7,331,164 9,299,257
TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND FUND BALANCE $ 2,043,277  $ 7,965,991 $ 10,009,268
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

Combined Combined
Special Capital
REVENUES Revenue Projects Total
Taxes $ 835,858 $ - $ 835,858
Licenses and Permits - 16,256 16,256
Intergovernmental 48,468 628,306 676,774
Charges for Services 210,099 141,143 351,242
Fines and Forfeits 197,244 - 197,244
Interest 4,143 39,271 43,414
Miscellaneous 35,880 160,056 195,936
Total Revenues 1,331,692 985,032 2,316,724
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government 729,213 493,236 1,222,449
Nondepartmental 280,628 - 280,628
Capital Outlay - 6,430,832 6,430,832
Debt Service:
Principal - 149,536 149,536
Interest & Fiscal Charges - 7,175 7,175
Total Expenditures 1,009,841 7,080,779 8,090,620
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue
Over (Under) Expenditures 321,851 (6,095,747) (5,773,896
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In - 3,932,503 3,932,503
Transfers Out (247,796) (109,011) (356,807)
Proceeds of Debt Financing - 37,350 37,350
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) (247,796) 3,860,842 3,613,046
Net Change in Fund Balances 74,055 (2,234,905) (2,160,850
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 1,894,038 9,566,069 11,460,107
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 1968093 _$ 7,331,164 _$ 9,299,257
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ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Investments

Receivables (net of allowances

for uncollectibles):
Accounts
Taxes
Prepaid Items
Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE

Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenditures
Due to Others
Unearned Revenue
Total Liabilities

Fund Balance:

Nonspendable
Prepaids

Restricted

CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

Promoting Tourism & Economic

Development
Public Safety
Public Service
Committed
Total Fund Balance

TOTAL LIABILITIES

AND FUND BALANCE

Occupancy Acquatic Municipal
Tax Coliseum Center Court Security
Fund Fund Fund Fund

$ 32,882 % 442 % 6,163 $ 1,586
516,307 157,965 18,067 41,788
- 57 7 -
185,495 - - .
$ 734,684 _$ 158,464 _$ 24237 $ 43,374
$ - $ 4053 $ - $ -
- 670 - 317
- 31,450 - -
- 36,173 - 317
734,684 122,291 - -
- - - 43,057
- - 24,237 -
734,684 122,291 24,237 43,057
$ 734684 _$ 158,464 _$ 24237  $ 43,374
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Municipal Civil Federal State DARE
Court Forfeiture Forfeiture Forfeiture Program
Technology Seizure Fund Seizure Fund Seizure Fund Fund
$ 11,111 $ 273 % 5128 $ 9,866 $ 6,363
56,883 15,563 118,425 93,152 93,194
1,163 - - - -
$ 69,157 _$ 15836 % 123553 _$ 103,018 _$ 99,557
$ 130 % - $ 474 % - $ 876
130 - 474 - 876
1,163 - - - -
67,864 15,836 123,079 103,018 98,681
69,027 15,836 123,079 103,018 98,681
$ 69,157 % 15836 _$ 123,553 _$ 103,018 _$ 99,557
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
NONMAJORSPECIAL REVENUEFUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET(CONTINUED)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

Juvenile Convention &
Case Visitors CVB Building Sebastopol
Manager Bureau Fund Fund House

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 7229 $ 2,732 % 41,233 % 1,417
Investments 9,141 262,487 16,516 1,447
Receivables (net of allowances
for uncollectibles):
Accounts - - - 425
Taxes - - - -
Prepaid Items - - - -
Total Assets $ 16,370 _$ 265,219 _$ 57,749 _$ 3,289

LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE

Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 52 $ 15,026 $ - $ 58
Accrued Expenditures - 1,817 - 738
Due to Others - - - -
Unearned Revenue - - - 1,055

Total Liabilities 52 16,843 - 1,851

Fund Balance:
Nonspendable
Prepaids - - - -
Restricted
Promoting Tourism & Economic
Development - 248,376 57,749 1,438
Public Safety 16,318 - - -
Public Service - - - -
Committed - - - -

Total Fund Balance 16,318 248,376 57,749 1,438

TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND FUND BALANCE $ 16,370 _$ 265,219 _$ 57,749 _$ 3,289
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Police PEG Library Seguin Seguin

Department Capital Development Events Arts
Donations Fees Fund Complex Commission Totals
$ 4889 % 1430 $ 182 $ 20,001 $ 17,253  $ 170,180
58,165 57,570 127,433 31,765 - 1,675,868
- - - 495 - 984
- 9,587 - - - 195,082

- - - - - 1,163

$ 63,054 _% 68,587 _$ 127,615 $ 52,261 _$ 17,253 $ 2,043,277

$ 1,604 $ -3 -3 1,517  $ -3 23,790
- - - 1,035 - 4,577

- ; - - - 31,450
11,307 - - 3,005 - 15,367
12,911 - - 5557 - 75,184
- - - - - 1,163

- - - - - 1,164,538
50,143 - - - - 517,996
- 68,587 127,615 46,704 17,253 260,159

- - - - - 24,237
50,143 68,587 127,615 46,704 17,253 1,968,093

$ 63,054 _$ 68,587 _$ 127,615 $ 52,261 _$ 17,253 2,043,277
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUBEFUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FORTHE YEAR ENDEDSEPTEMBER 30, 2016

Occupancy Aquatic Municipal
Tax Coliseum Center Court Security
REVENUES Fund Fund Fund Fund
Taxes $ 113,696 $ 195,750 $ - $ -
Intergovernmental - - - -
Charges for Services - 84,810 85,273 -
Fines and Forfeits - - - 25,761
Interest 1,703 357 7 115
Miscellaneous 30 159 - -
Total Revenues 115,429 281,076 85,280 25,876
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government 110,339 260,334 85,251 -
Economic Development - - - -
Nondepartmental - - - 24,799
Total Expenditures 110,339 260,334 85,251 24,799
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 5,090 20,742 29 1,077
OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In (Out) (157,167) - - -
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) (157,167) - - -
Net Change in Fund Balances (152,077) 20,742 29 1,077
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 886,761 101,549 24,208 41,980
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 734684 % 122291 % 24237  $ 43,057

89



Municipal Civil Federal State DARE

Court Forfeiture Forfeiture Forfeiture Program
Technology Seizure Fund Seizure Fund Seizure Fund Fund

$ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
- - - - 45,705

34,373 - 62,794 23,689 -

109 14 221 148 138

34,482 14 63,015 23,837 45,843
19,009 - 11,752 7,433 37,534
11,523 - - - -
30,532 - 11,752 7,433 37,534
3,950 14 51,263 16,404 8,309
- - - - (40,000)
- - - - (40,000)
3,950 14 51,263 16,404 (31,691)
65,077 15,822 71,816 86,614 130,372

$ 69,027 _$ 15836 _$ 123,079 _$ 103,018 _$ 98,681
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FOR THE YEAR ENDEDSEPTEMBER 30, 2016

REVENUES

Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeits
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current:
General Government
Economic Development
Nondepartmental
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In (Out)
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances

FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1

FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30

CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE(CONTINUED)

Juvenile Convention &
Case Visitors CVB Building Sebastopol
Manager Bureau Fund Fund House
$ - $ 322,898 % 21,352 % 69,614
- - - 2,763
50,627 - - -
(63) 628 101 2
- 2,260 - 9,775
50,564 325,786 21,453 82,154
423 - - 80,687
- 244,306 - -
423 244,306 - 80,687
50,141 81,480 21,453 1,467
(50,629) - - -
(50,629) - - -
(488) 81,480 21,453 1,467
16,806 166,896 36,296 (29)
$ 16,318 _$ 248,376 _$ 57,749 % 1,438
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Police PEG Library Seguin Seguin
Department Capital Development Events Arts
Donations Fees Fund Complex Commission Totals
$ - $ 39,153 % - $ 73,395 % - $ 835,858
- - - - - 48,468
- - - 40,016 - 210,099
- - - - - 197,244
168 144 391 a7) (23) 4,143
- - - - 23,656 35,880
168 39,297 391 113,394 23,633 1,331,692
269 43,112 - 66,690 6,380 729,213
- - - - - 244,306
- - - - - 36,322
269 43,112 - 66,690 6,380 1,009,841
(101) (3,815) 391 46,704 17,253 321,851
- - - - - (247,796
- - - - - (247,796
(101) (3,815) 391 46,704 17,253 74,055
50,244 72,402 127,224 - - 1,894,038
$ 50,143  $ 68,587 _$ 127,615 $ 46,704  $ 17,253 $ 1,968,093
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS

NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Receivables, Net
Restricted Cash and Equivalents
Restricted Investments

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Unearned Revenue
Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Restricted for Capital Projects
Assigned to Capital Projects
Total Fund Balance

TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND FUND BALANCE

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

General Golf
Fund Course 2013 2011
Capital Capital Certificates of Bond
Projects Projects Obligation Fund
9,920 % 1582 $ - -
4,735,190 61,351 - -
98,828 2,112 - -
- - 4,082 1,386
- - 286,524 167,418
4,843,938 _$ 65,045 % 290,606 168,804
110,746  $ - $ 96,733 161,217
- 500 - -
110,746 500 96,733 161,217
- - 193,873 7,587
4,733,192 64,545 - -
4,733,192 64,545 193,873 7,587
4,843,938 _$ 65,045  $ 290,606 168,804

93



2010

Miscellaneous

Certificates of Projects

Obligation Fund Total
$ - $ 26,464 37,966
- 404,242 5,200,783
- 1,152 102,092
2,563 - 8,031
2,163,177 - 2,617,119
$ 2,165,740 % 431,858 7,965,991
$ 265,631 $ - 634,327
- - 500
265,631 - 634,827
1,900,109 184,141 2,285,710
- 247,717 5,045,454
1,900,109 431,858 7,331,164
$ 2165740 % 431,858 7,965,991
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUNDBALANCE
FORTHE YEAR ENDEDSEPTBMBER 30, 2016

General Golf
Fund Course 2013 2011
Capital Capital Certificates of Bond
REVENUES Projects Projects Obligation Fund
Intergovernmental $ 628,306 $ - 3% - 3% -
Licenses and Permits - - - -
Charges for Services - 91,328 - -
Interest 22,843 148 1,103 2,264
Miscellaneous 136,949 1,492 - -
Total Revenues 788,098 92,968 1,103 2,264
EXPENDITURES
General Government 493,236 - - -
Capital Outlay 3,329,404 106,931 96,733 1,063,198
Debt Service:
Principal 76,515 73,021 - -
Inerest & Fiscal Charges 3,929 3,246 - -
Total Expenditures 3,903,084 183,198 96,733 1,063,198
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under Expenditures (3,114,986) (90,230) (95,630) (1,060,934
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In (Out) 3,922,865 - - (54,573)
Proceeds of Lease Financing - 37,350 - -
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) 3,922,865 37,350 - (54,573)
Net Change in Fund Balance 807,879 (52,880) (95,630) (1,115,507
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 3,925,313 117,425 289,503 1,123,094
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 4,733,192 % 64545 $ 193,873 % 7,587
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2010

Miscellaneous

Certificates of Projects
Obligation Fund Total

$ - $ - $ 628,306
- 16,256 16,256

- 49,815 141,143

11,770 1,143 39,271

- 21,615 160,056

11,770 88,829 985,032

- - 493,236

1,806,405 28,161 6,430,832

- - 149,536

- - 7,175

1,806,405 28,161 7,080,779
(1,794,635) 60,668 (6,095,747

- (44,800) 3,823,492

- - 37,350

- (44,800) 3,860,842

(1,794,635) 15,868 (2,234,905
3,694,744 415,990 9,566,069

$ 1,900,109 $ 431,858 $ 7,331,164

96



CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
SCHEDULEOF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE i BUDGET AND ACTUAL
OCCUPANCY TAX FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDEDSEPTEMBER 30, 2016
(With ComparativeActual Amounts for2015

Final Variance
Budgeted Favorable
Amounts 2016 (Unfavorable) 2015

REVENUES
Occupancy Tax $ (8,009) $ 113,696 $ 121,705 218,715
Interest 300 1,703 1,403 (1,020)
Miscellaneous - 30 30 -

Total Revenues (7,709) 115,429 123,138 217,695
EXPENDITURES
Current:

General Government:

Contributions to Local Organizations 110,339 110,339 - 103,080

Total Expenditures 110,339 110,339 - 103,080

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures (118,048) 5,090 123,138 114,615

OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES (USES)

Transfers Out (181,421) (157,167) 24,254 (21,905)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (181,421) (157,167) 24,254 (21,905)
Net Change in Fund Balance (299,469) (152,077) 147,392 92,710
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 886,761 886,761 - 794,051
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 587,292 % 734,684 % 147,392 % 886,761
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FOR THE YEAR ENDEDSEPTEMBER 30, 2016

CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
SCHEDULEOF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE 7 BUDGET AND ACTUAL

COLISEUM FUND

(With ComparativeActual Amounts for2015

REVENUES

Occupancy Tax
Charges for Services
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

General Government/Facilities
& Grounds:
Personnel Services
Contracted Services
Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Total Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balance
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1

FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30

Final Variance
Budgeted Favorable
Amounts 2016 (Unfavorable) 2015
$ 195,750 $ 195,750 $ - 188,500
80,450 84,810 4,360 70,784
50 357 307 58
100 159 59 105
276,350 281,076 4,726 259,447
41,660 39,549 2,111 34,103
210,828 200,790 10,038 212,910
18,747 18,454 293 12,918
2,395 1,541 854 21,596
273,630 260,334 13,296 281,527
2,720 20,742 18,022 (22,080)
101,549 101,549 - 123,629
$ 104,269 % 122,291  $ 18,022 101,549
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
SCHEDULEOF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE i BUDGET AND ACTUAL
AQUATIC CENTER FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDEDSEPTEMBER 30, 2016
(With ComparativeActual Amounts for2015

Final Variance
Budgeted Favorable
Amounts 2016 (Unfavorable) 2015
REVENUES
Charges for Services $ 97,000 $ 85,273 % (11,727) 94,202
Interest - 7 7 (36)
Total Revenues 97,000 85,280 (11,720) 94,166
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government/ Parks
& Recreation
Personnel Services 47,314 45,038 2,276 44,067
Contracted Services 24,495 20,740 3,755 28,149
Supplies 21,260 19,473 1,787 21,934
Total Expenditures 93,069 85,251 7,818 94,150
Net Change in Fund Balance 3,931 29 (3,902) 16
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 24,208 24,208 - 24,192
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 28,139 % 24237 % (3,902) 24,208
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
SCHEDULEOF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGEIN
FUND BALANCE i BUDGET AND ACTUAL
CONVENTION & VISITORS BUREAU
FOR THE YEAR ENDEDSEPTEMBER 30, 2016
(With ComparativeActual Amounts for2015)

Final Variance
Budgeted Favorable
Amounts 2016 (Unfavorable) 2015
REVENUES
Occupancy Tax $ 322,898 $ 322,898 % - $ 315,085
Interest 25 628 603 91
Miscellaneous 4,000 2,260 (1,740) 4,984
Total Revenues 326,923 325,786 (1,137) 320,160
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government 326,923 244,306 82,617 276,706
Total Expenditures 326,923 244,306 82,617 276,706
Net Change in Fund Balance - 81,480 81,480 43,454
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 166,896 166,896 - 123,442
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 166,896 _$ 248,376 % 81,480 $ 166,896
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE i BUDGET AND ACTUAL
SEBASTOPOLHOUSE
FOR THE YEAR ENDEDSEPTEMBER 30, 2016
(With ComparativeActual Amounts for2015

Final Variance
Budgeted Favorable
Amounts 2016 (Unfavorable) 2015
REVENUES
Occupancy Tax $ 69,614 % 69,614 $ - $ 54,068
Intergovernmental 2,500 2,763 263 2,506
Interest - 2 2 (2)
Miscellaneous 10,200 9,775 (425) 10,200
Total Revenues 82,314 82,154 (160) 66,773
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government 82,314 80,687 1,627 71,781
Total Expenditures 82,314 80,687 1,627 71,781
Net Change in Fund Balance - 1,467 1,467 (5,008)
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 (29) (29) - 4,979
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ (29) ¢ 1438 $ 1467 $ (29)
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
SCHEDULEOF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE i BUDGET AND ACTUAL
POLICE DONATIONS FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDEDSEPTEMBER 30, 2016
(With ComparativeActual Amounts for2015

Final Variance
Budgeted Favorable
Amounts 2016 (Unfavorable) 2015
REVENUES
Interest $ - $ 168 $ 168 22
Total Revenues - 168 168 22
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government:
Supplies 10,000 269 9,731 2,080
Total Expenditures 10,000 269 9,731 2,080
Net Change in Fund Balance (10,000) (101) 9,899 (2,058)
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 50,244 50,244 - 52,302
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 40,244  $ 50,143 % 9,899 50,244
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCE i BUDGET AND ACTUAL
PEG CAPITAL FEES
FOR THE YEAR ENDEDSEPTEMBER 30, 2016
(With ComparativeActual Amounts for2015

Final Variance
Budgeted Favorable
Amounts 2016 (Unfavorable) 2015
REVENUES
Franchise Tax $ 40,000 39,153 % 847) $ 39,767
Interest - 144 144 (9)
Total Revenues 40,000 39,297 (703) 39,758
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government:
Contracted Services 40,000 43,112 (3,112) 40,255
Total Expenditures 40,000 43,112 (3,112) 40,255
Net Change in Fund Balance - (3,815) (3,815) (497)
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 72,402 72,402 - 72,899
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 72,402 % 68,587 _$ (3,815 % 72,402

10¢



CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE i BUDGET AND ACTUAL
LIBRARY DEVELOPMENT FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDEDSEPTBVBER 30, 2016
(With ComparativeActual Amounts for2015

Final Variance
Budgeted Favorable
Amounts 2016 (Unfavorable) 2015
REVENUES
Interest $ - $ 391 $ 391 65
Total Revenues - 391 391 65
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government:
Contracted Services - - - -
Total Expenditures - - - -
Net Change in Fund Balance - 391 391 65
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 127,224 127,224 - 127,159
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 127,224  $ 127615  $ 391 127,224
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE 7 BUDGET AND ACTUAL

SEGUIN EMENTS COMLEX FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDEDSEPTEMBER 30, 2016
(With ComparativeActual Amounts fo2015

REVENUES

Taxes
Changes for Services
Interest

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current:
General Government:
Personal Services
Contracted Services
Supplies

Total Expenditures
Net Change in Fund Balance

FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1

FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30

Final Variance
Budgeted Favorable
Amounts 2016 (Unfavorable)

$ 73,395 73,395 % -
22,500 40,016 17,516
- (17) 7)
95,895 113,394 17,499
44,157 44,147 10
30,488 12,810 17,678
21,250 9,733 11,517
95,895 66,690 29,205
- 46,704 46,704
$ - 46,704 % 46,704
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ASSETS 2016 2015
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Restricted Cash $ 35,759 115,209
Unrestricted Cash 1,331,333 1,163,275
Investments
Restricted Investments 16,517,975 23,255,546
Unrestricted Investments 24,507,183 24,596,278
Accounts Receivable (Net) 4,879,981 4,057,004
Miscellaneous Receivables 1,734,570 2,720,540
Due from Component Unit 19,769 21,001
Inventories 1,828,261 1,989,112
Prepaid Items 37,618 45,843
Total Current Assets 50,892,449 57,963,808
Net Present Value of Lease Financing 501,077 538,567
Capital Assets 136,363,737 115,573,976
Accumulated Depreciation (58,808,316) (55,641,785
Total Assets 128,948,947 118,434,566
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Pension Related Outflows 1,768,775 702,591
Deferred Charge on Refundings 164,915 68,575
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 1,933,690 771,166
Continued

CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF NETPOSITION

UTILITY FUND
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018ND 2015
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF NET POSITIONCONTINUED)

UTILITY FUND

SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 AND 2015

LIABILITIES 2016 2015
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable $ 5,271,790 3,188,667
Accrued Expenses 402,017 538,158
Unearned Revenue 95,530 705,830
Customer Deposits 618,315 737,549
Payable from Restricted Assets:
Accrued Interest Payable 226,947 230,800
Revenue Bonds Due Within One Year 1,471,259 1,301,771
Total Current Liabilities 8,085,858 6,702,775
Capital Leases Payable (Net of Current Maturities) 36,120 52,801
Compensated Absences 182,200 173,113
Net Other Post Employment Benefit Obligation 89,354 67,646
Net Pension Liability 8,213,594 6,775,604
Revenue Bonds Payable (Net of Current Maturities) 42,340,139 39,026,547
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 50,861,407 46,095,711
Total Liabilities 58,947,265 52,798,486
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 44,783,121 39,946,492
Restricted for:
Debt Service 559,676 2,012,821
Impact Fees 2,153,557 1,638,879
Unrestricted 24,439,018 22,809,054
Total Net Position $ 71,935,372 66,407,246




CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGESIN NET POSITION
UTILITY FUND
YEARS ENDEDSEPTEMBER 30, 201&ND 2015

OPERATING REVENUES 2016 2015
Charges for Services:
Electric 28,090,818 26,909,054
Water 9,793,743 8,718,656
Sewer 6,720,687 5,610,776
Miscellaneous Revenues 1,897,175 1,407,104
Total Operating Revenues 46,502,423 42,645,590
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administration 2,103,144 1,849,350
Operation and Maintenance:
Electric Distribution 19,798,287 21,000,423
Utility Services 1,089,640 951,068
Water Production 4,689,210 4,673,612
Water/Sewer Maintenance 3,999,349 3,778,870
Sewer Plant 1,989,631 1,925,101
Economic Development 378,612 388,667
Facilities Maintenance 695,556 643,944
Information Technology 283,608 254,533
City Attorney 408,241 394,474
Nondepartmental 852,045 812,414
Indirect Cost Allocation 4,352,992 4,190,324
Total Operating Expenses 40,640,315 40,862,780
Operating Income (Loss) 5,862,108 1,782,810
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest Income 191,925 34,353
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Assets 14,112 483
Interest and Fiscal Charges (1,322,631) (1,241,434
Bond Issue Costs (273,016) (713,523)
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (1,389,610) (1,920,121
Net Income (Loss) before Contributions and Transfers 4,472,498 (137,311)
Capital Contributions 975,222 749,579
Transfers In (Out) 80,406 100,149
1,055,628 849,728
Change in Net Position 5,528,126 712,417
Net Position at Beginning of Year 66,407,246 65,694,829
Net Position at End of Year 71,935,372 66,407,246
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
UTILITY FUND
YEARS ENDEDSEPTEMBER 30, 2018ND 2015

2016 2015
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Cash Received From Customers $ 45,935,882 $ 43,872,475
Cash Paid for Employee Wages and Benefits (7,352,905) (6,233,432
Cash Paid to Suppliers for Goods and Services (23,249,228) (26,600,048
Cash Paid General Fund for Indirect Costs (4,352,992) (4,190,324
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 10,980,757 6,848,671
Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities:
Transfers From Other Funds 80,406 100,149
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital
Financing Activities 80,406 100,149
Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Purchase/Construction of Capital Assets (19,814,540) (9,323,600
Capital Grants Received - 498,959
Proceeds from Revenue and Refunding Bonds 9,815,000 21,405,000
Premiums Received on Bonds 997,589 108,523
Payments to Refunding Agent (6,039,573) -
Principal Payments on Long-Term Bonds (1,326,771) (2,077,119
Interest and Fiscal Charges Paid (1,385,989) (1,133,422
Bond Issue Costs (273,016) (713,523)
Principal Payments on Capital Leases (16,681) (17,538)
Advances (To) From Component Unit 1,232 (1,411)
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets 14,112 483
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and
Related Financing Activities (18,028,637) 9,746,352
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Sale/(Purchase) of Investment Securities 6,826,667 (16,202,825
Investment Interest Received 191,925 34,353
Lease Financing - Principal Payments Received 37,490 38,739
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 7,056,082 (16,129,733
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and
Cash Equivalents 88,609 565,439
Cash and Equivalents at Beginning of Year:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,163,275 701,220
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 115,209 11,825
1,278,484 713,045
Cash and Equivalents at End of Year:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,331,333 1,163,275
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 35,759 115,209
$ 1,367,092 _$ 1,278,484
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
UTILITY FUND
YEARS ENDEDSEPTEMBER 30, 2018ND 2015

2016 2015

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:
Operating Income $ 5,862,108 $ 1,782,810
Adjustments to reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

Depreciation 3,166,531 2,930,821
(Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets:
Accounts Receivable 162,993 400,777
Inventory/Prepaid Items 169,076 (260,660,
Deferred Pension Related Outflows (1,066,184) 45,211
Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 2,083,123 822,012
Accrued Expenses (127,054) 112,363
Net Other Postemployment Benefit Obligation 21,708 23,872
Net Pension Liability 1,437,990 165,357
Unearned Revenue (610,300) 642,305
Customer Deposits (119,234) 183,803
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ 10,980,757 _$ 6,848,671

Transactions Not Affecting Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Noncapital Financing Activities:

Increase in Net Pension Liability (net of Deferred Outflows) $ 371,806 $ 6,073,013

Capital and Related Financing Activities:
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS

COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSEBY DEPARTMENT

UTILITY FUND

YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 AND 2015

Administration:
Personnel Services
Contracted Services
Supplies and Materials
Other Charges
Depreciation

Total Administration

Electric Production and Distribution:

Personnel Services
Contracted Services
Supplies and Materials
Other Charges
Depreciation

Total Electric Production and Distribution

Utility Services
Personnel Services
Contracted Services
Supplies and Materials
Other Charges

Total Utility Services

Water Production:
Personnel Services
Contracted Services
Supplies and Materials
Other Charges
Depreciation

Total Water Production

Water/Sewer Maintenance:

Personnel Services
Contracted Services
Supplies and Materials
Other Charges
Depreciation

Total Water/Sewer Maintenance

Sewer Plant:
Personnel Services
Contracted Services
Supplies and Materials
Other Charges
Depreciation
Total Sewer Plant

2016 2015
1,955,006 1,673,037
44,733 63,993
76,276 85,783
20,309 19,841
6,820 6,697
2,103,144 1,849,351
1,260,110 1,103,034
1,410,471 1,242,165
16,367,503 17,997,644
4,027 4,578
756,176 653,002
19,798,287 21,000,423
894,320 718,971
163,755 200,225
24,737 26,388
6,828 5,483
1,089,640 951,067
747,495 716,983
3,562,428 3,584,350
99,012 94,406
13,459 12,651
266,816 265,222
4,689,210 4,673,612
988,790 695,377
1,346,630 1,203,424
49,802 44,552
156,691 498,258
1,457,436 1,337,259
3,099,349 3,778,870
570,756 520,191
978,478 967,122
74,860 70,178
4,823 5,216
360,714 362,392
1,989,631 1,925,099
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES BY DEPARTMENT (CONTINUED)
UTILITY FUND

YEARS ENDEDSEPTEMBER 30, 2016 AND 2015

2016 2015
Economic Development:
Personnel Services 328,621 340,141
Contracted Services 28,384 26,696
Supplies and Materials 24 62
Other Charges 21,583 21,769
Total Economic Development 378,612 388,668
Facilities Maintenance:
Personnel Services 594,802 566,652
Contracted Services 69,043 52,225
Supplies and Materials 30,881 24,546
Other Charges 830 522
Total Facilities Maintenance 695,556 643,945
Information Technology:
Personnel Services 193,416 164,151
Contracted Services 86,714 87,725
Supplies and Materials 674 535
Other Charges 2,804 2,121
Total Information Technology 283,608 254,532
City Attorney:
Personnel Services 86,049 81,698
Contracted Services 320,305 311,041
Supplies and Materials 81 51
Other Charges 1,806 1,684
Total City Attorney 408,241 394,474
Nondepartmental:
Contracted Services 334,763 295,652
Supplies and Materials 4,377 16,041
Other Charges 194,336 194,473
Depreciation 318,569 306,249
Total Nondepartmental 852,045 812,415
Indirect Cost Allocation 4,352,992 4,190,324
Total Operating Expenses 40,640,315 40,862,780
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ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Miscellaneous Receivables
Prepaid Items

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Total Liabilities

NET POSITION
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NETPOSITION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2016
(With Comparative Amounts f&019

Internal Retirees Workers
Insurance Insurance  Compensatic Totals
Fund Fund Fund 2016 2015
$ 199,017 $ 23886 $ 25622 $ 248,525 $ 160,459
232,015 501,340 135,707 869,062 654,443
- 8,610 - 8,610 6,730
431,032 533,836 161,329 1,126,197 821,632
5,911 - - 5,911 10,553
5,911 - - 5,911 10,553
425,121 533,836 161,329 1,120,286 811,079
$ 425121 $ 533836 $ 161,329 $1,120,286 _$ 811,079
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN
NET POSITIONi INTERNAL SERVICE FINDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDEDSEPTEMBER 30, 2016

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Premiums
Miscellaneous Revenues

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Premiums
Administration
Total Operating Expenses

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NONOPERATING REVENUES
(EXPENSES)
Interest Income
Total Nonoperating
Revenues (Expenses)

Net Income (Loss) Before

Contributions and Transfers

Transfers In (Out)

Change in Net Position

Net Position At Beginning of Year

Net Position at End of Year

(With Comparative Amounts f&019

Internal Retirees Workers
Insurance Insurance  Compensatic Totals
Fund Fund Fund 2016 2015
$3,202,365 $ 70,703 $ 222,715 $3,495,783 $2,966,674
3,202,365 70,703 222,715 3,495,783 2,966,674
2,915,224 73,929 230,222 3,219,375 2,942,691
41,000 - - 41,000 27,500
2,956,224 73,929 230,222 3,260,375 2,970,191
246,141 (3,226) (7,507) 235,408 (3,517)
72 1,738 227 2,037 88
72 1,738 227 2,037 88
246,213 (1,488) (7,280) 237,445 (3,429)
- 71,762 - 71,762 78,335
246,213 70,274 (7,280) 309,207 74,906
178,908 463,562 168,609 811,079 736,173
$ 425121 $ 533836 _$ 161,329 $1,120,286 811,079
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THEYEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

(With Comparative Amounts f&019

Internal Retirees Workers
Insurance Insurance  Compensation Totals
Fund Fund Fund 2016 2015

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Cash Received from Interfund Services $2,478,988 $ 58,073 $ 222,715 $ 2,759,776 $2,340,843

Cash Paid from Users 723,377 10,750 - 734,127 624,899
Cash Paid for Employee Benefits (2,956,491) (78,304) (230,222) (3,265,018) (2,978,923
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Operating Activities 245,874 (9,481) (7,507) 228,886 (13,181)

Cash Flows From Noncapital
Financing Activities:

Operating Transfers from/to Other Funds - 71,762 - 71,762 78,335
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Noncapital Financing Activities - 71,762 - 71,762 78,335
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Sale/(Purchase) of Investments (152,675) (41,901) (20,043) (214,619) (44,971)
Investment Interest Received 72 1,738 227 2,037 88
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Investing Activities (152,603) (40,163) (19,816) (212,582) (44,883)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash
and Cash Equivalents 93,271 22,118 (27,323) 88,066 20,271

Cash and Equivalents at
Beginning of Year: 105,746 1,768 52,945 160,459 140,188

Cash and Equivalents at End of Year $ 199,017 $ 23886 _$ 25622 $ 248525 _$ 160,459

Reconciliation of Operating Income
to Net Cash Provided (Used by)
Operating Activities:
Operating Income (Loss) $ 246,141 $ (3,226) $ (7,507) $ 235408 $ (3,517)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating
Income to Net Cash Provided (Used)
by Operating Activities:
(Increase) Decrease in
Miscellaneous Receivables - (1,879) - (1,879) (932)

Prepaid Items - - - 2,717
Increase (Decrease) in

Accounts Payable (267) (4,376) - (4,643) (11,449)
Net Cash Provided (Used by
Operating Activities $ 245874 $ (9481) $ (7,507) _$ 2283886 _$ (13,181)
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NETPOSITION
FIDUCIARY (PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUSTFUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

Total
Riverside Industrial DARE Private
Cemetery Development  Scholarship Purpose
Fund Fund Fund Trusts
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ - 3 133 $ 41 3 174
Investments 14,655 265,963 4,432 285,050
Inventory - 359,431 - 359,431
Total Assets 14,655 625,527 4,473 644,655
LIABILITIES
Due to Others - - - -
Total Liabilities - - - -
Net Position Held in Trust $ 14655 $ 625527 $ 4473 % 644,655
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OFCHANGES INNET POSITION
FIDUCIARY (PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST) FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDEDSEPTEMBER 30, 2016

Total
Riverside Industrial DARE Private
Cemetery Development  Scholarship Purpose
Fund Fund Fund Trusts
ADDITIONS
Interest $ 79 % 895 % 9 $ 981
Miscellaneous - - 1,300 1,300
Total Additions 79 895 1,309 2,281
DEDUCTIONS
Distribution to Participants 25,300 2,933 2,525 30,758
Total Deductions 25,300 2,933 2,525 30,758
Change in Net Position (25,221) (2,038) (1,216) (28,477)
Net Position, Beginning of Year 39,876 627,565 5,689 673,132
Net Position, End of Year $ 14655 % 625,527 _$ 4473 % 644,655




CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDEDSEPTEMBER 30, 2016

Evidence/Abandoned Balance Balance
Funds September 30, 2015 Additions Deductions September 30, 2016
Assets:
Cash and Equivalents $ 48,193 _$ 1939 % - $ 50,132
Liabilities
Due to Others $ 48,193 _$ 1939 _$ - $ 50,132
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SEGUIN

It’s real.



CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
STATISTICAL SECTION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

This part of the City of Seguinds annual financi al rep
what the information in the financial statemt® note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about
Seguirgs overall financial health.

Financial Trends

Net Positiorby Component

Changsin Net Position

Fund Balances, Governmental Funds

Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds

These schedules contain trend information to help the rea
being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity

Tax Revenues by Source, Governmental Funds
Assessealue and Actual Value of Property
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates
Principal Property Taxpayers

Property Tax Levies and Collections

These schedules contain information to help the reader as
property and sales tax.

DebtCapacity

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type

Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt
Legal Debt Margin

Pledged Revenue Coverage

These schedules present information to help the reader assess thelaffofrda t y of t he Cityds current
debt and the Cityés ability to issue additional debt in t

Demographic and Economic Information

Demographic and Economic Statistics
Principal Employers

These schedules offer demographic andhesomi ¢ i ndi cators to help the reader und
activities take place and to help make comparisons over time and with other governments.

Operating Information

Operating Indicators by Function
Capital Asset Statistics by Function
Full-time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function

These schedules contain information about the Cityds oper
Cityds financial information r eltwitesisperfomms.t he services the



CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
NET POSITIONBY COMPONENT
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Fiscal Year
2007 2008 2009 2010
Governmental Activities:
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 21,202,151 $ 18,958,130 $ 18,647,949 $ 19,035,061
Restricted 791,109 970,062 1,091,155 1,243,295
Unrestricted 9,789,390 11,362,829 11,832,570 12,804,348
Total Governmental Activities
Net Position $ 31,782,650 _$ 31,291,021 _$ 31,571,674 _$ 33,082,704
Business-Type Activities:
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 24,767,252 $ 24,502,485 $ 25,817,049 $ 26,030,163
Restricted 1,110,889 1,122,407 1,088,411 1,884,617
Unrestricted 13,997,400 15,241,512 17,796,040 19,735,076
Total Business-Type Activities
Net Position $ 39,875,541 _$ 40,866,404 _$ 44,701,500 _$ 47,649,856
Primary Government:
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 45,969,403 $ 43,460,615 $ 44,464,998 $ 45,065,224
Restricted 1,901,998 2,092,469 2,179,566 3,127,912
Unrestricted 23,786,790 26,604,341 29,628,610 32,539,424
Total Primary Government
Net Position $ 71,658,191 _$ 72,157,425 _$ 76,273,174 _$ 80,732,560

* Change in Accounting Principle pursuant to GASB 68 applied prospectively effective October 1, 2014.

Comparative information has not been restated.
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TABLE 1

Fiscal Year
2011 2012 2013 2014 * 2015 2016
$ 22,058,500 $ 21,979,540 $ 21,518,984 $ 21,780,455 $ 25,657,965 $ 28,065,213
2,399,602 2,793,614 3,323,527 3,352,071 3,306,292 2,912,376
13,476,007 24,998,610 26,172,941 24,028,627 2,882,554 (1,309,424
$ 37,934,109 $ 49,771,764 $ 51,015452 $ 49,161,153 $ 31,846,811 $ 29,668,165
$ 26,908,429 $ 27,668,999 $ 29,869,105 $ 36,385,747 $ 39,946,492 $ 44,783,121
2,916,398 3,239,558 3,594,942 3,558,479 3,651,700 2,713,233
29,660,618 30,740,418 30,205,790 32,360,850 22,809,054 24,439,018
$ 59,485,445 $ 61,648,975 $ 63,669,837 $ 72,305,076 $ 66,407,246 $ 71,935,372
$ 48,966,929 $ 49,648,539 $ 51,388,089 $ 58,166,202 $ 65,604,457 $ 72,848,334
5,316,000 6,033,172 6,918,469 6,910,550 6,957,992 5,625,609
43,136,625 55,739,028 56,378,731 56,389,477 25,691,608 23,129,594
$97,419554 $ 111,420,739 $114,685,289 $ 121.466,229 $ 98,254,057 $ 101,603,537
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
CHANGES IN NETPOSITION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Fiscal Year
Expenses 2007 2008 2009 2010
Governmental Activities:
General Government $ 1,878,372 $ 1,794,323 $ 1,859,944 $ 1,859,525
Public Safety 8,898,829 8,891,772 9,068,057 9,494,381
Public Service 5,418,440 5,946,254 6,471,090 6,636,986
Interest on Long-Term Debt 1,160,419 1,585,143 1,465,134 1,444,828
Total Governmental Activities 17,356,060 18,217,492 18,864,225 19,435,720
Business-Type Activities:
Utility 32,180,148 38,124,954 38,051,066 36,430,136
Total Business-Type Activities 32,180,148 38,124,954 38,051,066 36,430,136
Total Primary Government
Expenses $ 49,536,208 $ 56,342,446 $ 56,915,291 $ 55,865,856
Program Revenues
Governmental Activities:
Charges for Services:
General Government $ 1,964,123 $ 2,396,731 $ 2,438,156 $ 2,419,222
Public Safety 2,482,048 2,178,103 2,312,047 2,957,157
Public Service 2,355,714 1,948,256 2,412,189 2,228,708
Operating Grants and Contributions 396,114 566,929 156,418 965,782
Capital Grants and Contributions 599,544 144,622 598,398 567,658
Total Governmental Activities 7,797,543 7,234,641 7,917,208 9,138,527
Business-Type Activities:
Charges for Services 34,079,849 38,334,793 41,231,252 39,290,331
Operating Grants and Contributions 111,000 105,500 - -
Capital Grants and Contributions 274,110 674,119 490,976 87,917
Total Business-Type Activities 34,464,959 39,114,412 41,722,228 39,378,248
Total Primary Government
Program Revenues $ 42,262,502 $ 46,349,053 $ 49,639,436 $ 48,516,775
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Fiscal Year

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
$ 2,077,927 $ 1,482,333 $ 1,617,167 $ 1,891,420 $ 6,354,347 $ 7,500,656
10,057,294 10,617,994 11,147,424 11,757,015 13,399,458 14,279,914
6,912,623 7,849,643 8,269,202 8,464,114 8,043,970 10,077,096
2,017,079 1,778,567 1,685,881 2,516,964 2,343,340 2,560,726
21,064,923 21,728,537 22,719,674 24,629,513 30,141,115 34,418,392
37,928,870 39,484,763 39,212,917 36,900,786 38,627,413 37,882,970
37,928,870 39,484,763 39,212,917 36,900,786 38,627,413 37,882,970
$ 58,993,793 $61,213,300 $61,932,591 $61,530,299 $68,768,528 $ 72,301,362
$ 2,423,729 $ 2,617,386 $ 2,616,261 $ 2,888,748 $ 3,381,353 $ 3,209,656
3,337,034 2,940,217 3,053,799 3,524,917 3,641,594 3,515,320
2,393,691 2,464,152 2,435,778 3,081,696 3,005,082 3,072,719
719,700 985,512 658,404 841,529 801,179 546,156
222,703 221,193 140,973 197,027 2,014,336 656,203
9,096,857 9,228,460 8,905,215 10,533,917 12,843,544 11,000,054
43,211,099 41,463,853 40,827,258 42,017,948 42,645,590 46,502,423
257,571 40,454 215,212 2,961,261 749,579 975,222
43,468,670 41,504,307 41,042,470 44,979,209 43,395,169 47,477,645
$ 52,565,527 $ 50,732,767 $ 49,947,685 $ 55,513,126 $ 56,238,713 $ 58,477,699
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (CONTINUED)
(Accrual Basis ofAccounting)

Fiscal Year

2007

2008

2009

2010

Net (Expense)/Revenue

Governmental Activities $ (9,558,517)

$(10,982,851)

$(10,947,017) $ (10,297,193

Business-Type Activities 2,284,811 989,458 3,671,162 2,948,112
Total Primary Government
Net (Expense) $ (7,273,706) $ (9,993,393) $ (7,275,855) $ (7,349,081
General Revenues and Other
Changes in Net Assets
Governmental Activities:
General Property Taxes $ 4582576 $ 5,049,451 $ 5,620,048 $ 5,694,180
Franchise Taxes 620,386 625,509 691,665 920,524
Sales Taxes 4,096,755 4,355,410 4,256,246 4,473,399
Occupancy Taxes 457,310 523,108 458,343 550,999
Interest and Investment Earnings 1,056,068 684,611 201,373 55,460
Miscellaneous - - - -
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets (45,385) - - -
Special ltems - (1,330,867) - -
Transfers (229,454) 584,000 - 72,034
Total Governmental Activities 10,538,256 10,491,222 11,227,675 11,766,596
Business-Type Activities Charges for Services:
Interest and Investment Earnings 771,998 565,238 160,396 42,731
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets 243,192 20,167 3,538 -
Special ltems - - - -
Transfers 229,454 (584,000) - (72,034)
Total Business-Type Activities 1,244,644 1,405 163,934 (29,303)
Total Primary Government $11,782,900 $ 10,492,627 $11,391,609 $ 11,737,293
Change in Net Position
Governmental Activities $ 979,739 $ (491629) $ 280,658 $ 1,469,403
Business-Type Activities 3,529,455 990,863 3,835,096 2,918,809
Total Primary Government $ 4,509,194 $ 499,234 $ 4,115,754 $ 4,388,212

* Change in Accounting Principle pursuant to GASB 68 applied prospectively effective October 1, 2014.

Comparative information has not been restated.
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Fiscal Year

TABLE 2 (CONT.)

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015 2016

$(11,968,066)

$(12,500,077) $(13,814,459)

$ (14,095,596)

$ (13,107,247) $ (19,065,346

5,539,800 2,019,544 1,829,553 8,078,423 577,432 5,241,683
$ (6,428,266) $(10,480,533) $(11,984,906) $ (6,017,173) $ (12,529,815) $ (13,823,663
$ 6,363,981 $ 7,032,068 $ 7,123720 $ 6,952,798 $ 7,516,954 $ 7,922,023

833,019 853,330 897,556 913,296 986,176 1,252,005
4,472,305 5,512,435 5,833,464 5,841,830 6,089,793 6,232,146
809,377 869,409 762,465 726,361 825,433 830,356
35,855 63,548 49,726 36,602 40,371 183,931
500,000 505,000 510,000 515,000 520,000 546,645
3,000,000 9,585,200 - (2,209,258) - -
804,934 (83,258) (118,784) (535,332) (100,149) (80,406)
16,819,471 24,337,732 15,058,147 12,241,297 15,878,578 16,886,700
37,921 67,211 39,696 20,456 34,353 191,925
62,802 (6,483) 32,829 1,028 483 14,112

7,000,000 - - - - -

(804,934) 83,258 118,784 535,332 100,149 80,406

6,295,789 143,986 191,309 556,816 134,985 286,443
$ 23,115,260 $ 24,481,718 $ 15,249,456 $ 12,798,113 $ 16,013,563 $ 17,173,143
$ 4,851,405 $11,837,655 $ 1,243,688 $ (1,854,299) $ 2,771,331 $ (2,178,646

11,835,589 2,163,530 2,020,862 8,635,239 712,417 5,528,126
$ 16,686,004 $ 14,001,185 $ 3,264550 $ 6,780,040 $ 3,483,748 $ 3,349,480
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General Fund:
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Total General Fund

All other Governmental Funds:
Nonspendable
Restricted - Special Revenue
Restricted - Capital Projects
Restricted - Debt Service
Committed - Special Revenue
Assigned - Capital Projects

Total Other Governmental Funds

CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Fiscal Year

2007 2008 2009 2010
$ 59,612 $ 66,379 $ 61,015 $ 56,899
6,543,410 7,372,266 7,697,782 8,655,304
$ 6,603,022 $ 7,438,645 $ 7,758,797 $ 8,712,203
$ - $ 2,160 $ 5,520 $ 4,295
880,981 982,294 1,002,698 1,065,039
4,923,857 9,788,858 7,435,646 3,749,080
652,652 851,815 945,507 1,068,598
17,843 11,529 23,137 23,413
2,278,642 2,196,305 2,259,074 1,940,052
$ 8,753,975 $13,832,961 $11,671,582 $ 7,850,477
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TABLE 3

Fiscal Year

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
$ 73,101 $ 66,104 $ 2,037,347 $ 70,386 $ 98,698 $ 107,383
22,800 22,800 20,100 20,100 25,300 5,300
- 2,208,762 2,163,385 2,165,441 2,167,774 2,018,494
- - 157,464 151,582 126,887 52,312
8,773,457 17,454,678 15,568,700 16,586,852 15,571,620 12,974,522
$ 8,869,358 $ 19,752,344 $ 19,946,996 $18,994,361 $ 17,990,279 $ 15,158,011
$ - $ 22852 $ 12803 % 5,874 $ 15570 % 1,163
1,389,762 1,701,526 1,748,490 1,752,872 1,854,260 1,942,693
11,920,110 14,004,274 13,155,149 30,155,607 17,309,757 11,643,846
945,380 1,019,857 1,510,096 1,645,809 1,467,186 982,371
31,331 11,113 10,726 24,192 24,208 24,237
2,059,875 2,183,206 2,860,482 3,220,890 4,067,387 5,045,454
$ 16,346,458 $ 18,942,828 $ 19,297,746 $ 36,805,244 $ 24,738,368 $ 19,639,764




CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES- GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Revenues

Taxes

Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeits
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures
General Government
Public Safety
Public Service
Nondepartmental
Indirect Cost Allocation (Recovery)
Capital Projects/ Outlay
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Bond Issue Costs
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In

Transfers Out

Issuance of Long-Term Financing

Payments to Refunding Bond Escrow Agent

Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses)

Special Items

Net Change in Fund Balance

Debt Service as a percentage of
Noncapital Expenditures

12¢

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Fiscal Year
2007 2008 2009 2010

$ 9,823,009 $10,578,794 $ 11,000,334 $11,586,011
313,206 542,193 273,991 329,009
1,007,956 999,436 1,467,479 2,253,478
3,770,273 4,260,013 4,942 725 5,127,519
719,521 964,752 818,794 1,366,173
1,041,605 674,264 201,149 54,851
975,127 455,465 329,079 129,349
17,650,697 18,474,917 19,033,551 20,846,390
2,550,851 2,930,937 3,047,345 3,043,817
8,164,911 8,277,544 8,532,673 8,862,366
4,300,974 3,907,102 4,087,284 4,541,940
1,221,472 1,416,615 1,310,186 1,491,764
(2,437,684) (2,798,522) (2,869,702) (2,952,855
12,469,055 5,705,912 4,970,168 5,751,957
961,856 1,189,174 1,414,361 1,466,258
1,037,116 1,307,381 1,465,362 1,428,424

143,930 249,427 22,500 -
28,412,481 22,185,570 21,980,177 23,633,671
(10,761,784) (3,710,653) (2,946,626) (2,787,281
1,537,142 1,747,357 811,222 631,000
(1,793,596) (1,194,357) (811,222) (711,428)

6,645,271 9,380,927 1,105,409 -
6,388,817 9,933,927 1,105,409 (80,428)

- 230,662 - -
$(4,372,967) $ 6,453,936 $ (1,841,217) $ (2,867,709
13.4% 16.1% 16.5% 15.7%



TABLE 4

Fiscal Year

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
$12,413,070 $ 14,250,325 $14,653,908 $14,396,360 $ 15,437,258 $ 16,237,296
325,496 404,953 384,153 688,637 1,242,939 740,076
1,462,440 1,842,006 1,062,026 1,692,199 3,397,057 1,891,931
5,071,986 5,375,293 5,364,318 5,724,792 5,846,015 6,047,893
1,534,392 1,422,147 1,446,373 1,894,219 1,899,976 1,695,053
35,283 63,074 378,958 36,579 40,290 181,889
741,762 721,692 778,174 1,080,418 979,661 958,334
21,584,429 24,079,490 24,067,910 25,513,204 28,843,196 27,752,472
3,271,912 2,970,433 2,995,289 3,291,439 3,469,890 4,029,991
9,919,756 9,946,852 10,421,044 11,099,683 11,847,542 12,595,423
4,562,336 5,877,185 5,996,218 6,087,470 6,523,397 7,075,027
1,809,481 1,620,181 1,949,011 2,202,136 2,047,626 2,251,191
(3,288,861) (3,430,197) (3,674,342) (3,848,566) (4,190,324) (4,352,992
3,792,747 2,702,978 2,305,774 5,466,886 17,192,358 21,967,537
1,584,205 1,973,707 1,977,394 2,370,179 2,680,967 2,602,766
1,678,851 1,686,787 1,628,268 2,011,346 2,164,212 2,249,581
328,000 146,006 45,636 363,655 193,604 379,187
23,658,427 23,493,932 23,644,292 29,044,228 41,929,272 48,797,711
(2,073,998) 585,558 423,618 (3,531,024) (13,086,076) (21,045,239
1,386,102 1,264,924 2,496,336 3,536,891 4,178,395 4,668,304
(1,763,058) (1,435,973) (2,615,120) (4,185,763) (4,356,879) (4,820,473
11,104,090 6,455,635 4,549,100 22,944,017 8,817,821 23,070,779
- (2,975,988) (4,304,364) - (8,624,217) (9,804,242
10,727,134 3,308,598 125,952 22,295,145 15,120 13,114,368

- 9,585,200 - (2,209,258) - -

$ 8,653,136 $13,479,356 $ 549,570 $16,554,863 $ (13,070,956) $ (7,930,871
16.4% 17.5% 17.4% 18.1% 19.4% 17.1%



CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
TABLE 5
Fiscal Year Property Sales & Use Occupancy Franchise Total
2007 $ 4,648,558 $ 4,096,755 $ 457,310 $ 620,386 $ 9,823,009
2008 5,074,767 4,355,410 523,108 625,509 10,578,794
2009 5,594,080 4,256,246 458,343 691,665 11,000,334
2010 5,641,089 4,473,399 550,999 920,524 11,586,011
2011 6,298,369 4,495,098 786,585 833,018 12,413,070
2012 7,015,151 5,512,435 869,409 853,330 14,250,325
2013 7,160,423 5,833,464 762,465 897,556 14,653,908
2014 6,914,873 5,841,830 726,361 913,296 14,396,360
2015 7,646,433 6,011,867 832,550 946,409 15,437,258
2016 8,030,337 6,158,250 835,858 1,212,852 16,237,296
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
ASSESSED VALUE AND ACTUAL VALUE OF PROPERTY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(Unaudited
TABLE 6
Less: Total Taxable Total
Fiscal Residential Commercial Industrial All Other Tax-Exempt Assessed Direct
Year Property Property Property Property Property Value Tax Rate

2016 $862,290,556 $536,741,553 $629,614,703 $181,755,812 $655,592,928 $1,554,809,696  0.5256

2015 810,622,634 523,445,251 587,892,017 148,519,377 508,745,708 1,471,733,571  0.5244
2014 738,143,976 489,211,189 576,499,288 136,133,611 570,260,123 1,369,727,941  0.5173
2013 738,982,849 465,714,399 785,423,174 152,396,679 713,834,301 1,428,682,800 0.5073
2012 723,441,220 431,521,993 550,501,805 150,003,452 467,115,554 1,388,352,916  0.5073
2011 716,337,690 381,012,529 344,847,282 220,121,445 334,238,078 1,328,080,868  0.4893
2010 668,475,414 383,484,507 330,139,839 209,183,412 312,223,664 1,279,059,508  0.4600
2009 657,580,380 369,860,723 334,046,725 195,824,119 342,543,265 1,214,768,682  0.4823
2008 602,014,523 330,995,847 312,967,426 190,092,227 320,532,212 1,115,537,811  0.4726
2007 514,576,330 287,310,912 316,582,669 148,873,333 295,009,577 972,333,667 0.4814

Source: Guadalupe County Appraisal District

Tax rates are per $100 of assessed value.

Total Taxable Assessed Value is not adjusted for enacted freeze on property values for certain taxpayers, which became effective January 1, 20
The freeze adjusted taxable value for the 2015 tax roll was $1,331,338,936.
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Unaudited)
TABLE 7
City Direct Rates Overlapping Rates

Fiscal General Debt Total School Guadalupe
Year M&O Service Direct District County

2007 $ 0.2706 $ 0.2108 0.4814 1.6890 $ 0.4031
2008 0.2587 0.2139 0.4726 1.1600 0.3845
2009 0.2323 0.2500 0.4823 1.2498 0.3295
2010 0.2325 0.2275 0.4600 1.2498 0.3895
2011 0.2693 0.2200 0.4893 1.2498 0.3999
2012 0.2693 0.2380 0.5073 1.2598 0.4036
2013 0.2698 0.2375 0.5073 1.2770 0.4036
2014 0.2942 0.2231 0.5173 1.2800 0.3999
2015 0.3000 0.2244 0.5244 1.3150 0.3941
2016 0.3126 0.2130 0.5256 1.4100 0.3851
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PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TARAYERS

CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year 2016
(2015 Tax Levy)

TABLE 8
Fiscal Year 2007
(2006 Tax Levy)

Percentage Percentage
of Total City of Total City
Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Value Rank Value Value Rank Value
Temic Automotive $ 63,182,207 1 4.06% $ 30,719,397 1 3.16%
Hexcel Corporation 17,680,470 2 1.14% 22,301,527 2 2.29%
Ameritex Pipe & Products LLC 12,201,583 3 0.78% - - -
Ranch @ SH123 Loop 11,025,000 4 0.71% -- -- --
Tyson Foods, Inc. 10,699,022 5 0.69% 10,602,337 4 1.09%
ET Seguin Dist LLC 10,664,103 6 0.69% -- -- --
Helmerich & Payne Inc. 10,645,621 7 0.68% -- -- --
Wonder Properties LTD 9,800,000 8 0.63% - - -
Wal-Mart Real Estate Business Trust 7,300,137 9 0.47% 6,668,245 9 0.69%
Wal-Mart Store 8,334,202 10 0.54% 7,204,864 8 0.74%
Rio Nogales Power Project LP -- - - 21,500,090 3 2.21%
ITW MiniGrip Inc. -- - - 10,244,427 5 1.05%
Frontier Land Limited -- -- -- 9,358,590 6 0.96%
Temec Automotive - -- -- 8,489,394 7 0.87%
Southwestern Bell Telephone - -- -- 6,106,593 10 0.63%
Total $ 161,532,345 10.39% _$ 133,195,464 13.70%

Source: Guadalupe County Appraisal District
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(Unaudited)
TABLE 9
Fiscal Year Taxes Levied Collected Within Collections in Total Collections
Ended for the Fiscal Year of Levy Subsequent to Date
September 30 Fiscal Year Amount % of Levy Years Amount % of Levy

2007 $4,527,973 $4,325,674 955% $ 191,220 $ 4,516,894 99.8%
2008 5,061,063 4,855,402 95.9% 193,334 5,048,736 99.8%
2009 5,618,105 5,443,556 96.9% 158,972 5,602,528 99.7%
2010 5,987,710 5,829,714 97.4% 140,199 5,969,913 99.7%
2011 6,243,006 6,056,865 97.0% 156,039 6,212,904 99.5%
2012 6,766,524 6,577,230 97.2% 121,854 6,699,084 99.0%
2013 6,971,685 6,842,125 98.1% 36,562 6,878,687 98.7%
2014 6,676,209 6,529,859 97.8% 80,622 6,610,481 99.0%
2015 7,438,963 7,320,383 98.4% 66,513 7,386,896 99.3%
2016 7,811,018 7,649,611 97.9% - 7,649,611 97.9%

Amount collected includes discounts
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Unaudited)
TABLE 10
Business-Type
Governmental Activities Activities Actual Percentage

Total Taxable of Taxable Percentage
Fiscal Notes Capital Revenue Capital Primary Value of Value of Per* of Personal
Year Bonds Payable Leases Bonds Leases Government Property Property Capita Income

2007 $ 24,365,000 $ 760,000 $ 90,162 $ 13,670,000 $ 193,792 $ 39,078,954 $ 972,333,667 4.0% $ 1,470 10.7%

2008 31,535,000 1,589,749 40,664 17,095,000 205,019 50,465,432 1,115,537,811 4.5% 1,805 13.1%
2009 30,580,000 2,164,298 112,163 16,345,000 185,325 49,386,786 1,214,768,682 4.1% 1,765 12.8%
2010 29,540,000 1,772,520 77,683 15,570,000 164,547 47,124,750 1,279,059,508 3.7% 1,607 10.2%
2011 39,235,000 1,345,970 329,118 22,600,000 144,321 63,654,409 1,328,080,868 4.8% 2,528 16.1%
2012 41,831,415 930,000 211,860 21,816,105 122,815 64,912,195 1,388,352,916 4.7% 2,502 15.9%
2013 40,604,177 565,000 310,476 20,980,197 101,857 62,561,707 1,428,682,800 4.4% 2,408 15.2%
2014 61,417,631 185,000 406,658 19,914,665 70,339 81,994,293 1,369,727,941 6.0% 3,076 16.3%
2015 59,514,639 - 238,572 40,328,318 52,801 100,134,330 1,471,733,571 6.8% 3,424 18.1%
2016 70,287,498 - 126,386 43,811,398 36,120 114,261,402 1,554,809,696 7.3% 3,808 19.3%

Note: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

* Population and Personal Income data can be found on Table 15.
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS

RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(Unaudited)
TABLE 11
Percentage
General Bonded Debt Available Actual of Actual
in Debt Taxable Taxable
Fiscal Notes Service Value of Value of Per
Year Bonds Payable Funds Total Property Property  Capita*
2007 $ 24,365,000 $ 760,000 $ (652,652) $24,472,348 $ 972,333,667 25% $ 920
2008 31,535,000 1,589,749 (851,815) 32,272,934 1,115,537,811 2.9% 1,155
2009 30,580,000 2,164,298 (945,517) 31,798,781 1,214,768,682 2.6% 1,137
2010 29,540,000 1,772,520 (1,068,598) 30,243,922 1,279,059,508 2.4% 1,031
2011 39,325,000 1,345,970 (945,380) 39,725,590 1,328,080,868 3.0% 1,578
2012 41,831,415 930,000 (1,019,857) 41,741,558 1,388,352,916 3.0% 1,609
2013 40,604,177 565,000 (1,510,096) 39,659,081 1,428,682,800 2.8% 1,526
2014 61,417,631 185,000 (1,645,809) 59,956,822 1,369,727,941 4.4% 2,249
2015 59,514,639 - (1,467,186) 58,047,453 1,471,733,571 3.9% 1,985
2016 70,287,498 - (982,371) 69,305,127 1,554,809,696 4.5% 2,310

Note: Details about the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
*Population data can be found on Table 15.
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

(Unaudited)
TABLE 12
Estimated
Estimated Share of
Debt Percentage Overlapping
Governmental Unit QOutstanding Applicable* Debt
Debt Repaid with Property Taxes
Guadalupe County $ 9,000,000 19.34% $ 1,740,000
Seguin Independent School District 139,059,007 47.74% 66,386,770
Subtotal, Overlapping Debt 68,126,770
Seguin Direct Debt 70,287,498
Total Direct and Overlapping Debt $138,414,268

Source: Municipal Advisory Council of Texas.

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, within the geographic boundaries of the City. This
schedule estimates the portion of outstandielgtaf those overlapping governments that is bornéyesidents and businesses of

the City of Seguin, Texas. This process recogni zesgtetnthat , wh
debt, the entire debt burden bornethg residents and businesses should be taken into account. However, this does not imply that

every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt of each overlapping government.



CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN

LAST TENFISCAL YEARS
(Unaudited)
TABLE 13
Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2016
Assessed Value $1,554,809,696
* Debt limit (10% of assessed value) 155,480,970
Outstanding DeBt! 70,287,498
Less amount set aside for repayment of
general obligation debt (982,371)
Total net debt applicable to limit 69,305,127
Economic Debt Margin $ 86,175,843
Fiscal Year
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Debt Limit $ 97,233,367 $ 111,553,781 $ 121,476,868 $ 127,905,951 $ 132,808,087
Total net debt applicable to limit ~ (24,472,348) (32,522,934) (31,798,781) (30,243,922) (39,725,590
Economic Debt Margin $ 72,761,019 $ 79,030,847 $ 89,678,087 $ 97,662,029 $ 93,082,497
Fiscal Year
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Debt Limit $ 138,835,292 $ 142,868,280 $ 136,972,794 $ 147,173,357 $ 155,480,970

Total net debt applicable to limit  (41,289,480)  (39,242,331)  (59,956,822)  (58,047,453) (69,305,127

Economic Debt Margin $ 97,545,812 $ 103,625,949 $ 77,015972 $ 89,125,904 $ 86,175,843

M Texas does not have a legal debt margin for cities. The only limit on taxation is $2.50 per $100 of assessed value. Good
financial integrity calls for 10% of assessed value to be used for debt limit.
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
PLEDGED REVENUE COVERAGE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Unaudited)
TABLE 14
Utility Less: Net Debt

Fiscal Service Operating Available Service

Year Charges Expenses* Revenue Principal Interest Coverage
2007 $ 34,079,849  $(29,245,499) $ 4,834,350 480,000 $ 677,022 4.18
2008 38,334,793 (34,927,078) 3,407,715 555,000 715,330 2.68
2009 41,231,252 (34,938,855) 6,292,397 750,000 744,488 4.21
2010 39,290,331 (33,098,744) 6,191,587 775,000 714,449 4.16
2011 43,211,099 (34,002,636) 9,208,463 805,000 961,171 5.21
2012 41,463,853 (35,728,904) 5,734,949 904,521 944,857 3.10
2013 40,827,258 (35,513,981) 5,313,277 839,048 734,437 3.38
2014 42,017,948 (33,121,499) 8,896,449 1,079,232 703,016 4.99
2015 42,645,590 (37,931,959) 4,713,631 1,077,119 1,253,491 2.02
2016 46,502,423 (37,473,784) 9,028,639 1,326,771 1,382,137 3.33

* All operating expenses exclusive of depreciation



CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS

(Unaudited)
TABLE 15
Per
Median Capita
Census Population Family Personal  Median School Unemployment
Year Population Estimate Income Income Age Enroliment Rate
2007 22,011 26,590 $38,061 $ 13,740 32.6 7,879 3.6
2008 22,011 27,951 36,931 13,740 32.6 7,501 4.7
2009 22,011 27,979 36,931 13,740 33.0 7,559 7.1
2010 22,011 29,325 38,060 15,730 324 7,562 6.4
2011 25,175 25,175 38,060 15,730 324 7,547 7.3
2012 25,175 25,943 38,060 15,730 324 7,440 6.8
2013 25,175 25,981 38,060 15,730 324 7,556 5.4
2014 25,175 26,660 38,526 18,901 35.3 7,529 4.2
2015 25,175 29,241 41,835 18,933 36.2 7,400 3.4
2016 25,175 30,006 41,835 19,754 37.2 7,459 34

Sources: Population, median family income, per capita personal income, and median age information provided by the
United States Census Bureau and the Texas State Data Center and are the most recent available for the city. Population
estimates are based on addition of annexed areas. School enroliment information provided by Seguin Independent Schor
District. Unemployment rate is for Guadalupe County and is provided by the Texas Workforce Commission and the U.S.
Dept. of Labor. Unemployment data is not available for the City.

14C



CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
CURRENT YEAR ANDNINE YEARS AGO

(Unaudited)
TABLE 16
2016 2006
Percentage of Percentage ¢
Total County Total County
Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment
Employer
Continental AG (Motorola) 1,565 1 12.90% 1,395 1 13.11%
Texas Power Systems/CAT 1,250 2 10.30% - -- --
Seguin Independent School District 1,130 3 9.31% 1,220 2 11.47%
CMC Steel 830 4 6.84% 838 3 7.88%
Tyson Foods 745 5 6.14% 472 6 4.44%
Guadalupe Regional Medical Center 700 6 5.77% 697 4 6.55%
Guadalupe County 595 7 4.90% 514 5 4.83%
City of Seguin 380 8 3.13% 279 9 3.76%
HEB 340 9 2.80% 250 10 2.62%
Wal-Mart Super Center 300 10 2.47% 400 7 2.89%
Texas Lutheran University -- - - 308 8 2.35%
Total 7,835 64.56% 6,373 59.90%

Source: Seguin Area Chamber of Commerce, Texas Workforce Commission, and Seguin Economic Development Corporat
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
OPERATING NDICATORS BY FUNCTION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(Unaudited
Fiscal Year
Function 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Police
Physical arrests 2,328 1,798 1,605 1,138 1,509
Traffic citations 11,068 12,740 15,988 8,911 12,349
Parking citations 70 265 308 291 176
Fire/EMS
Emergency responses 4,130 3,682 3,748 3,903 3,162
Non-emergency response/Service Calls 1366 1126 804 588 1837
Inspections 1,467 1,065 379 482 831
Refuse collection (by private contractor)
# of customers 8,623 8,400 8,079 7,945 7,850
Parks and Recreation
Park and sport facility rentals 763 701 639 622 624
Sport league participants 3,352 2,358 740 2,251 2,815
Program participants 3,769 4,539 4,640 3,509 5,172
Wave Pool admissions 12,801 13,447 13,077 13,126 13,126
Library
Volumes in collection 69,055 56,276 64,366 62,220 69,563
Total volumes borrowed 168,429 183,771 197,204 205,281 210,82C
Electric
# of customers 8,438 8,500 8,314 8,293 8,191
Sales (millions of $) 27.3 28.5 25.7 25.3 25.8
Water
# of customers 7,298 7,250 7,120 7,116 7,088
Average daily productiormillions of gal.)
Surface water 3.730 2.840 2.690 2.354 2.769
Well water 2.710 2.920 3.040 3.005 3.169
Total 6.440 5.760 5.730 5.359 5.938
Water main repaifgnain sizes from 3/4" to 16") 126 455 403 127 74
Wastewater
Average daily sewage treatmenitlions of gal.) 4.570 4.050 3.290 3.740 4.130

Sources: City departments

Notes: Fire/EMS statistics are on a calendar basis. Program participants under Parks and Recreation include
day camp, after-school, softball, & swimming lessons. Sales of electricity are of purchased power;

the City does not generate electric power.
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Fiscal Year

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
1,548 1,444 1,200 1,210 1,019
15,040 13,027 14,456 17,612 7,922
44 517 615 850 1,485
3,692 3,578 3,738 3,578 3,661
1435 74 604 609 813
289 654 728 670 564
7,739 7,609 7,486 7,450 7,346
734 721 690 709 689
2,670 2,611 2,073 2,008 2,117
4,822 4,782 5,875 6,214 5,800
14,015 10,504 13,693 14,015 13,453
76,126 76,440 76,805 75,202 72,755
229,389 233,609 226,206 218,206 192,701
8,210 8,011 8,014 8,069 8,075
26.5 26.4 28.2 25.6 23.2
7,060 7,019 7,044 7,036 7,036
2.875 2.139 2.005 2.317 2.586
3.402 3.163 4,122 3.789 3.228
6.277 5.302 6.127 6.106 5.814
56 97 76 70 102
3.960 3.326 3.220 3.020 3.456
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(Unaudited)
Fiscal Year

Function 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Police

Stations 1 1 1 1 1

Police vehicles 73 70 67 66 62
Fire stations 3 3 3 3 3
Public works

Streets (miles of paved) 178.48 178.48 178.48 178.48 178.48
Parks and Recreation

Number of parks 12 12 11 11 11

Acreage 346.91 346.91 299.91 299.91 299.91
Water

Water mains (miles) 164.00 164.00 161.00 161.00 117.00

Fire hydrants 7 1,284 1,100 1,085 1,081

Storage capacity 8.64 8.64 7.79 7.79 7.79

(millions of gallons)

Wastewater

Sanitary sewers (miles) 178.00 178.00 175.00 152.00 118.00
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Fiscal Year

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
1 1 1 1 1
62 62 61 60 61
3 3 3 3 3
178.48 174.91 174.63 174.52 173.81
10 10 10 10 10
289.41 289.41 289.41 289.41 289.41
118.90 118.63 118.28 117.64 117.14
978 978 978 976 973
7.79 7.79 7.79 7.79 7.79
129.00 124.27 123.84 119.25 118.70
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CITY OF SEGUIN, TEXAS
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Unaudited
TABLE 19
Fiscal Year
Function 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
General Government
Financial Administration 8 8 8 8 8 7 7 7 8 8
City Manager 4 4 4 3 3 3 3 5 5 4
Human Resources 6 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 6 5
Planning and Zoning 11 11 11 11 10 10 9 9 9 10
City Secretary 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Information Systems 5 5 4 3 3 3 2 0 0 0
Facilities and Grounds 4 4 4 3 3 12 11 9 10 12
Public Safety
Police 79 78 76 72 72 68 68 64 63 64
Fire/EMS 57 56 56 53 51 51 49 47 50 48
Legal & Judicial 6 5 5 5 5 5 4 4 4 3
Animal Control 5 5 4 4 4 3 3 3 3 3
Public Service
Public Works 32 29 27 26 28 24 18 18 17 19
Vehicle Maintenance 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Library 13 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8
Parks and Recreation 19 19 16 18 17 10 8 7 8 8
Golf Course 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 8 9
DownTown & Main St. Program 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Coliseum 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Utility Fund
Administration 3 3 2 2 2 2 2 2 4 6
Electric Production/Distribution 15 15 11 10 10 20 17 18 19 19
Utility Services 11 10 10 10 10 0 0 0 0 0
Water Production 11 11 11 10 11 11 17 15 17 11
Water/Sewer Maintenance 15 11 10 10 11 11 10 11 9 11
Sewer Plant 8 8 8 7 8 8 8 8 8 8
Economic Development 4 4 4 4 3 3 3 2 2 2
Facilities Maintenance 13 12 14 13 13 12 13 13 14 13
Utility Billing 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 6
CVvB 3 3 2 2 1 1 0 0 0 0
Total 354 335 321 308 308 299 287 277 285 284

Source: City Human Resources Department
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVERINANCIAL REPORTINGAND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERSBASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

| NDEPENDENT AUDI TOR6S REPORT

The Honorable Mayor and Memiseof the City Council
City of Seguin, Texas

We have auditedn accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contain@bwuernment Auditing Standardssued by th
Comptroller General of the United Statebe financial statements of the governmental activities, the
businesstype activities,each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
Seguin, Texas, as of and for the year en8egtember 30, 201&nd the related notes to the financial
statementswhich collectively comprise the City of Seguin, Texas, basic financial statements and have
issued our reporthereon deed February 10, 2017 The financial statements of the discretphgsented
component unit, Seguin Economic Development Corporation, were not audited in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audif the financial statements we consi dered the Cit:
internal control over financial reportingnternal control)to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial stdtements,

not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
control  Accordingly, we do not express apinion on the effectiveness of the City of Gdgn , Texas¢
internal contral

A deficiency in internal contragxists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assignetiduscto prevent or deteand correct
misstatements on a timely basi8. material weaknests a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility thateaiahahisstatement of the ciéys ntial n a
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely dasinificant deficiencys a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to meattention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section amehs not designed talentify all deficiencies in internal contraver
financial reportingthat might bematerial weaknesses or significatgficiencies Given these limitations,
during our audit w did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we
consider to be matiel weaknessesHowever, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

941 West Byrd Blvd., Suite 101 ® Universal City, Texas 78148
Phone: 210-658-6229 e Fax: 210-659-7611 ® Email: vaughan@avacpa.com ® www.avacpa.com
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Complianceand Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about
free of material misstatement, we performedstasit its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with whidhhewe a direct and material

effect on the determination of the financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported und@wvernment Auting Standards

We noted certain matters that we have reported to management of the City of Seguin, Texas in a separate
letterdatedFebruary 10, 2017

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance

and the results of that testing, and not to provi
control or on compliance. This rgpds an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards n considering t he entityads i nte

Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Gy, Ve { it e

Armstrong, Vaighan & Assoates P.C.

February 10, 2017
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SEGUIN

It’s real.



